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PART | - PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. FACILITY

Name of Facility: Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center

Address:
1212 York Road; Suite B101 Timonium 21093 Baltimore
Street City Zip County

2. Name of Owner
If Owner is a Corporation, Partnership, or Limited Liability Company, attach a description of
the ownership structure identifying all individuals that have or will have at least a 5%
ownership share in the applicant and any related parent entities. Attach a chart that
completely delineates this ownership structure.

MedStar Ambulatory Services, Inc. owns 51% interest in GCSC. See also Attachment 1.

3. APPLICANT. If the application has a co-applicant, provide the following information in an
attachment.

Legal Name of Project Applicant (Licensee or Proposed Licensee):
MedStar Ambulatory Services, Inc., on behalf of Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, LLC.

Address:

5565 Sterrett Place; 5" Floor | COlumbia 21045 MD Howard
Street City Zip State County
Telephone: 410-772-6696

4. NAME OF LICENSEE OR PROPOSED LICENSEE, if different from the applicant:

Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center
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5. LEGAL STRUCTURE OF APPLICANT (and LICENSEE, if different from applicant).

Check |ZI or fill in applicable information below and attach an organizational chart
showing the owners of applicant (and licensee, if different).

A.
B.

o

Governmental
Corporation
(1) Non-profit
(2) For-profit
(3) Close

Partnership

General

LOOmitel]

Limited Liability Partner(hip
Limited Liability Limited
Partnership

Other (Specify):

Limited LiabilitC) Company
Other (Specify):

To be formed:
[xisting:

[l

State & Date of Incorporation

X O 0O0od O di

[
[

RESPONSE: MedStar Ambulatory Services, Inc. (MAS) is a Maryland not-for-profit corporation
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of MedStar Health, Inc. (“MedStar Health”). GCSC is a Maryland
for-profit limited liability company.

6. PERSON(S) TO WHOM QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS APPLICATION SHOULD BE
DIRECTED

A. Lead or primary contact:

Name and Title:

Company Name: MedStar Health

Mailing Address:

Telephone:

E-Mail Address:

FAX:

410-772-6689

patricia.cameron@medstar.net

n/a

Patricia Cameron, Senior Policy Analyst

5565 Sterrett Place; 5" Floor; Columbia, MD 21045

If company name is different than applicant briefly describe the relationship: MAS s a

wholly-owned subsidiary of MedStar Health.
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B. Additional or alternate contact:

Name and Title: Megha Kachalia, Assistant Vice President Physician and Ambulatory
Planning

Company Name: MedStar Health

Mailing Address: 5565 Sterrett Place; 5" Floor; Columbia, MD 21045

Telephone: 410-772-6671
E-Mail Address: Megha.V.Kachalia@medstar.net
FAX: n/a

If company name is different than applicant briefly describe the relationship: MAS is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of MedStar Health.
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7. TYPE OF PROJECT

The following list includes all project categories that require a CON pursuant to
COMAR 10.24.01.02(A). Please mark all that apply in the list below.

If approved, this CON would result in (check as many as apply):

(1)
)
®3)
(4)

©®)

A new health care facility built, developed, or established
An existing health care facility moved to another site
A change in the bed capacity of a health care facility

A change in the type or scope of any health care service offered
by a health care facility

A health care facility making a capital expenditure that exceeds the

current threshold for capital expenditures found at:
http://mhcc.maryland.gov/mhcc/pages/hcfs/hcfs_con/documents/con_capital threshold 20140301.pdf

[ O0OXKX
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8. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A. Executive Summary of the Project: The purpose of this BRIEF executive summary
is to convey to the reader a holistic understanding of the proposed project: what it is,
why you need to do it, and what it will cost. A one-page response will suffice. Please
include:

D Brief Description of the project — what the applicant proposes to do

(2) Rationale for the project — the need and/or business case for the
proposed project

3) Cost — the total cost of implementing the proposed project

This project involves expansion of the Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center (GCSC). The
GCSC is currently located on York Road in Lutherville, Baltimore County, with two operating
rooms and one procedure room. This surgery center has been in existence for over 20 years
and is long overdue for modernization. Pursuant to COMAR 10.24.01.03, we are in the
process of relocating this surgical capacity to a newly created medical office building in
Timonium. The new address is 2118 Greenspring Drive Lutherville, 21092. The plan also
involves adding two additional operating rooms, which is the subject of this application. in
addition to modernizing the existing surgical capacity, this expansion will also allow MedStar
Health to respond to the changing trends in the healthcare market to move procedures out
from the hospital setting into the most appropriate outpatient setting in a cost effective manner
by creating a lower cost alternative to hospital outpatient surgery. The addition of two
operating rooms to the relocated GCSC will cost approximately $1.9 million, which includes
construction, equipment, permits, architects/engineering, contingency and other project related

costs.
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B. Comprehensive Project Description: The description should include details
regarding:
(1) Construction, renovation, and demolition plans
(2) Changes in square footage of departments and units
3) Physical plant or location changes
4) Changes to affected services following completion of the project
(5) Outline the project schedule.

MedStar Health is developing an Orthopaedic Center at 2118 Greenspring Road in
Timonium, Maryland. The building is located near Interstate 1-83 north of the Baltimore
Beltway (1-695). An opportunity to rent an entire building allows MedStar to develop a state-of-
the-art 49,500 square foot medical office building which will include a consolidated,
comprehensive Orthopaedic practice, a new Spine/Joint Center, Imaging and Physical
Medicine & Rehabilitation services. The building will be renovated for MedStar with occupancy
anticipated in August of 2017. The facility will include the Greater Chesapeake Surgery
Center, a two-operating room ambulatory surgery center to be relocated from its current
location on York Road in Lutherville. Pursuant to COMAR 10.24.01.03D, a certificate of need
is not required to relocate this ambulatory surgery center. Notice of the relocation has been
filed with MHCC.

The development of an Ambulatory Orthopaedic Center will allow MedStar to achieve the
following goals:

» To provide lower cost alternative to hospitals in Baltimore

» To allow program consolidation and multi-disciplinary service line development

» To advance comprehensive programmatic and functional integration of clinical services

» To provide access and convenience to patients in a “one stop shopping” environment

» To provide quality clinical services in the local North Baltimore community

e To provide state of the art equipment and technology

This project involves the addition of two operating rooms to the GCSC as follows:

¢ The expanded GCSC will have four ORs and the ability to accommodate 23-hour stay;

including 14 Pre-op and recovery bays;

* Atotal 16,114 rentable/ 14,500 usable sq ft on third floor of the building; and
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» Total capital cost is approximately $1.9 million for construction and equipment

The new site will allow GCSC to modernize from a 20+ year old 6,121 square foot facility to
a state-of-the-art ambulatory surgery center of approximately 14,500 square feet. The existing
Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center has outdated facilities including small operating rooms,
inadequate space for equipment, staff and storage, inefficient workflow design and outdated

design characteristics. For example:

e Electrical & mechanical room location will not allow necessary redesign/expansion

of Sterile Core.

o Facility size will not accommodate recent and projected case growth/physician

utilization.
e Current procedure room is too small and is no longer in use.

¢ Facility accommodates only 2 pre-op beds and 3-4 post-op beds/chairs. This

prohibits physicians from performing a “full” case load simultaneously.
e Insufficient space for instrument/equipment cleaning and processing.

¢ Insufficient size to support consolidation, growth in population and movement of

cases from the hospital inpatient and outpatient setting to the ambulatory setting.

As demonstrated below, the additional cases for the two operating rooms will come from
a) a shift of orthopedic cases from MedStar’s four Baltimore area hospitals, b) population

growth, c¢) increasing use rates, and d) market shift as several new specialists come on board.

The case for expansion at Timonium becomes even more compelling as MedStar Health
responds to new challenges of population health and the new Medicare waiver. The
expansion at Timonium continues a shift to settings where health care can be provided in the
most cost effective manner. Providing the right care in the right place at the right cost allows
patients the option to access services like radiology and ambulatory surgery in a convenient
location under one roof without the additional overhead cost of the hospital-based services. It
further allows MedStar Health to continue to execute its ambulatory strategy of creating a
distributed care delivery network of services to people in their community, where they live and
work. In addition, attention and focus on the quality of care provided and its safety will become
drivers in the further development of this ambulatory center for MedStar.
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Most of the cases to be done at the relocated and expanded ASC are currently done at
Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, MedStar Union Memorial Hospital, MedStar Good
Samaritan Hospital, MedStar Harbor Hospital or MedStar Franklin Square Hospital. The

moderate decline in case load at these hospitals will allow much needed renovations.

Because the relocation of GCSC will proceed without delay towards a projected opening
date of August 2017, the renovations needed to accommodate the two additional operating
rooms will require very little lead time. The two additional operating rooms can be completed
at the same time as the two existing operating rooms that are being relocated. If necessary,
we will shell space for the additional two operating rooms. Once we obtain CON approval, the

construction of the two new ORs is estimated can be completed in approximately 7 months.
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9. Current Capacity and Proposed Changes:

Currently Units to be Total Units if
Unit Description Licensed/ Added or Project is
Service Certified Reduced Approved
ICF-MR Beds I
ICF-C/D Beds I
Residential Treatment | Beds I
Ambulatory Surgery Operating Rooms 2 +2 4
Procedure Rooms 1 -1 0
Home Health Agency | Counties I
Hospice Program Counties I
Other (Specify)
TOTAL

10. Identify any community based services that are or will be offered at the facility and explain
how each one will be affected by the project.

L 4

L 4

Response: no community based services will be offered by the proposed FASF.
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11. REQUIRED APPROVALS AND SITE CONTROL

A. Site size: _2.45 acres (refers to the entire site of the MOB)

B. Have all necessary State and local land use and environmental approvals,
including zoning and site plan, for the project as proposed been obtained?
YES X NO (If NO, describe below the current status and timetable for

receiving each of the necessary approvals.)

| N/A

C. Form of Site Control (Respond to the one that applies. If more than one,
explain.):

(2) Owned by: 2118 Greenspring, LLC

2) Options to purchase held by:

Please provide a copy of the purchase option as an attachment.

3) Land Lease held by:

Please provide a copy of the land lease as an attachment.

(4) Option to lease held by:

Please provide a copy of the option to lease as an attachment.

(5) Other:

Explain and provide legal documents as an attachment.
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12. PROJECT SCHEDULE
(INSTRUCTION: IN COMPLETING ITEM 12, PLEASE CONSULT THE PERFORMANCE
REQUIREMENT TARGET DATES SET FORTH IN COMMISSION REGULATIONS, COMAR

10.24.01.12)

For new construction or renovation projects.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A.
B.

C.
D.

Obligation of Capital Expenditure 2 months from approval date.

Beginning Construction 3 months from capital obligation (or equipment purchase
order).

Pre-Licensure/First Use 12 months from capital obligation.

Full Utilization 12 months from first use.

For projects not involving construction or renovations.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A.

B.
C.

Obligation or expenditure of 51% of Capital Expenditure months from
CON approval date.

Pre-Licensure/First Use months from capital obligation.
Full Utilization months from first use.

For projects not involving capital expenditures.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A.

B.
C.

Obligation or expenditure of 51% Project Budget months from CON
approval date.

Pre-Licensure/First Use months from CON approval.
Full Utilization months from first use.
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13. PROJECT DRAWINGS

Projects involving new construction and/or renovations should include scalable schematic
drawings of the facility at least a 1/16” scale. Drawings should be completely legible and
include dates.

These drawings should include the following before (existing) and after (proposed), as
applicable:

A. Floor plans for each floor affected with all rooms labeled by purpose or function,
number of beds, location of bath rooms, nursing stations, and any proposed space for
future expansion to be constructed, but not finished at the completion of the project,
labeled as “shell space”.

B. For projects involving new construction and/or site work a Plot Plan, showing the
"footprint" and location of the facility before and after the project.

C. Specify dimensions and square footage of patient rooms.

$
L 4

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment 2. Full schematic drawings will be submitted as

soon as they are available.
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14. FEATURES OF PROJECT CONSTRUCTION

A. If the project involves new construction or renovation, complete Tables C and D of
the Hospital CON Application Package

See Attachment 3 for Tables C and D

B. Discuss the availability and adequacy of utilities (water, electricity, sewage, natural
gas, etc.) for the proposed project and identify the provider of each utility. Specify the
steps that will be necessary to obtain utilities.

Response: Utilities available on site include water, electricity, sewer, and natural gas.
Electricity (power) and natural gas service provider is BGE. Water and sewer are
Baltimore County utility services. All utilities at the building are adequate to
accommodate this project. Utilities will be extended from the service entrances to the

area of renovation.
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PART Il - PROJECT BUDGET

Complete Table E of the Hospital CON Application Package

Note: Applicant should include a list of all assumptions and specify what is included in each
budget line, as well as the source of cost estimates and the manner in which all cost estimates
are derived. Explain how the budgeted amount for contingencies was determined and why the
amount budgeted is adequate for the project given the nature of the project and the current
stage of design (i.e., schematic, working drawings, etc.).

L 2

o
) 4

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment 4 for Table E.

Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center Expansion
Statement of Assumptions
e Capital Cost

o Renovation building costs are based on a cost estimate of $250 per square foot
for renovation costs and experience of MedStar on other ASC projects.

o Permit costs of approximately $7,000 are included within the construction
management fee and have been broken out for Table E.

o Inflation costs were calculated using the MHCC methodology and index
presented on its website at
http://mhcc.maryland.gov/mhcc/pages/hcfs/hcfs _con/documents/con_cap cost i
ndex 3rd atr 2015.pdf

o Equipment costs include movable equipment of $300,000, systems (such as call
system, phones, etc.) of $20,000, operating room equipment of $608,500, pain
case equipment of $196,500 and PACU equipment of $75,000 ( 6 bays at
$12,500 each).

e Source of Funds

0 Cash of $487,569 (25% of the total project budget) will be funded by MedStar
Health.

0 Other (Loan from MedStar Health) of $1,462,706 (75% of the total project
budget) will be funded by a loan from MedStar Health. The loan will be amortized
over 11 years at interest rate of 3.5% payable in 132 equal monthly installments.
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e Terms of the Lease

0 The lease is for 11 years. Rent per square foot is $28, CAM, Tax & Insurance
per square foot is $2.45, Utilities per square foot is $2.25 and Housekeeping per
square foot is $4.60 (Administration $1.60, Janitorial $.20, Repairs/Maintenance
$1.00, Property Management $.80 Engineering Payroll $1.00)
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PART Il - APPLICANT HISTORY, STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY, AUTHORIZATION
AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION, AND SIGNATURE

1. List names and addresses of all owners and individuals responsible for the proposed project
and its implementation.

RESPONSE:

2. Are the applicant, owners, or the responsible persons listed in response to Part 1, questions
2, 3,4, 7, and 9 above now involved, or have they ever been involved, in the ownership,
development, or management of another health care facility? If yes, provide a listing of
these facilities, including facility name, address, and dates of involvement.

RESPONSE: MedStar Ambulatory Services is responsible for the development of the
Brandywine ambulatory surgery center in Prince George’s County, Maryland. It is not, nor
has it ever been, involved in the ownership, development, or management of any other
health care facilities in Maryland.

3. Has the Maryland license or certification of the applicant facility, or any of the facilities listed
in response to Question 2, above, been suspended or revoked, or been subject to any
disciplinary action (such as a ban on admissions) in the last 5 years? If yes, provide a
written explanation of the circumstances, including the date(s) of the actions and the
disposition. If the applicant, owners or individuals responsible for implementation of the
Project were not involved with the facility at the time a suspension, revocation, or disciplinary
action took place, indicate in the explanation.

RESPONSE: No.

4. Other than the licensure or certification actions described in the response to Question 3,
above, has any facility with which any applicant is involved, or has any facility with which
any applicant has in the past been involved (listed in response to Question 2, above)
received inquiries in last from 10 years from any federal or state authority, the Joint
Commission, or other regulatory body regarding possible non-compliance with any state,
federal, or Joint Commission requirements for the provision of, the quality of, or the payment
for health care services that have resulted in actions leading to the possibility of penalties,
admission bans, probationary status, or other sanctions at the applicant facility or at any
facility listed in response to Question 2? If yes, provide for each such instance, copies of
any settlement reached, proposed findings or final findings of non-compliance and related
documentation including reports of non-compliance, responses of the facility, and any final
disposition or conclusions reached by the applicable authority.

RESPONSE: No.

5. Have the applicant, owners or responsible individuals listed in response to Part 1, questions
2,3,4,7,and 9, above, ever pled guilty to or been convicted of a criminal offense in any
way connected with the ownership, development or management of the applicant facility or
any of the health care facilities listed in response to Question 2, above? If yes, provide a
written explanation of the circumstances, including as applicable the court, the date(s) of
conviction(s), diversionary disposition(s) of any type, or guilty plea(s).

RESPONSE: No.
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One or more persons shall be officially authorized in writing by the applicant to sign for and act
for the applicant for the project which is the subject of this application. Copies of this
authorization shall be attached to the application. The undersigned is the owner(s), or Board-
designated official of the proposed or existing facility.

I hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this application
and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Date Signature of Owner or Board-designated Official

President, MedStar Ambulatory Services
Position/Title

Robert J. Gilbert
Printed Name
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PART IV - CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA AT COMAR
10.24.01.08G(3):

INSTRUCTION: Each applicant must respond to all criteriaincluded in COMAR
0.24.01.08G(3), listed below.

An application for a Certificate of Need shall be evaluated according to all relevant State
Health Plan standards and other review criteria.

If a particular standard or criteria is covered in the response to a previous standard or criteria,
the applicant may cite the specific location of those discussions in order to avoid duplication.
When doing so, the applicant should ensure that the previous material directly pertains to the
requirement and to the directions included in this application form. Incomplete responses to any
requirement will result in an information request from Commission Staff to ensure adequacy of
the response, which will prolong the application’s review period.

10.24.01.08G(3)(a). The State Health Plan.

Every applicant must address each applicable standard in the chapter of the State Health Plan
for Facilities and Services. Commission staff can help guide applicants to the chapter(s) that
applies to a particular proposal.

Please provide a direct, concise response explaining the project's consistency with each

standard. Some standards require specific documentation (e.g., policies, certifications)
which should be included within the application as an exhibit.
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10.24.11.05 SURGERY Standards
A. General Standards.

The following general standards encompass Commission expectations for the delivery of
surgical services by all health care facilities in Maryland, as defined in Health General §19-114
(d). Each applicant that seeks a Certificate of Need for a project or an exemption from
Certificate of Need review for a project covered by this Chapter shall address and document its
compliance with each of the following general standards as part of its application.

1. Information Regarding Charges.

Information regarding charges for surgical services shall be available to the public. A hospital or
an ambulatory surgical facility shall provide to the public, upon inquiry or as required by
applicable regulations or law, information concerning charges for the full range of surgical
services provided.

L 2

o
) 4

RESPONSE: The Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center will make information regarding
charges for the full range of surgical services provided readily available to the public, upon
inquiry, or as required by applicable regulations or laws. It should be noted that Medicare and
Medicaid fees are fixed based on internal policies, and insurance companies fees are based on
their policies or on individual contracts with the ASC. Co-pays and deductibles will vary by
payer and by specific insurance plan. The ASC staff will work closely with patients to provide

information on charges, and to determine their co-pays.
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2a. Charity Care Policy.

a) Each hospital and ambulatory surgical facility shall have a written policy for the provision of
charity care that ensures access to services regardless of an individual's ability to pay and shall
provide ambulatory surgical services on a charitable basis to qualified indigent persons
consistent with this policy. The policy shall have the following provisions:

o
\ g

Q) Determination of Eligibility for Charity Care. Within two business days
following a patient's request for charity care services, application for medical assistance,
or both, the facility shall make a determination of probable eligibility.

(ii) Notice of Charity Care Policy. Public notice and information regarding the facility’s
charity care policy shall be disseminated, on an annual basis, through methods designed
to best reach the facility’s service area population and in a format understandable by the
service area population. Notices regarding the surgical facility’s charity care policy shall
be posted in the registration area and business office of the facility. Prior to a patient’s
arrival for surgery, facilities should address any financial concerns of patients, and
individual notice regarding the facility’s charity care policy shall be provided.

(iii) Criteria for Eligibility. Hospitals shall comply with applicable State statutes and
HSCRC regulations regarding financial assistance policies and charity care eligibility.
ASFs, at a minimum, must include the following eligibility criteria in charity care
policies. Persons with family income below 100 percent of the current federal poverty
guideline who have no health insurance coverage and are not eligible for any public
program providing coverage for medical expenses shall be eligible for services free of
charge. Ata minimum, persons with family income above 100 percent of the federal
poverty guideline but below 200 percent of the federal poverty guideline shall be eligible
for services at a discounted charge, based on a sliding scale of discounts for family
income bands. A health maintenance organization, acting as both the insurer and
provider of health care services for members, shall have a financial assistance policy for
its members that is consistent with the minimum eligibility criteria for charity care
required of ASFs described in these regulations.

L 4

RESPONSE:

Please see Attachment 5 for the financial assistance policy.
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2b. Charity Care Policy.

(b) A hospital with a level of charity care, defined as the percentage of total operating
expenses that falls within the bottom quartile of all hospitals, as reported in the most recent
Health Service Cost Review Commission Community Benefit Report, shall demonstrate that its
level of charity care is appropriate to the needs of its service area population.

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

Not applicable.
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2c. Charity Care Policy.

(c) A proposal to establish or expand an ASF for which third party reimbursement is
available, shall commit to provide charitable surgical services to indigent patients that are
equivalent to at least the average amount of charity care provided by ASFs in the most recent
year reported, measured as a percentage of total operating expenses. The applicant shall
demonstrate that:

Q) Its track record in the provision of charitable health care facility services supports
the credibility of its commitment; and

(i) It has a specific plan for achieving the level of charitable care provision to which
it is committed.

(iii)  If an existing ASF has not met the expected level of charity care for the two most

recent years reported to MHCC, the applicant shall demonstrate that the historic level of
charity care was appropriate to the needs of the service area population.

&
A g

L 4

RESPONSE:

Data available from MHCC shows the current average charity care provided by ASFs is 0.46%.

Although GCSC did not record the provision of charity care in CY 13 or CY 14, MedStar’s policy
that no patient is denied service based on ability to pay applies to this facility since MedStar
became a majority owner in January 2015. If any patient presenting to GCSC requests financial
assistance, the center staff works with that patient to find the most appropriate solution. Had
financial assistance been required with no other solution, it would have been provided. The
staff at GCSC in it new and expanded location will work with anyone that requests financial
assistance to consider alternatives for the patient, such as eligibility for other coverage. This
commitment is not limited to just the state average of 0.46%, but applies to anyone requesting
financial assistance.
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2. Charity Care Policy.

(d A health maintenance organization, acting as both the insurer and provider of health care
services for members, if applying for a Certificate of Need for a surgical facility project, shall
commit to provide charitable services to indigent patients. Charitable services may be surgical or
non-surgical and may include charitable programs that subsidize health plan coverage. Ata
minimum, the amount of charitable services provided as a percentage of total operating expenses
for the health maintenance organization will be equivalent to the average amount of charity care
provided statewide by ASFs, measured as a percentage of total ASF expenses, in the most recent
year reported. The applicant shall demonstrate that:

() Its track record in the provision of charitable health care facility services supports
the credibility of its commitment; and

(i) It has a specific plan for achieving the level of charitable care provision to which
it is committed.

(iii)  If the health maintenance organization’s track record is not consistent with the
expected level for the population in the proposed service area, the applicant shall
demonstrate that the historic level of charity care was appropriate to the needs of the
population in the proposed service area.

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

Not applicable.
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3. Quality of Care.

A facility providing surgical services shall provide high quality care.

(a)

An existing hospital or ambulatory surgical facility shall document that it is

licensed, in good standing, by the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

()
(©)

A hospital shall document that it is accredited by the Joint Commission.
An existing ambulatory surgical facility shall document that it is:

() In compliance with the conditions of participation of the Medicare and
Medicaid programs; and

(i) Accredited by the Joint Commission, the Accreditation Association for
Ambulatory Health Care, the American Association for Accreditation of
Ambulatory Surgery Facilities, or another accreditation agency recognized by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid as acceptable for obtaining Medicare
certification.

(d) A person proposing the development of an ambulatory surgical facility shall
demonstrate that the proposed facility will:

(i) Meet or exceed the minimum requirements for licensure in Maryland in the areas of
administration, personnel, surgical services provision, anesthesia services provision,
emergency services, hospitalization, pharmaceutical services, laboratory and radiologic
services, medical records, and physical environment.

(if) Obtain accreditation by the Joint Commission, the Accreditation Association for
Ambulatory Health Care, or the American Association for Accreditation of Ambulatory
Surgery Facilities within two years of initiating service at the facility or voluntarily
suspend operation of the facility.

L 4

RESPONSE:

L 4

Quiality will be a cornerstone of MedStar health facility at Timonium. The MedStar Quality,

Safety, and Patient Affairs Committee, a subcommittee of the MedStar Board, will have ultimate

oversight of quality efforts at the Timonium site. The Quality Director, working with each area of

service provision at the site, will manage the tracking of quality metrics and improvement efforts.

This individual will report to the MedStar Ambulatory Services Medical Director, who will report

results to the MedStar Quality, Safety, and Patient Affairs Committee, as well as to the entities

that provide physicians for the site. The MedStar Quality and Safety Department will provide
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support via the Director of Quality and Assistant Vice President. They will seek the
accreditation of the surgery center with AAAHC. The Quality and Safety Department is also
managing an ongoing effort to standardize clinical policies and procedures across the

consolidated sites in order to ensure consistent care.

Clinical Quality Excellence is one of the core values of the MedStar Health system. Oversight of
the proposed facility will benefit from a multi-layered system focused on clinical care excellence.
A Physician Leadership Council provides system-wide oversight, support and advocacy for the
clinical services provided by physicians in hospital and non-hospital settings throughout
MedStar Health, and coordinates engagement of physicians in MedStar’s quality and safety
initiatives. There is also a Chief Nursing Officer Council, which provides the same support for
nursing. In 2013, the two councils began meeting quarterly as a joint Chief Nursing
Officer/Chief Medical Officer (CNO/CMO) Council. The Council oversees the following system-

based committees:

e Clinical Informatics Council (formerly known as the Clinical Governance
Executive Committee)

e Transitions of Care Committee

e Healthcare Epidemiology and Infection Control (HEIC) Task Force

e Council for Ideal Obstetrical Care (CIOC)

¢ 30-Day Readmissions Committee

e Palliative Care Committee

¢ Quality & Safety Committees

Continuity and standardization, hallmarks of quality, are addressed with systems in place for
Quality and Patient Safety, Performance Improvement and Risk Management. At the system
level, The MedStar Vice President of Quality and Safety oversees the MedStar Clinical Care
Quality and Safety department, responsible for embedding a culture of safety and clinical quality
excellence throughout the system. In 2015, MedStar Health launched the MedStar Institute for
Quality and Safety which is now nationally recognized in the areas of quality and safety
education, transparency and patient/family partnerships. The Institute also benefits each entity
through relevant data reports and standardization of practice related to the latest evidence on

cost effective practices. The system-wide leadership structure supports individual entities by:

¢ Enabling early identification and communication of real and potential safety
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concerns across the system

Implementing system enhancements to drive standardization, evidence-
based practice, performance, and outcomes

Offering supportive consultation and coaching

Ensuring provider accountability.

Quality and Safety efforts include:

Participation in the University HealthSystem Consortium (UHC) database,
which provides a variety of performance improvement services to over 400
hospitals (includes academic and now their non-academic partners) across
the nation, being launched system-wide. This will standardize clinical quality
& performance data collection and reporting, provide robust data reports, and
“innovative solutions” from other UHC members, and in time, will provide
physicians the opportunity to better examine their own practice patterns and
benchmarks

a system-wide High Reliability Organization (HRO) effort, that included high
reliability training for all 27,000 MedStar leaders and associates. MedStar has
incorporated many of the proven risk-reduction strategies and tools across
the system including Safety Moments, Safety/Quality Huddles, Leadership
Quality/Safety Walk Rounds, SBAR, and STAR principles to name a few of
the many tools being used.

the MedStar Health Patient and Family Advisory Councils for Quality and
Safety (PFACQS) brings the patient’s voice into MedStar’s quality and safety
planning and projects, in ways that directly improve quality and safety
throughout the MedStar community. The PFACQS councils include one
system level council, 10 hospital based councils and an ambulatory care
council. System council membership includes ten nationally recognized
leaders in the quality and safety arena.

a Patient Safety Event (PSE) Management System across all entities, which
allows associates to report real or potential safety issues, including patient
harm, near misses and unsafe conditions. Over the last two years, close to
80,000 occurrence reports have been submitted allowing MedStar to identify
and focus our attention and resources on at risk areas making our care safer

and higher quality.
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Other system benefits

The Georgetown University School of Medicine is the principal academic partner of MedStar.
Most of the hospitals in the MedStar system are teaching hospitals. Each sponsors its own
graduate medical education programs and all are fully accredited by the Accreditation Council
for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME). In aggregate, the System enrolls just over 1,100
residents and fellows in 75 academic programs of graduate medical education. These
programs include virtually all adult specialty training and some pediatric programs;

approximately 48 percent of the enrolled residents are in primary care training programs.

MedStar Health Research Institute is the research arm for MedStar, providing scientific,
administrative, and regulatory support for research programs that complement the key clinical
services and teaching programs in all hospitals in the System. MedStar Health Research
Institute supports clinical research performed by private attending medical staff, hospital-
employed medical staff and by full-time research investigators. MedStar Health Research
Institute and its investigators participate in a wide range of research aimed at advancing health
and the quality of delivered care by linking to the major clinical service lines including
cardiovascular, diabetes, lipid disorders, orthopedics, cardiac surgery, rehabilitation, renal
diseases, anesthesiology, gerontology and women'’s health and safety. There is also active
investigation in diabetes, gerontology and women's health.

The changing healthcare environment highlights the importance of innovation and research as
elements for success. For example, the MedStar Institute for Innovation’s mission is to
catalyze, support and create innovation that advances health. The MedStar Health Research
Institute and MedStar’s partnership with Georgetown University, are important drivers of
success. The MedStar Innovation Institute’s role is to foster innovation throughout the MedStar
system by offering innovation services that include intellectual property and technology transfer
expertise; either in partnership with MedStar associates or with external strategic partners. An
Innovation Alliance has been created with the Cleveland Clinic with the first initiative focused on
the creation of a comprehensive technology and commercialization infrastructure. MedStar’s
National Center for Human Factors Engineering, the first of its kind research and applied

sciences center, is applying safety science methods to the healthcare environment.

MedStar is implementing an electronic medical record system that will be a feature of the

proposed facility. The EMR promotes communication between all providers within the MedStar
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system centered on each patient, so that all providers are aware, upon viewing the medical
record, all aspects of that patient’s care within the system. This system will improve patient care

at all MedStar facilities.
Specific Responses

(a)(c)(i-ii) Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center is currently certificated and in good standing
with the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (MDHMH), American Association
for Accreditation of Ambulatory Surgery Facilities (AAAASF) and licensed with Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid (CMS). See Attachment 6 .

Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center (GCSC) currently has ready access to extended support
services via MedStar Union Memorial Hospital for both laboratory and full radiological services.
Contract service agreements are in place for on-site anesthesia services and pharmacy
management oversight. Emergency transfer agreements are valid with two neighboring acute
care hospitals (MedStar Union Memorial Hospital and University of Maryland St. Joseph'’s
Hospital), both within 12 miles of GCSC and the new location in Timonium. All participating
physicians are credentialed, approved by both the Medical Executive Committee and Board of
Governors and meet the required standards of AAAASF and CMS. Extensive facility operating
policies and Quality Process Improvement (QPI) activities are documented and utilized as daily
guidance for maintaining environment of care, safety and well-being of patients, staff and
medical providers. The facility building will be constructed utilizing all applicable/ required FGI
standards/guidelines. See Attachment 6.

(d)(i-ii) It is the intention of MedStar Health to continue to operate the relocated ASC in
accordance with the standards and policy as noted above. Upon relocation of the facility and
completion of construction, it is the intention of MedStar Health to submit for certification from
MDHMH and seek licensure with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid. At this time, the
facility will apply for its accreditation survey with American Association of Ambulatory Health
Care (AAAHC). All policies will be reviewed and appropriately modified to meet any unique

operating needs and/or physical plant nuances of the new ASC facility.
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4. Transfer Agreements.

(a) Each ASF and hospital shall have written transfer and referral agreements with
hospitals capable of managing cases that exceed the capabilities of the ASF or hospital.

(b) Written transfer agreements between hospitals shall comply with the Department of

Health and Mental Hygiene regulations implementing the requirements of Health-
General Article §19-308.2.

(c) Each ASF shall have procedures for emergency transfer to a hospital that meet or
exceed the minimum requirements in COMAR 10.05.05.009.

&
A g

L 4

RESPONSE:

Formal transfer agreements are in place with University of Maryland St. Joseph Hospital, as the
proximal acute care hospital for all emergency patient transfers, as well as MedStar Union
Memorial Hospital. These hospitals are located within 5 and 13 miles respectively, for emergent
and non-emergent patient transfers. See Attachment 7

GCSC'’s current operating policy for Hospital Transfer shall be updated as appropriate to meet
COMAR and AAAHC requirements. The new facility location, 2118 Greenspring Drive,

Timonium, is within 6 and 12 miles respectively of both hospitals listed above. See Attachment
8.
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B. Project Review Standards.

The standards in this section govern reviews of Certificate of Need applications and requests for
exemption from Certificate of Need review involving surgical facilities and services. An
applicant for a Certificate of Need or an exemption from Certificate of Need shall demonstrate
consistency with all applicable review standards.

1. Service Area.

An applicant proposing to establish a new hospital providing surgical services or a new
ambulatory surgical facility shall identify its projected service area. An applicant proposing to
expand the number of operating rooms at an existing hospital or ambulatory surgical facility
shall document its existing service area, based on the origin of patients served.

L 4

&
A g

RESPONSE:

MedStar Health has one freestanding surgery center in the Central Maryland region, the Greater
Chesapeake Surgery Center (GCSC) located in Lutherville. The service area for the current
GCSC is depicted in the map below using the State Health Plan standard definition of primary
and secondary service areas at 60% and 85% patient origin respectively. See Attachment 9 for

a list of patients by zip code.
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Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center
Primary and Secondary Service Areas, FY 2015

wpan

D Secondary Service Area

1. Future Surgery Center
2. Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center ;n Leonardiown Park

L

Notes: Primary service area includes zip codes from which 60% of patients originate; secondary service
area includes the next 25% of patients

Source: Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, FY 2015 data

Since the relocated surgery center will be located less than four miles away in Timonium, the
service area is projected to remain consistent. Any projected growth plans are focused on the

geography surrounding the new ASC within a 30-minute drive time. This is a typical benchmark
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for consumers’ willingness to travel for ambulatory surgery and includes the MedStar

Orthopaedic practices from which ambulatory surgery volumes would be generated.

Map of Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center Primary and Secondary Service
Areas with 30-Minute Drive Time Indicated

B Primary Service Area | Crariotte Hod” - o (0 by
Secondary Service Area * Guantico
[l “haptica, ) =
1 Future Surgery Center Cokfornin
Sind 3 . Lexingtor
2 Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center j  Lesnardtown Park

Notes: Primary service area includes zip codes from which 60% of patients originate; secondary service
area includes the next 25% of patients

Source: Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, FY 2015 data
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2. Need - Minimum Utilization for Establishment of a New or Replacement Facility.

An applicant proposing to establish or replace a hospital or ambulatory surgical facility shall
demonstrate the need for the number of operating rooms proposed for the facility. This need
demonstration shall utilize the operating room capacity assumptions and other guidance included
in Regulation .06 of this Chapter. This needs assessment shall demonstrate that each proposed
operating room is likely to be utilized at optimal capacity or higher levels within three years of
the initiation of surgical services at the proposed facility.

@) An applicant proposing the establishment or replacement of a hospital shall
submit a needs assessment that includes the following:

(i) Historic trends in the use of surgical facilities for inpatient and outpatient
surgical procedures by the new or replacement hospital’s likely service area
population;

(if) The operating room time required for surgical cases projected at the
proposed new or replacement hospital by surgical specialty or operating room
category; and

(iii) In the case of a replacement hospital project involving relocation to a new
site, an analysis of how surgical case volume is likely to change as a result of
changes in the surgical practitioners using the hospital.

(b) An applicant proposing the establishment of a new ambulatory surgical facility
shall submit a needs assessment that includes the following:

(i) Historic trends in the use of surgical facilities for outpatient surgical
procedures by the proposed facility’s likely service area population;

(if) The operating room time required for surgical cases projected at the proposed
facility by surgical specialty or, if approved by Commission staff, another set of
categories; and

(ifi)  Documentation of the current surgical caseload of each physician likely to
perform surgery at the proposed facility.

L 4
L 4

RESPONSE:

Not applicable, as this project involves the expansion of an existing facility. See Review
Standard 3 below.
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3. Need - Minimum Utilization for Expansion of An Existing Facility.

An applicant proposing to expand the number of operating rooms at an existing hospital or
ambulatory surgical facility shall:

o
) 4

@ Demonstrate the need for each proposed additional operating room, utilizing the
operating room capacity assumptions and other guidance included at Regulation .06 of
this Chapter;

(b) Demonstrate that its existing operating rooms were utilized at optimal capacity in
the most recent 12-month period for which data has been reported to the Health Services
Cost Review Commission or to the Maryland Health Care Commission; and

(© Provide a needs assessment demonstrating that each proposed operating room is
likely to be utilized at optimal capacity or higher levels within three years of the
completion of the additional operating room capacity. The needs assessment shall
include the following:

Q) Historic trends in the use of surgical facilities at the existing facility;

(i) Operating room time required for surgical cases historically provided at
the facility by surgical specialty or operating room category; and

(iii)  Projected cases to be performed in each proposed additional
operating room.

L 2

RESPONSE:

MedStar Health's strategic and organizational responses to the changing health care

environment requires consolidation of physician offices in convenient locations as well as

movement of ambulatory surgical cases from hospital settings to less costly alternatives. The

existing ambulatory surgery center at GCSC cannot accommodate this planned growth. In fact,

GCSC cannot operate at optimal capacity now. Ambulatory orthopedic cases increasingly

require large operating rooms. The outdated facilities at the existing GCSC, such as the

location of the electrical and mechanical room, prohibits any necessary redesign or expansion

of the sterile core that would allow for operation at optimal capacity. Other issues prohibiting

optimal use of the current GCSC include:

Operating rooms in the current facility are of inadequate size and number to support

anticipated growth in procedures such as joint replacement and spine cases.
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e The procedure room is small and outdated and does not accommodate current
technology.

e The facility accommodates only two pre-op beds and three-four post-op beds/chairs.
This is inefficient as it prohibits more than one physician from performing a “full” case
load simultaneously.

o The space for instrument and equipment cleaning and processing is insufficient to
handle additional caseload.

e The location cannot accommodate the larger scale facility with physician’s offices.

The expanded GCSC will serve the population of the Central Maryland region as shown in the
patient origin of the existing ASC in Attachment 10. The demographics of this population are
described in Attachment 11. Sg2 projections of orthopaedic growth in Central Maryland is
12.5% by 2020. Additional volume is assumed to come from a shift of 35% of outpatient
orthopaedic cases currently performed on the MedStar Baltimore hospital campuses to the new
ASC. This number is based on patient origin and drive time of 30 minutes to the new ASC. See
also Attachment 12. The forecasted growth factor of 12.5% was also applied to this patient

population.

In order to determine the optimal number of operating rooms needed to support expected
growth, the following information was used:

e Total number of cases per year

e The average number of minutes per case including turnover based on current GCSC
experience; and

¢ MHCC's OR utilization standard.

In FY 2020, Year 3 of implementation of the project, 3.8 ORs will be needed as shown below:

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Cases 3,334 3,846 4,160
Total Minutes (including turnover) 300,051 346,160 374,426
Minutes per Case (including turnover) 90 90 90
Capacity per OR 97,920 97,920 97,920
OR Need 3.1 3.5 3.8
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The number of cases was derived through detailed analysis by MedStar Health leadership in
consultation with physicians who currently practice at the GCSC and physicians who intend to
move their cases to the new ASC. Letters of support from some of these physicians are
included as Attachment 13. The following methodology supports the number of cases expected
to be performed in the new ASC by 2020:

¢ Baseline volume for FY 2016 was used as the starting point for the analysis.
e Several volume growth assumptions were then layered on to the baseline volume including:

0 A forecasted 12.5% population-based volume growth by FY 2020 (2.4% annually) for
orthopaedic surgery in central Maryland with additional impact factors taken into
consideration. This methodology is a proprietary calculation by research company
Sg2 and includes factors such as:

= Population (e.g., population growth/decline and aging)

= Epidemiology (e.g., changes in disease rates and impact of prevention
measures)

= Economics (e.g., unemployment rates)

= Payment and policy (e.g., coverage expansion, cost sharing)

= Innovation and Technology (e.g., new technology, shift in care delivery sites)

= Systems of CARE (e.g., coordination and integration across sites of care)

= Potentially Avoidable Admissions (e.g., volumes expected to shift to
ambulatory settings)

0 An estimated 374 joint replacement and/or spine surgery cases are expected to shift
from inpatient to outpatient over the next five years. This assumption is included in
the market growth factor above. This shift may accelerate based on physician
practice patterns and payor expectations.

0 Additional volume is assumed to come from a shift of 35% of outpatient orthopaedic
cases currently performed on the MedStar Baltimore hospital campuses to the new
ASC. This number is based on patient origin and drive time of 30 minutes to the new
ASC. The forecasted growth factor of 12.5% was also applied to this patient
population. See Attachment 12 for a drive time map and patient counts by hospital.

0 The remaining volume growth is projected to come from MedStar regional growth
strategies including:

= Enhanced integration of orthopaedics across the MedStar system;
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» |Increased enrollment in MedStar insurance products including MedStar
Family Choice and MedStar Medicare Advantage;

» Reduced rates of MedStar employed primary care physicians referring
patients outside of the MedStar system;

= |mproved relationships between MedStar orthopaedic specialists and private
referring physicians;

= Increased productivity of MedStar orthopaedic and spine surgeons based on
consolidated office locations and less travel between the office, ASC and
hospital; and

= Recruitment of new orthopaedic, pain management and spine surgeons to
MedStar.

The following table details the projected volume methodology:
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Forecasted VVolume Growth per Sg2 Impact of

Change
FY 2016 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%
Outlook FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20
Total pain cases 441 452 462 474 485
9w Total sports cases 741 759 77 796 815
2 E
8 S Total shoulder cases 199 204 209 214 219
n o
O
o~ Total foot/ankle cases 368 377 386 395 405
Total Cases 1,749 1,791 1,834 1,878 1,923
o Total cases 0 718 1,426 1,457 1,490
e
% Joints
2 Total cases 0 0 51 77 102
£ .
qc,:’ Spine
& Total cases 0 0 23 34 45
=
o Total Cases 718 1,500 1,568 1,637
Total Cases 0 0 0 0 574
Grand Total
Cases 1,749 2,509 3,334 3,446 4,134
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4. Design Requirements.

Floor plans submitted by an applicant must be consistent with the current FGI Guidelines.

(@) A hospital shall meet the requirements in Section 2.2 of the FGI Guidelines.

(b) An ASF shall meet the requirements in Section 3.7 of the FGI Guidelines.

(c) Design features of a hospital or ASF that are at variance with the current FGI
Guidelines shall be justified. The Commission may consider the opinion of staff at the
Facility Guidelines Institute, which publishes the FGI Guidelines, to help determine
whether the proposed variance is acceptable.

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

This project will be designed in accordance with section 3.7 of the 2006 FGI Guidelines for

Outpatient Surgical Facilities and will meet the current Guidelines.

The proposed design for the new ambulatory surgery center at Timonium will employ the latest

programming, planning and design elements to maximize adaptability, efficiency, patient safety

and convenience, including:

appropriately sized ORs that can accommodate a wide range of surgical cases,
providing necessary space for instrumentation, equipment and maintaining the

integrity of sterile fields

properly zoned facilities that provide necessary dirty to clean to sterile movement for

staff, instrument and supplies.

adequately sized equipment storage areas, located to provide quick access to

operatories and eliminating cluttering of hallways

state-of-the-art mechanical and electrical systems, meeting all current guidelines for

air exchanges, temperature and humidity control and emergency power capacity

private pre and post-operative patient care stations that allow good separation

between patient, staff and family areas

Adequately sized staff areas, both in patient stations and in centralized stations with

easy visibility to patient care stations to provide privacy.
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5. Support Services.

Each applicant shall agree to provide as needed, either directly or through contractual
agreements, laboratory, radiology, and pathology services.

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

Support services, offering comprehensive radiology, pathology and laboratory services, are
currently available to GCSC via MedStar Union Memorial Hospital. All support services
available at MUMH will likewise be available to augment patient care in the relocated ASC
facility. Additionally, limited radiology and physical therapy services (per Health) will be

available in MedStar’'s medical office building housing the new ASC.
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6. Patient Safety.

The design of surgical facilities or changes to existing surgical facilities shall include features
that enhance and improve patient safety. An applicant shall:

@ Document the manner in which the planning of the project took patient safety into
account; and

(b) Provide an analysis of patient safety features included in the design of proposed
new, replacement, or renovated surgical facilities;

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

@) Document the manner in which the planning of the project took patient safety into

account; and

Certification and licensure — Patient safety is a hallmark of this project by replacing old, outdated
operating rooms, and replacing them with an expanded state-of-the-art facility. (See also
discussion at Review Standard B(3)). The surgery center will be Medicare certified and
accredited by the American Association of Ambulatory Health Care (AAAHC). In addition, the
proposed design for the new ambulatory surgery center at Timonium will employ the latest
programming, planning and design elements to maximize adaptability, efficiency, patient safety

and convenience, including:

« appropriately sized ORs that can accommodate a wide range of surgical cases,
providing necessary space for instrumentation, equipment and maintaining the integrity

of sterile fields

« properly zoned facilities that provide necessary dirty to clean to sterile movement for

staff, instrument and supplies

» adequately sized equipment storage areas, located to provide quick access to

operatories and eliminating cluttering of hallways

» state-of-the-art mechanical and electrical systems, meeting all current guidelines for air

exchanges, temperature and humidity control and emergency power capacity

» private pre and post-operative patient care stations that allow good separation between
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patient, staff and family areas

» Adequately sized staff areas, both in patient stations and in centralized stations with

easy visibility to patient care stations to provide privacy.

(b) Provide an analysis of patient safety features included in the design of proposed

new, replacement, or renovated surgical facilities;

Patient Safety — The new modern state of the art surgical center will be designed to the current
codes and designed for best practices and will incorporate the latest technology and equipment
for better outcomes. These improvements include larger square footage to accommodate new
larger and more equipment that is needed for different procedures, additional power for new
equipment, improved lighting, and improved environmental controls for both temperature and
humidity. The facility is designed to incorporate Best Practice and progressive surgical planning
strategies, including a variety of private and semi-private pre and post-operative patient care
stations, responding to the specific needs of patients. Staff, support and sterilization functions
are zoned to provide segregated access for patient, supplies and staff, creating efficient “dirty to

clean” and “unrestricted to restricted” access and circulation.

Page 44 of 72



7. Construction Costs.

The cost of constructing surgical facilities shall be reasonable and consistent with current
industry cost experience.

@ Hospital projects.

() The projected cost per square foot of a hospital construction or renovation
project that includes surgical facilities shall be compared to the benchmark cost of
good quality Class A hospital construction given in the Marshall Valuation
Service® guide, updated using Marshall Valuation Service® update multipliers,
and adjusted as shown in the Marshall Valuation Service® guide as necessary for
site terrain, number of building levels, geographic locality, and other listed
factors.

(i) If the projected cost per square foot exceeds the Marshall Valuation
Service® benchmark cost, any rate increase proposed by the hospital related to the capital
cost of the project shall not include:

1. The amount of the projected construction cost and associated
capitalized construction cost that exceeds the Marshall Valuation Service®
benchmark; and

2. Those portions of the contingency allowance, inflation allowance, and
capitalized construction interest expenditure that are based on the excess
construction cost.

(b) Ambulatory Surgical Facilities.

(i) The projected cost per square foot of an ambulatory surgical facility
construction or renovation project shall be compared to the benchmark cost of good
quality Class A construction given in the Marshall Valuation Service® guide, updated
using Marshall Valuation Service® update multipliers, and adjusted as shown in the
Marshall Valuation Service® guide as necessary for site terrain, number of building
levels, geographic locality, and other listed factors.

(i) If the projected cost per square foot exceeds the Marshall Valuation
Service® benchmark cost by 15% or more, then the applicant’s project shall not be
approved unless the applicant demonstrates the reasonableness of the construction costs.
Additional independent construction cost estimates or information on the actual cost of
recently constructed surgical facilities similar to the proposed facility may be provided to
support an applicant’s analysis of the reasonableness of the construction costs.

L 4

L 4
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RESPONSE:
This project involves the renovation of leased space. The cost per square foot of this project is

lower than the MVS benchmark for Outpatient Surgery Centers, as demonstrated below.

The following compares the project costs to the Marshall Valuation Service (“MVS”)

benchmark.
I. Marshall Valuation Service
Calculation
Outpatient (Surgical)
Type Centers
Construction Quality/Class A-B/Good
Stories 1
Perimeter 298
Height of Ceiling 14.00
Square Feet 2,380
Average floor Area 2,380
A. Base Costs
Basic Structure 369.05
Elimination of HVAC cost for adjustment 0
HVAC Add-on for Mild Climate 0
HVAC Add-on for Extreme Climate 0
Total Base Cost $369.05
B. Additions
Elevator (If not in base) $0.00
Other $0.00
Subtotal $0.00
Total $369.05
C. Multipliers
Perimeter Multiplier 1.1720368
Product 432.540181
Height Multiplier (plus/minus from 12') 1.046
Product $452.44
Multi-story Multiplier (0.5%/story above 3) 1
Product $452.44
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D. Sprinklers
Sprinkler Amount -
Subtotal $452.44

E. Update/Location Multipliers

Update Multiplier 1.02

Product $461.49
Location Multipier 1.01

Product $466.10
New Construction Square Foot Cost Benchmark $466.10
Adjustment for Renovation Only 68.39%
Final Square Foot Cost Benchmark $318.75

Please note the “Adjustment for Renovation Only.” MVS does not have a benchmark for
conversion of shell space in a medical office building (“MOB”) into an ambulatory surgical
center. The 68.39% “Adjustment for Renovation Only” derives from an approach that MedStar's
consultant (Andrew L. Solberg) on its MVS comparison did in the matter of Green Spring Station
Surgical Center (Matter No. 15-03-2369). In that review, MHCC Staff asked Mr. Solberg to
develop an approach for estimating an MVS benchmark for conversion of MOB space into an
ASF. He did so, using the benchmarks for generic “Medical Office Buildings” and “Outpatient

(Surgical) Centers.”

He noted that in Section 87, page 8, MVS shows the “Budget Differential Costs by Department”
(to which he refers to as Departmental Cost Differential Factors) for Hospitals (the only type of
structure for which MVS supplies these factors). The area of the MOB in which this project will
be located would be otherwise considered shell space (or, as MVS terms it on page 8,
“Unassigned Space”). MVS estimates that the Departmental Cost Differential Factor for this
kind of space is 0.5. Mr. Solberg assumed that the Departmental Cost Differentiation factor of
0.5 should be applied to the MVS benchmark for an MOB, to reflect the portion of the
benchmark that reflected only the shell.

In order to calculate a benchmark for only the fitting out of shell space in a generic MOB into a
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surgery center, Mr. Solberg subtracted the half the benchmark for Medical Office Building from
the benchmark for Outpatient (Surgical) Centers to obtain the benchmark for the fitting out of the
generic MOB as a generic surgery center. He then calculated the percentage that this
comprised of the full benchmark and calculated that this was 68.39%. He then applied that
percentage to the project-specific calculated full benchmark for Outpatient (Surgical) Centers to

obtain that project’s benchmark for renovation only. He has done the same thing in this project.

Il. Cost of Renovation

A. Base Calculations Actual Per Sqg. Foot
Building $663,858 $278.93
Fixed Equipment In Building
Site Preparation $0 $0.00
Architectural Fees $20,000 $8.40
Capitalized Construction Interest $0 $0.00
Permits $7,000 $2.94

Subtotal $690,858 $290.28

lll. Comparison
A. Adjusted Project Cost/Sq. Ft. $290.28
B. Final Square Foot Cost Benchmark $318.75
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8. Financial Feasibility.

A surgical facility project shall be financially feasible. Financial projections filed as part of an
application that includes the establishment or expansion of surgical facilities and services shall
be accompanied by a statement containing each assumption used to develop the projections.

(@) An applicant shall document that:

() Utilization projections are consistent with observed historic trends in use of the
applicable service(s) by the likely service area population of the facility;

(if) Revenue estimates are consistent with utilization projections and are based on
current charge levels, rates of reimbursement, contractual adjustments and
discounts, bad debt, and charity care provision, as experienced by the applicant
facility or, if a new facility, the recent experience of similar facilities;

(iii) Staffing and overall expense projections are consistent with utilization
projections and are based on current expenditure levels and reasonably anticipated
future staffing levels as experienced by the applicant facility, or, if a new facility,
the recent experience of similar facilities; and

(iv) The facility will generate excess revenues over total expenses (including debt
service expenses and plant and equipment depreciation), if utilization forecasts
are achieved for the specific services affected by the project within five years of
initiating operations.

(b) A project that does not generate excess revenues over total expenses even if
utilization forecasts are achieved for the services affected by the project may be approved
upon demonstration that overall facility financial performance will be positive and that
the services will benefit the facility’s primary service area population.

L 4

L 4

RESPONSE:

GCSC will be financially viable as shown in Table 4 Revenue and Expenses. The calculations
are based on fiscal year 2016 actual and projected volumes of the surgeons who will be
performing surgery at the center and projected SG2 rate of orthopedic growth in Baltimore
County (approximately 2.8% annually and then 2% for out years). Please see response to

review standard B(3) above for additional information.

Projected case mix is estimated from the MedStar Ambulatory Services Fiscal Year 2016 Long
Range Financial Forecast and is based on current case mix use of the orthopedic, spinal, joint

and pain management cases with some additional growth in pain management cases.
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Reimbursement rates are inflated based on guidance from MedStar Managed Care contracting

experience. Rates used were 3.5% in year one, 3.0% in year 2 and then 2.0% thereafter.

Staffing and overall expenses are inflated based on MedStar Corporate Long Range Financial
Forecast Guidelines, with some variability for consideration of the specific types of cases to be
performed at this site.

The facility will generate excess revenues over total expenses (including debt service expense s
and depreciation), if utilization forecasts are achieved for the specific services affected by the

project within four years of initiating operations.
See list of assumptions below that were used in the revenue and expense projections:
e Revenue

0 Volumes are based on current case mix use of the orthopedic, spinal, joint and
pain management cases with some additional growth in pain management

cases.

o Reimbursement rates are inflated based on guidance from MedStar Managed
Care contracting experience. Rate increases used are 3.5% in year one, 3.0% in
year 2 and then 2.0% thereafter.

0 Net Revenue includes contractual allowances, bad debt allowance and charity
care estimates.

e Expenses

0 Salary and Wages are based on experience at Greater Chesapeake Surgical
Center and on experience as to personnel needed for each staffing area. Rate of

salaries is based on current experience and market rates.

0 Benefits are at 20% of salaries and comprise of payroll taxes and health

insurance premiums.

o0 Contractual Services include laundry and linens and waste removal. These costs
are based on current experience and market rates for the purchase of these

services in the market place.
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Interest on project debt is based on terms of the loan at 3.5% over 11 years with

132 equal installments.

Project Depreciation is being depreciated over 11 years for leasehold
improvements, over 6 years for equipment, over 5 years for information
technology infrastructure and equipment, over 15 years for furniture and fixtures

and over 11 years for signage (interior and exterior) and security.

Supplies are based on project cost of $735 for ortho cases, $133 for pain cases,
$1,553 for spine cases, $6,375 for joint cases and $45,673 for fixed office supply

cost with inflation each year.

Billing and Management Fees include Management Fees, Annual Coding Audit
Fees, Miscellaneous Claim Fees (estimated at $2 per claim), Accounting Fees
from MedStar Central Business Office, Tax Preparations Fees and MedStar

Ambulatory Administrative Allocations.

Risk Management expenses include professional and business fees and are

based on current experience and market rates.

Other expenses include bank fees, software license fees, marketing, license and

credentialing fees and are based on MedStar experience.

Facilities costs include rent of $28.00 per square foot, CAM of $.20 per square
foot, real estate of $2.25 per square foot, utilities of $2.25 per square foot and
other of $4.60 per square foot. Other includes administration of $1.60, janitorial of
$.20, repairs & maintenance of $1.00, property management of $.80 and
engineering payroll of $1.00, all based on square foot.
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9. Preference in Comparative Reviews.

In the case of a comparative review of CON applications to establish an ambulatory surgical
facility or provide surgical services, preference will be given to a project that commits to serve a
larger proportion of charity care and Medicaid patients. Applicants’ commitment to provide
charity care will be evaluated based on their past record of providing such care and their
proposed outreach strategies for meeting their projected levels of charity care.

&
A g

L 4

RESPONSE: Not applicable.
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10.24.01.08G(3)(b). Need.

The Commission shall consider the applicable need analysis in the State Health Plan. If
no State Health Plan need analysis is applicable, the Commission shall consider whether
the applicant has demonstrated unmet needs of the population to be served, and
established that the proposed project meets those needs.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please discuss the need of the population served or to be served by the
Project.

Responses should include a quantitative analysis that, at a minimum, describes the Project's
expected service area, population size, characteristics, and projected growth. If the relevant
chapter of the State Health Plan includes a need standard or need projection methodology,
please reference/address it in your response. For applications proposing to address the need of
special population groups, please specifically identify those populations that are underserved
and describe how this Project will address their needs.

If the project involves modernization of an existing facility through renovation and/or expansion,
provide a detailed explanation of why such modernization is needed by the service area
population. ldentify and discuss relevant building or life safety code issues, age of physical
plant issues, or standard of care issues that support the need for the proposed modernization.

Please assure that all sources of information used in the need analysis are identified. List all
assumptions made in the need analysis regarding demand for services, utilization rate(s), and
the relevant population, and provide information supporting the validity of the assumptions.

Complete Tables 1 and/or 2 below, as applies.

[(INSTRUCTION: Complete Table 1 for the Entire Facility, including the proposed project,
and Table 2 for the proposed project only using the space provided on the following
pages. Only existing facility applicants should complete Table 1. All Applicants should
complete Table 2. Please indicate on the Table if the reporting period is Calendar Year
(CY) or Fiscal Year (FY)]

L 2
L 2

RESPONSE:
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TABLE 1: STATISTICAL PROJECTIONS - ENTIRE FACILITY by Fiscal Year

Table 1 Two Most Actual Current Projected Years

Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full

Years Projected utilization)

CY or FY (Circle) 2014 | 2015 2016* 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020
8. Ambulatory Surgical Facilities
a. Number of 2 2 2 2 4 4 4
operating rooms
(ORs)
e Total Procedures Not available
in ORs
e Total Cases in ORs | 1389 1,412 1,749* 2,509 3,334 3,446 4,134
e Total Surgical 110,895 | 100,739 | 99,631*** | 188,175 | 250,050 | 258,450 | 310,050
Minutes in ORs**
b. Number of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Procedure Rooms
(PRs)
e Total Procedures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
in PRs
e Total Cases in PRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e Total Minutes in 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PRs**

Notes: *FY16 projected based on four months actual and eight months budget.
*Per MHCC guidelines, does not include turnover time.
***Annualized based on five months actual.
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TABLE 2: STATISTICAL PROJECTIONS - PROPOSED PROJECT

(INSTRUCTION: All applicants should complete this table.)

Table 2 Projected Years
(Ending with first full year at full utilization)
CY or FY (Circle) 2018 | 2019 | 2020 |
8. Ambulatory Surgical Facilities
a. Number of operating rooms 4 4 4
(ORs)
e Total Procedures in ORs Not available
e Total Cases in ORs 3,334 3,446 4,134
e Total Surgical Minutes in 250,050 258,450 310,050
ORs**
b. Number of Procedure Rooms 0 0 0
(PRs)
e Total Procedures in PRs 0 0 0
e Total Cases in PRs 0 0 0
0 0 0

e Total Minutes in PRs**

**Per MHCC guidelines, does not include turnover time.
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The need for the additional surgical capacity is described above in response to review standard
B(3). Other factors also require the changes described in this application. First, expanded
ambulatory surgical capacity improves MedStar's ability to meet changing financial incentives.
The requirements of Maryland’s Medicare Waiver, and the Affordable Care Act, must be met by
moving appropriate cases to a lower cost setting than hospital campuses. The need for this
facility can also be described in terms of changing economic incentives, improved efficiency,

guality and safety, access, and patient satisfaction.

The operating rooms at the Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center have been in use for over 20
years. The practice has seen significant growth at their Lutherville office and at their Harford
County office. This generates further need for modern surgical capacity. The facility is now
outdated and needs significant modernization. Moreover, there are several smaller MedStar
Orthopaedic providers’ offices scattered in the Towson, Lutherville, Timonium and Cockeysville
area. Having multiple offices is inefficient for physicians’ time as well as staffing. Today,
physicians need to drive to multiple locations for office time and surgery days and staff is
duplicated in multiple locations. A consolidated office will allow physicians to be more

productive and for more efficient operations.

Five MedStar Orthopaedics offices along the York Road corridor will consolidate into one
location in Timonium. MedStar currently has only one freestanding surgery center in the Central
Maryland region, the Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center (GCSC) located in Lutherville. The
current patient base is based on several groups of physicians who are now employed by
MedStar Health. The largest proportions of patients are from central Baltimore County and Bel
Air in Harford County (see response to review standard (B)1, above). These physicians have
well-established MedStar practice sites in both areas and they are growing significantly. Moving
to a larger facility is critical for MedStar to continue to support current growth and future growth

of orthopaedics in the market in an efficient manner.

Expansion will allow consolidation of several smaller MedStar orthopaedic practices,

accommodating system-wide organization and improve efficiency of providers through:

-less travel time between offices for consults and reduced travel between ASC and
hospitals;

-consolidated staffing;

-improved workflow and patient convenience by offering relevant services such as
physical therapy and imaging in the same facility; and
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- use of the latest, state-of-art equipment and technology to provide the highest quality of
care in a safe environment.

MedStar Health is investing in this new facility to improve the quality of care and experience for
both patients and practicing physicians. The existing GCSC facility is outdated and needs to be
replaced. The size and location of the existing facility prohibit that location from being a viable
long-term solution. The new and expanded facility will allow MedStar Health to meet patient

and physician expectations for quality and safety, and convenient access, including:

e An appropriate number of operating rooms to fit current and future types of procedures;

e Large, state-of-the art operating rooms (~ 450 SF) designed to accommodate modern
equipment needs, supplies and storage, while maintaining minimal staff “traffic” within

the rooms, thus reducing risk of infection and sterile field contamination;

e Sufficient support space to provide pre and post-operative care in an efficient and safe

environment;

e Direct access from staff/physicians locker/lounge area to restricted core reduces

potential for extraneous contamination into restricted areas;

e Direct access from pre-op to restricted corridor (OR'’s) as well as OR’s to PACU assures

expedited “flow” and maintenance of patient privacy;

e Mirrored Pre-op/PACU patient bay areas adjacent to central support care core- design

facilitates operational efficiency and collaboration of patient care staff;

e The consolidated convenient location of ambulatory surgery plus physician’s offices and
other services immediately off Interstate 83; with a patient drop-off canopy and ample

surface parking improves access as well as patient satisfaction.
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10.24.01.08G(3)(c). Availability of More Cost-Effective Alternatives.

The Commission shall compare the cost effectiveness of the proposed project with the
cost effectiveness of providing the service through alternative existing facilities, or
through an alternative facility that has submitted a competitive application as part of a
comparative review.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please describe the planning process that was used to develop the proposed
project. This should include a full explanation of the primary goals or objectives of the project or
the problem(s) being addressed by the project. It should also identify the alternative
approaches to achieving those goals or objectives or solving those problem(s) that were
considered during the project planning process, including the alternative of the services being
provided by existing facilities.

For all alternative approaches, provide information on the level of effectiveness in goal or
objective achievement or problem resolution that each alternative would be likely to achieve and
the costs of each alternative. The cost analysis should go beyond development cost to consider
life cycle costs of project alternatives. This narrative should clearly convey the analytical
findings and reasoning that supported the project choices made. It should demonstrate why the
proposed project provides the most effective goal and objective achievement or the most
effective solution to the identified problem(s) for the level of cost required to implement the
project, when compared to the effectiveness and cost of alternatives including the alternative of
providing the service through alternative existing facilities, or through an alternative facility that
has submitted a competitive application as part of a comparative review.

L 4

&
A g

RESPONSE:

This project involves the expansion of the GCSC. As described above, consolidation of several
provider’s offices and expansion of the ASC will allow MedStar to manage these services more
efficiently. The replacement and expansion are driven by the need to replace the old, outdated

ASC, and the need to expand due to:
e improved facilities following replacement
e growth in the MedStar orthopedic services; and

e changing healthcare market needs to shift procedures to lower cost settings.

The following alternatives were considered by MedStar Health -
1. Status Quo

a. Continuing with the current GCSC is not ideal for many reasons. It does not
meet the need of the community in that it does not allow MedStar to provide high-

guality care in an efficient and cost effective manner to its patients. MedStar
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Health System has been looking for a way to move the kinds of cases that can
be safely performed in a freestanding center to a lower cost setting that would
satisfy patient preferences for receiving care at sites other than hospital
campuses, and physician preferences to operate in a more efficient setting.

Doing nothing would not help us achieve that goal and hence is rejected.
2. Shift GCSC cases to hospital outpatient surgery

a. Closing GCSC or shifting overflow of surgical cases to a MedStar Hospital
outpatient setting will shift the cases to higher cost setting and increase the load

on already busy hospital outpatient ORs. Hence, this alternative is rejected.

b. Newly implemented Medicare waiver and Affordable Care Act compel all
providers to move the surgeries to lower cost setting such as ambulatory surgery
center. MedStar intends to provide lower cost alternatives to continue to comply

with reimbursement requirements.

3. Expand at existing GCSC

a. Current GCSC site is limited from a space perspective and does not allow room
for growth and expansion. Additionally, any renovation would be very costly to

bring it up to the new codes and standards. Hence this alternative is rejected.

b.

Project Goals Status Quo | Shift to Hospital | Expand at existing Timonium
op site ASC

Provide room for current 0 3 0 5
volume and future growth
Improve access 0 0 3 5
Shift cases to lower cost 0 0 5 5
setting
Provide comprehensive, 0 0 3 5
coordinated Orthopaedic care
Create a state-of-art 0 3 3 5
Orthopaedic Center of
Excellence
Total Scores 0 6 14 25

Based on above criteria, the current project is the most cost effective alternative for meeting the

goals.
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10.24.01.08G(3)(d). Viability of the Proposal.

The Commission shall consider the availability of financial and nonfinancial resources,
including community support, necessary to implement the project within the time frames
set forth in the Commission's performance requirements, as well as the availability of
resources necessary to sustain the project.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide a complete description of the funding plan for the project,
documenting the availability of equity, grant(s), or philanthropic sources of funds and
demonstrating, to the extent possible, the ability of the applicant to obtain the debt financing
proposed. Describe the alternative financing mechanisms considered in project planning and
provide an explanation of why the proposed mix of funding sources was chosen.

e Complete Tables 3 and/or 4 below, as applicable. Attach additional pages as necessary
detailing assumptions with respect to each revenue and expense line item.

L 2

o
) 4

RESPONSE:

Table 4 is completed below.
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TABLE 3: REVENUES AND EXPENSES - ENTIRE FACILITY (including proposed project)

(INSTRUCTION: ALL EXISTING FACILITY APPLICANTS MUST SUBMIT AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS)

Two Most Actual | Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full
Years Projected utilization)

CY or FY (Circle) 20 | 20 20 20 [ 20 [20___ [20__

1. Revenue

a. Inpatient services

b. Outpatient services

c. Gross Patient Service
Revenue

d. Allowance for Bad Debt

e. Contractual Allowance

f. Charity Care

g. Net Patient Services
Revenue

h. Other Operating
Revenues (Specify)

i. Net Operating Revenue

Table 3 Cont. Two Most Actual | Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full
Years Projected | utilization)

CY or FY (Circle 20 [ 20 20 20 [ 20 (20 20

2. Expenses

a. Salaries, Wages, and
Professional Fees, (including
fringe benefits)

b. Contractual Services

c. Interest on Current Debt

d. Interest on Project Debt

e. Current Depreciation

f. Project Depreciation

g. Current Amortization

h. Project Amortization
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i. Supplies

j- Other Expenses (Specify)

k. Total Operating Expenses

3. Income

a. Income from Operation

b. Non-Operating Income

c. Subtotal

d. Income Taxes

e. Net Income (Loss)

Table 3 Cont.

Two Most Actual
Ended Recent

Years

Current
Year
Projected

Projected Years
(ending with first full year at full
utilization)

CY or FY (Circle)

20

| 20

20

20 J20___J20___ 20

4, Patient Mix:
A. Percent of Total Revenue

. Medicare

. Medicaid

. Blue Cross

. Commercial Insurance

. Self-Pay

. Other (Specify)

N | o (oW |IN |k

. TOTAL

100%

100%

100%

100% | 100% 100% 100%

B. Percent of Patient Days/Visits/Proced

ures (as ap

plicable)

1. Medicare

2. Medicaid

3. Blue Cross

4. Commercial Insurance

5. Self-Pay

6. Other (Specify)

7. TOTAL

100%

100%

100%

100% 100% 100% 100%
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TABLE 4: REVENUES AND EXPENSES - PROPOSED PROJECT

(INSTRUCTION: Each applicant should complete this table for the proposed project only)

Projected Years
(Ending with first full year at full utilization)

CY or FY (Circle)

2018

| 2019

| 2020

| 2021

1. Revenues

a. Inpatient Services

b. Outpatient Services

c. Gross Patient Services
Revenue

d. Allowance for Bad Debt

e. Contractual Allowance

f. Charity Care

g. Net Patient Care Service
Revenues

h. Total Net Operating
Revenue

$6,580,998

$7,283,214

$7,981,332

$8,276,273

2. Expenses

a. Salaries, Wages, and
Professional Fees, (including
fringe benefits)

$2,010,226

$2,146,382

$2,266,939

$2,360,772

b. Contractual Services

$93,829

$102,059

$110,194

$116,246

c. Interest on Current Debt

d. Interest on Project Debt

$72,870

$66,321

$59,539

$52,516

e. Current Depreciation

f. Project Depreciation

$453,513

$907,027

$907,027

$907,027

g. Current Amortization

h. Project Amortization

i. Supplies

$2,597,411

$2,916,028

$3,250,369

$3,405,022

j- Other Expenses (Specify)

$987,221

$1,162,722

$1,197,829

$1,215,426

k. Total Operating Expenses

$6,215,070

$7,300,538

$7,791,896

$8,05,007
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Under 2. Expenses, J. Other Expenses (Specify) include: Billing and Management Fees, Risk Management
Fees (both Professional and Business), Facilities Fees and Other Expenses including Bank Fees, Software
License Fees, Marketing, and Licensing & Credentialing.
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Complete Table L (Workforce) from the Hospital CON Application Table Package.

&
A g

RESPONSE:

Please see Attachment 14 for Table L.
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¢ Audited financial statements for the past two years should be provided by all applicant
entities and parent companies to demonstrate the financial condition of the entities
involved and the availability of the equity contribution. If audited financial statements are
not available for the entity or individuals that will provide the equity contribution, submit
documentation of the financial condition of the entities and/or individuals providing the
funds and the availability of such funds. Acceptable documentation is a letter signed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant. Such letter shall detail the financial
information considered by the CPA in reaching the conclusion that adequate funds are
available.

o
) 4

L 2

RESPONSE:

Please see Attachments 15 and 16 for audited financial statements.
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o If debt financing is required and/or grants or fund raising is proposed, detail the
experience of the entities and/or individuals involved in obtaining such financing and
grants and in raising funds for similar projects. If grant funding is proposed, identify the
grant that has been or will be pursued and document the eligibility of the proposed
project for the grant.

L 2

RESPONSE:

The project budget for the addition of two operating rooms at Greater Chesapeake Surgical
Center is $1,930,275. Approximately, $1,462,706 (75% of the total project budget) will be
funded by a loan from MedStar Health. The loan will be amortized over 11 years at interest rate
of 3.5% payable in 132 equal monthly installments. No grant or fund raising is proposed for this

project.
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e Describe and document relevant community support for the proposed project.

&
A g

RESPONSE:

See Attachment 13 for letters of support from several MedStar physicians involved in the
project.
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¢ Identify the performance requirements applicable to the proposed project (see question
12, “Project Schedule”) and explain how the applicant will be able to implement the
project in compliance with those performance requirements. Explain the process for
completing the project design, obtaining State and local land use, environmental, and
design approvals, contracting and obligating the funds within the prescribed time frame.
Describe the construction process or refer to a description elsewhere in the application
that demonstrates that the project can be completed within the applicable time frame(s).

o
\ g

L 4

RESPONSE:

Given that the renovations for the GCSC relocation of two operating rooms will be underway
when this expansion is approved, assuming prompt approval, there will be no need to stop the
renovations and restart. A seamless efficient renovation will mean quick completion of the
expansion. Our intent is that this expansion can be approved while the renovations for the
relocation of GCSC are underway, saving MedStar Health, and the healthcare system,
significant time and expense. The fitting out of two additional operating rooms under this

assumption is anticipated to take approximately 7 months.
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10.24.01.08G(3)(e). Compliance with Conditions of Previous Certificates of Need.

An applicant shall demonstrate compliance with all terms and conditions of each
previous Certificate of Need granted to the applicant, and with all commitments made
that earned preferences in obtaining each previous Certificate of Need, or provide the
Commission with a written notice and explanation as to why the conditions or
commitments were not met.

INSTRUCTIONS: List all of the Maryland Certificates of Need that have been issued to the
project applicant, its parent, or its affiliates or subsidiaries over the prior 15 years, including their
terms and conditions, and any changes to approved Certificates that needed to be obtained.
Document that these projects were or are being implemented in compliance with all of their
terms and conditions or explain why this was not the case.

L 4

RESPONSE:

The following certificates of need were issued to MedStar Hospitals over the prior 15 years:
05-03-2173 — Franklin Square new addition
08-03-2250 — Franklin Square adolescent psych
03-24-2117 — Good Samaritan renovations
06-15-2186 — Montgomery General new addition
09-15-2293 — Montgomery General renovations
07-18-2225 — St. Mary’s new addition
08-18-2248 — St. Mary’s expansion and renovation

Copies of these CONs have been requested from MHCC.
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10.24.01.08G(3)(f). Impact on Existing Providers and the Health Care Delivery System.

An applicant shall provide information and analysis with respect to the impact of the
proposed project on existing health care providers in the health planning region,
including the impact on geographic and demographic access to services, on occupancy,
on costs and charges of other providers, and on costs to the health care delivery system.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide an analysis of the impact of the proposed project. Please
assure that all sources of information used in the impact analysis are identified and identify all
the assumptions made in the impact analysis with respect to demand for services, payer mix,
access to service and cost to the health care delivery system including relevant populations
considered in the analysis, and changes in market share, with information that supports the
validity of these assumptions. Provide an analysis of the following impacts:

a) On the volume of service provided by all other existing health care providers that are
likely to experience some impact as a result of this project;

b) On the payer mix of all other existing health care providers that are likely to experience
some impact on payer mix as a result of this project. If an applicant for a new nursing
home claims no impact on payer mix, the applicant must identify the likely source of any
expected increase in patients by payer.

¢) On access to health care services for the service area population that will be served by
the project. (State and support the assumptions used in this analysis of the impact on
access);

d) On costs to the health care delivery system.

If the applicant is an existing facility or program, provide a summary description of the impact of
the proposed project on the applicant’s costs and charges, consistent with the information
provided in the Project Budget, the projections of revenues and expenses, and the work force
information.

L 2

RESPONSE:

Impact to MedStar Hospital Volume - MedStar Health intends to progressively shift
appropriate outpatient orthopaedic surgeries from outpatient hospital campuses to the new
ambulatory surgery center. The total impact on the Baltimore based MedStar hospitals is 1,637
cases by FY 2020, or 3.2% of hospital surgical volume, averaging about six cases per day over
four hospitals. The impact in FY 2020 is projected to be as follows:

e MedStar Franklin Square Medical Center — 396 cases or 2.0% of total cases

e MedStar Good Samaritan Hospital — 186 cases or 1.9% of total cases

e MedStar Harbor Hospital — 215 cases or 3.3% of total cases

e MedStar Union Memorial Hospital — 841 cases or 5.3% of total cases
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As part of regional strategic planning, MedStar Health is already well underway with the
development of MedStar Orthopaedics — a regional leader in orthopaedic and spine care. As a
percentage of cases shifts off the hospital campuses as shown above, there are plans to
continue MedStar's orthopaedic and spine inpatient growth through the recruitment of several
orthopaedic and spine surgeons whose primary focus will be inpatient care. MedStar also
anticipates continued inpatient growth of its cardiovascular program and associated inpatient

surgeries.

Impact on Access to Health Care Services for the Service Area Population - The new ASC
will provide more convenient access to needed and desired health care services for much of the
service area population. Access to the Greenspring Drive location is convenient just off 1-83
and there is abundant, free parking. For patients whose insurance companies are restricting
use of regulated hospital-based facilities for certain procedures, the new ASC will improve

access and reduce costs for patients with high deductibles and/or co pays.

Impact on Other Affected Providers - The additional cases will come from population growth,
programmatic growth and some market share shifts. Based on referral data from MedStar
employed physician practices, MedStar refers more than 300 patients outside of the system for
orthopaedic care annually. The expectation is that many of these patients will be able to receive
care within the system once the new orthopaedic center is open. Of the more than 300 referrals
leaving the system, more than half are going to various small pain management centers. The
remainder are spread among local hospitals including 8% to Johns Hopkins Health System, 8%
to GBMC, 7% to LifeBridge, 7% to Mercy, 1% to St. Agnes, and 11% to University of Maryland

Medical Center. These hospitals/systems would lose less than 10 referrals each.

Impact on payer mix at other facilities - Because the impact on volume at other facilities will

be negligible, as shown above, the expected impact on payer mix is too.
Impact on costs to the health care delivery system - Shifting ambulatory surgery cases from

the hospital setting to the freestanding setting responds to reimbursement incentives to reduce

costs to the health care system and patients.
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Attachment 1

Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center
Current Ownership



Attachment 1 — GCSC Ownership

Member Percentage Membership
Interest
MedStar Ambulatory Services, Inc. 51.00%
Leslie S. Matthews, M.D. 9.924%
John B. O'Donneli, M.D. 9.924%
All other owners <5%




Attachment 2

Concept Drawings
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Tables C& D



TABLE C. CONSTRUCTION CHARACTERISTICS

INSTRUCTION : If project includss non-hospital space structures (s.g., parking garges, medical office buildings, or energy plants),

complete an additional Tabla C for each structurs.

NEW CONSTRUCTION | RENOVATION

BASE BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS

Check if applicable

Class of Construction (for renovations the class of the building being renovated)”

Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D

I_Type of Construction/Renovation*

Low
Average
Good
Excellent

0000 OO0y
L0000 OoOc

Number of Stories

‘As defined by Marshall Valualion Service

PROJECT SPACE

_List Number of Feet, if applicable

Total Square Footage

Total Square Feet

Basement

First Floor

Second Floor

Third Floor

2,380

Fourth Floor

Average Square Feet

2,380|

|Perimeter in Linear Feet

Linear Feet

Basement

First Floor

Second Floor

Third Floor

_208'0°

Fourth Floor

Total Linear Feet

Average Linear Feet

298'0"

Wall Height (floor to eaves)

Feet

Basement

First Fioor

Second Floor

Third Floor

14' 0"

Fourth Floor

Average Wall Height

14'0"

OTHER COMPONENTS

Elevators

List Number

Passenger

Freight

Sprinklers

Square Feet Covered

Wet System

2,360]

Dry System

Other

Describe Type

Type of HVAC System for proposed project

dedicated air cooled chiller, dedicated ouiside air
hest recovery system, and gas fired humidification
sysiem

Type of Exterior Walls for proposed project




TABLE D. ONSITE AND OFFSITE COSTS INCLUDED AND EXCLUDED IN MARSHALL VALUATION COSTS
INSTRUCTION : If project includes non-hospital space structures (e.g., parking garges, medical office buildings, or

.energy plants), complete an additional Table D for each structure.

NEW CONSTRUCTION RENOVATION
COSTS COSTS
SITE PREPARATION COSTS
Normal Site Preparation
Utilities from Structure to Lot Line $30,000]

Subtotal included in Marshall Valuation Costs

Site Demolition Costs

Storm Drains

Hough Grading

Hillside Foundation

Paving

Exterior Signs

$0|

Landscaping

Walls

Yard Lighting

Other (Specify/add rows if needed)

Subtotal On-Site excluded from Marshall Valuation Costs

OFFSITE COSTS

Roads

:

Utilities

0}

Jurisdictional Hook-up Fees

Other {Specify/add rows if needed)

Subtotal Off-Site excluded from Marshall Valuation Costs

b |

Marshall Valuation Costs

TOTAL Estimated On-Site and Off-Site Costs not included in

$0

so|

Marshall Valuation Service*

TOTAL Site and Off-Site Costs included and excluded from

$0

*

*The combined total site and offsite cost included and exctuded from Marshall Valuation Service should typically equal the estimated
site preparalion cosl reported in Application Part I, Project Budget (see Table E. Project Budget). If these numbers are not equal,
please reconcile the numbers in an explanation in an attachment to the application.
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TABLE E. PROJECT BUDGET
Grealer Chesapeake Surgery Center Expansion

A. USE OF FUNDS
1, CAPITAL COSTS
a. Land Purchase $0f
b, New Construction |
(1) Building so|
(2) Fixed Equipment ] |
(3} Site and Infrastructure S0
{4) ArchitectEngineering Fess 50
{5) Parmits (Building, Utilities, Etc } S0
SUBTOTAL $0{
¢. Renovations |
[ (1) Building $663,858|
| (3) Fixed Equipment {notincluded in construction) soj
(3) Architect/Engineering Fees $20,000]
4) Pemnits {Building, Utilities, Ete.) 57,000
SUBTOTAL $690,858
d. Other Capital Costs
(1) Movable Equipment $1,200,000|
{2) Contingency Allowance 447,775
{3) Gross interest during construction pericd
{4} Other {Specify/add rows if needed) 50
SUBTOTAL $1,247.775
TOTAL CURRENT CAPITAL COSTS $1,938,633
e. Inflation Allowance §11,642
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS $1,950,276|
2. Fin inancing Cosl and Oiher Cash Haqulrarnems
a. Loan Placement Feas 50}
b. Bond Discount 50}
c. Legal Fees sof
d. Non-Legal Consultant Fees so|
e. Liguidation of Existing Debt 50|
{. Debt Service Reserve Fund so]
g. Other (Specify/add rows if needed) so]
SUBTOTAL $0]
3. Working Capital Startup Costs 50
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $1,950,275
B. Sources of Funds
1. Cash $487,569
2. Philanthropy (to date and expected) $0
3. Authorized Bonds 50,
4. Interest Income from bond proceeds listed in #3 $0)
5. Morigage 50
6. Working Capital Loans Hi|
7. Grants or Appropriations |
a. Federal S0
b. State 50
¢. Local $0)
8. Other (Loan from MedStar Heslth} 51,462,706
Other (Landlord Tenant improvement Alfowance) S0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ ,950,275'
Annual Lease Costs (1 applicable) |
1. Land sof
2. Building $601,052|
3. Major Movable Equipment so|
4. Minor Movable Equipment $0)
5. Other {Specify/add rows if needed) S0
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GREATER CHESAPEAKE SURGERY CENTER
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY AND PROCEDURE

SUBJECT: Financial Assistance

POLICY: Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center is committed to providing quality health care
for all patients regardless of their ability to meet the associated financial obligations and without
discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin or creed. Eligibility for free or
reduced fee services will be limited to those persons whose income meets the income guidelines
published in the Federal Register. All medically necessary care is covered under the program.
Purely elective and/or cosmetic surgery is not covered. Discounts are applied as outlined in the
Federal Register and the Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center Income Eligibility Guidelines.

FINANCIAL ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA - Criteria will be based on gross family income of
the patient and/or responsible party. Exemption allowance will be deducted for each person
living on the gross family income. Annual income criteria used will be 200% of the current
poverty guidelines published in the Federal Register. Some persons may exceed established
income levels but still qualify for charity services when additional factors are considered. Other
financial information such as assets and liabilities will be considered under this policy.

INCOME - Gross income, refers to money wages and salaries from all sources before
deductions. Income also refers to social security payments, veteran’s benefits, pension plans,
unemployment and workmen’s compensation, trust payments, child support, alimony, public
assistance, strike benefits, union funds, training stipends, income from rent, interest and
dividends or other regular support from any person living in the home or outside of the home.
Also included as regular income is 100% of all liquid assets (i.e. certificates of deposit, stock,
bonds, money market funds, etc.).

ASSETS - Real and chattel property may be evaluated for inclusion as regular income.

COVERAGE - All other resources will first be applied including Medicaid, before the discount
adjustment will be given. The individual must apply for available medical assistance funds as
appropriate in each individual case.

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS - Patients requesting a discount must apply prior to
treatment. Sliding fee applications will not be considered for accounts final billed and aged in
accounts receivable, unless there are extenuating circumstances. Requests for sliding fee
discounts will not be considered for patients who are in bad debt and did not respond to
collection activity or statements prior to write-off of account.

NOTE: During the application process, one or more of the following specific documents
must be submitted to gain sufficient information to verify income for each employed
Samily member.



a. Payroll stub or letter from employer verifying gross income

b. w2

c. Social Service Ward letters, letter from Federal or State agency indicating
the amount of assistance received

d. Copy of most recently filed federal income tax return.

e. Proof of other income for all persons living in the household

APPROVAL - Every effort will be made to identify a patient’s qualifications at or prior to time
of admission and/or service. However, it is recognized that there will be cases in which accurate
determinations at time of admission are not possible and that events may occur subsequent to
service which may affect a patient’s ability to pay.

Patients scheduling surgeries at the Center that have no medical insurance and are requesting
special fees, will be referred to the Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator.

PROCEDURE:

1.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator will consider alternatives for the
patient, (i.e, is the patient eligible for other coverage such as Medical Assistance or other
special programs?)

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator will inform the patient of the sliding
fee scale (See Attachment) and will ask the patient about family income to determine
eligibility.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator will work with the patient to
complete the request for sliding fee schedule with supporting documentation attached.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator will determine how many family
members are dependent on the income covered by patient and if there is additional
income in the family.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator will submit the application along
with the documentation to the Administrator/Patient Accounts manager for approval.

NOTE: If the patient’s request has not been approved prior to the scheduled
surgery, the surgery will have to be rescheduled. However, if the patient’s
medical condition requires immediate attention, they will be seen this visit only
at the sliding fee rate. They will be requested to bring any missing information
to the Center within seven (7) days. If the information is not received within this
time frame, the patient will be billed for the balance of the entire fee.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator or designee will make a
determination of probable eligibility for charity care within two business days following
a patient’s completed request for assistance.



10.

1.

12.

13.

If the application meets the income guidelines, it will be approved and the discount
amount will be assigned.

Notify the patient with the results of the application review.

Advise the patient of the discount amount and remind them that the balance of the
charges (if applicable) will be due at the time of surgery.

Give the patient a copy of the sliding fee application to present when receiving other
services.

Enter the discount amount into the computer system and store the approved application
and documentation in a discount approval file.

The patient’s financial status should be assessed at each visit.

The Medical Director and/or Facility Administrator or designee will inform the public of
the availability of financial assistance through the following means: make a copy of this
policy available to all patients, post a notice of this policy in the registration/business
office areas of the surgery center; and annually publish a notice in a local newspaper in a
format understandable by the service area population.

NOTE: This information is considered confidential and will only be accessed by
authorized personnel.

Approved by:
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AMERICAN P ASSOCIATION FOR ACCREDITATION OF AMBULATORY SURGERY FACILITIES, INC,

Medicara ASC » Medicare RHC » Medicars RA/OPTe ASF Surgical « ASF Oral Maxitiafacial » ASF Procedural
ACCREDITATION OFFICE: 5101 Washington Streat, Suile 2F « P 0. Box 9500, Gurnaa, llinals 80031 - Toll Free 1-888-545.5222
Phone B47.775-1570 o Fax 847-775.1985 « E-mait reception@panas! o » Wab Site: Wwww.aaaaal org

11/30/2015 Final Accraditation Decision Letter

Director: Richard G. Levine M.D.

Thank you for participating In this important quality assurance and patient safety process administered by the American
Association for Acereditation of Ambuiatory Surgery Facilities. The following report contains information relevant to the
conclusion your recent accreditation survey process including your facility accreditation demographic informatian,
accreditation decision, and recent survey history. Please note that AAAASE requires that all standards be met in order to
achieve accreditation and that 100% compliance must be maintained at all times. AAAASE reserves the right to conduct
additional surveys to validate the findings of previous surveys and to ensure continued compliance with

standards,

Attached you will find a report containing all of the deficiencies cited during the accreditation survey along with the
corrective action plans submitted to AAAASF. The Final Accreditation Dedision based on the findings and corrective action
taken In response to your recent survey process is Full.

Survey Detalls Below

Survey: 13817

Program AAAASF Surgical Facillty Number: 3723

DBA:

Mailing: Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center Survey Type: Full Accreditation Survey
1212 York ftoad Suite B101 Request Type: Re-Survey

Lutherville, MD 21093 Survey Begin: 11/23/2018

United States Survey End: 11/23/2015
Accreditation Decision; Full Expiration Date:  1/12/2019

Follow-up Method:
Plan of Correction Time Frame:

Recertification Survey Informatian:
Effective Date of Accreditation: 1/12/2016

Facility: 3723
Page 1 of 2
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11/30/2015 Final Accreditation Decision Letter
Recent Survey History: )
Survay Survey Description Survey Type Deficiencies Corrected Decision
13817 Full Accreditation Survey Re-Survey o ~Full
Facllity:

Greater Chesapeake Surgery 1212 York Road Suite 8101
Center

Sincerely,

>/

Thomas 5. Terranova, MA
Director of Accreditation

Lutherville, MD 21093

United States

Facility: 3723
Page 2 of 2
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STATE OF MARYLAND

DHMH

¥R Heartny

Qe 43 Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

Office of Health Care Quality
Spring Grove Center « Bland Bryant Building
35 Wade Avenue * Catonsville, Maryland 2]1228-4663

Martin O*Malley. Governor ~ Anthany G. Brown. Lt. (overnor - Josina M Sharfatein, M.D , Secretary

July 23, 2014

Barbara Chandler, RN

Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center
1212 York Road

Buildjng B, Suite 101

Lutherville, MD 21093

RE: ACCEPTABLE PLAN OF CORRECTION
Dear Ms. Chandier:

@ We have reviewed and accepted the Plan of Correction submitted as arcsult of a recertification
survey completed at your facility on June 12, 2014.

Please be advised that an unannounced follow-up visit may occur prior to the standard survey
to ensure continual compliance.

If there are any questions concerning this notice, please contact this Office at 410-402-8040,

Singerely, y
[ '
Barl Pro ger

Ambulatory Care Pro
Office of Health Care ality

Toll Free 1-877-4MD-DHMH « TTY for Disabled - Maryland Relay Service 1-800-735-225R
Iﬁ e T WED SiteT W IR Ty Iahd gov =G
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STATE OF MARYLAND

DHMH

Maryland Department of Health and Menta] Hygiene
201 W. Preston Street = Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Martin O"Mallcy, Governor - Anthany G. Brown. Lt. Govemor — Joshua M, Sharfetein. M.D . Seerotary

September 23, 2014
Ms. Barbara Chandler, RN
Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center
1212 York Road Bldg B Suite 101
Lutherville, MD 21093
PROVIDER #: 21C0001057

RE: ACCEPTABLE PLAN OF CORRECTION
0 Dear Ms. Chandler:

We have reviewed and accepted the Plan of Cormrection submirted as a result of a LIFE SAFETY
CODE SURVEY completed at your facility on July 29, 2014, We are sccepting your plan of
cotrection including the date by which the deficiencies will be corrected as well as the addtional
evidence you have submitted to ensure that the deficiencies do not recur, and conclude that you have
achieved compliance with the Life Safety Code requirements as of September 22, 2014,

Please be advised that an unannounced follow-up visit may oceur prior to the standard survey
to ensure continual compliance.

If there are any questions concerning this notice, please contact Debra Munford at (410) 402-8078.

Sincerely,

Lo

Heaith Facilities Survey Coordinator
Office of Health Care Quality

0 cc: File

Toll Free 1-877-4MD-DHMH « TTY-‘Mmland Relay Service 1-800-733.225%8
Web Site: www.dhmh.maryland gov
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STATE OF MARYLAND
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE QUALITY
SPRING GROVE CENTER -
BLAND BRYANT BUILDING
55 WADE AVENUE
CATONSVILLE, MARYLAND 21228

License No. A1057

Issued to:  Greater Chesapeake Strgery Centes, LEC
1212 York Road Bldg B Suite 10]
Lutherville, MD 21093

. Type of Facility or Community Program: AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER

Date Issued: June 16, 2015

7 F?SPECIA'LTIES: Orthopedic and Pain Management

Aurtharity to operwe in this State is granted o the above eptity pursuant to The Health-General Article, Title 19 Annotead
Code of Maryland, including all spplicable rules end regulstions prommulgated there under. This document is mot
transferable.

Expiration Date: June 16, 2018

Director
Falstficatfon of a license shall subject the perpetrator to criminal prosscution and the- tmpasition of civil fines.
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Patient Transfer Agreement
@ By and Between
University of Maryland St. Joseph Medical Center, LLC
and
Greater Chesapeake Surgery Canter, LLC

THIS PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into and
is effective as of the latest date(s) set forth on the signature lines below (the “Effective
Date") and is by and between University of Maryland St. Joseph Medical Center, LLC
(“Receiving Facility’) and Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, LLC (“Transferring
Facility").

WHEREAS, both Receiving Facility and Transferring Facility desire, by means of
this Agreement, o insure continuity of care and treatment appropriate to the needs of
patients in Recsiving Facility, and at Transferring Facility, utilizing the knowledge and
other resources of bath in a coordinated and cooperative fashion to improve the care of
patients.

NOW THEREFORE, in consgideration of the promises, and the mutual covenants
and agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. AGREEMENTS OF TRANSFER

@ A. Regeiving Facility. Receiving Facility agrees to accept the transfer of patients
from Transferring Facility in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

B. Transferring Fagility. Transferring Facility agrees to effect transfers of
patients to Receiving Facility in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

2, CONDITIONS OF TRANSFER

A. Patient Transfers. The decision to transfer a patient will invoive the attending
physician, the patient (and his/her representatives, as appropriate),
Transferring Facility and Receiving Facility in accordance with this
Agreement. The need for the transfer of a patiant from Transferring Facility to
Receiving Facility shall be determined by the patient's treating/attending
physician in histher independent professional judgment. When the
determination is made that a transfer is appropriate, Transferring Facility shall
immediately inform Receiving Facility of the impending transfer. Receiving
Facility agrees to admit the patient as promptly as possible, provided that all
conditions of eligibility for admission are met and bed space Is available to
accommodate the patient. Prior to transferring the patient, Transfemring
Facility must receive confirnation from Receiving Facility that it can accept

@ the patient.
B. Transgfer Congsent. Transferring Facility shall have responsibility for obtaining

1
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consent from the patient (or, if applicable, from the patient's authorlged
representative) to the transfer in accordance with all applicable law. Nothing
in this Agreement shall restrict a patient's freedom of choice to choose to be
transferred to an institution other than Receiving Facility.

C. Transportation of Patient. Transferring Facility shali have the responsibility
for arranging transportation of the patient to Receiving Facility, including the
selection of the mode of transportation at the apprapriate level of care for the
patient. Until the patient is admitted to Receiving Facility, Receiving Facility
shall have no responsibility for the patient's care.

D. Provision _of Information. The parties agree to provide each other with the
names or classifications of persons authorized to initiate, confirm, and accept
the transfer of patients on behalf of the ather.

E. Patient Records. The parties agree to utilize appropriate and mutually
acceptable forms to appropriately document pertinent medical and
administrative information, which records shall accompany a patient being
transferred from Transferring Facility to Receiving Facility. The information
shall include the following patient information:

(i Patient’s name, address, age,

(i) Name, address, and telephone number of patient's guardian,
authorized agent or surrogate decision-maker,

(i) Any information available to Transferring Facilty concerning
advance directives of the patient;

(iv) Patient's third party billing data;

(v)  History and physical;

(viy  Discharge summary;

(vij)  All operative and treatment reports;
(vili) Current care plan;

(ix) Name, address, and phone number of physician referring the
patient;

{x) Name of physician in Receiving Facility to whom the patient is to be
transferred;

(xij Name of physician at Receiving Facility who has been contacted
about patient; and



@
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(xii) Any other information necessary to continue the patient's treatment
without interruption, including the maintenance of the patient dgqng
transport and treatment of the patient upon arrival at Receiving

Facility.
F. Property of Patient. The parties agree to utilize appropriate and mutually

acceptable forms to inventory a patient's personal effects and valuables,
which form shall accompany the patient during transfer. Each party also
agrees to appropriately safeguard the patient's property in accordance with
its policies.

G. Quipatient Diagnastic Services. Receiving Facility agrees to permit the
transfer of patients from Transferring Faclity for the purpose of receiving
diagnostic services ordered by a physician in the outpatient department(s) of
Receiving Facility. Transferring Facility will provide patient care personnel to
accompany any patient transferred to Receiving Facility under this section.

H. Billing. Receiving Facility and Transferring Facility agree that the party that
directly renders services to a patient shall bill and collect for its services from
the patient, third party insurance coverage, or other sources typically billed by
such party. Neither Receiving Facllity nor Transferring Facility shall have any
liability to the other party for such charges; provided, however, that Receiving
Facility may bill Transferring Facility directly if Transferring Facility assumes
responsibility for payment to Recelving Facility, for the reasonable cost of any
emergency or outpatient services performed by Receiving Facility for patients
of Transferring Facility, if such services are not payable to Recslving Facility
under the terms of any third party insurance coverage.

I. Utilization Review. Transferring Facliity and its Medical Director shall fully
cooperate with the Utilization Review activities of Receiving Facility.

3. TERM

A. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of cne year
commencing on the Effective Date and terminating on the first anniversary
thereof, unless terminated eariier in accordance with the terms hereof.

B. After the initial term, this Agreement shall automatically continue in effect
(with the initial term, as thus extended, the "Term"), on the then current tarms
and conditions of the Agreement until the Agreement is terminated by either
party in accordance with the terms hereof.

C. Either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, upon sixty
(60) days' advance written notice to the other party. However, if either party
shail have its license to operate revoked by the State of Marytand, or lose its
certification, this Agreement shall tenminate on the date that such revocation
bacomes effective.



3
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4,

iNSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

A. insyrance. Each party shall, at its sole cost and expense and at all.ﬁmes
during the term of this Agreement, procure and maintain professional liability
insurance coverage (including personal injury, property damage, and
products liability) applicable to its performance and the performance of its
employees and agents hereunder, in a minimum amount of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) in
the aggregate. At the other party's request, a party shall deliver to the other
party documentation confirning the required insurance coverages. The
faregoing requirement that a party procure insurance shall not be construed
as in any manner limiting the extent to which a party has agreed to defend,
indemnify, protect, and hold hammiess the other party, its officers, directors,
affiliates, employees, and agents pursuant to this Agreement.

B. Indemnification. Each party shall indemnify and hoid the other party, it
officers, employees and agents harmless from and against any and ail
liabilities, losses, claims, damages, awards, penalties, or injuries, including
reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from or arising out of the activities to be
carried out pursuant to the obligations of this Agreement, but only in
proportian to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attomeys fees, or
claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from the negligent acts
or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, agents or employees;
provided that the indemnifying party is promptly notified of any such claims.
The indemnifying party shall have the sole right to defend such claims at its
own expense. The other party shall provide, at the indemnifying party’s
expense, such assistance In investigating and defending such claims as the
indemnifying party may reasonably request. This indemnity shali survive the
termination of this Agreement.

GENERAL

A. Independent Contractors. In the performance by each party of its obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, each party and all of its employees and agents
shall be, and will remain at all fimes, independent confractors, and nothing
herain contained shall be construed to create or establish a partnership, joint
venture, or any other business relationship between the parties other than
that of independent contractors.

B. Compliance with Law. Each party shall comply with, and shall ensure that its
employees, agents, representatives and contraclors (excluding the other
party) comply with, all applicable laws in its/their performance of this
Agreement.

C. Advertising and Public Relgtions. Neither party shall use the name of the
other in any promotional or advertising material unless the party whose name

is to be used first reviews and approves the intended promotion or
advertisement. The parties shall deal with each other in good faith, and each

4
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party shall maintain good public and patient relations and ef_ﬁclently handle
@ complaints and inquiries with respect to transferred or trangferring patients.

D. Non-Exclusive Agreement: No Qbligation to Refer. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be construed as limiting the rights of either party to affiliate, contract of
enter into a transfer agreement with any other facility or entity. In addition,
nothing in this Agreement shall require either Receiving Facility or
Transferring Facility to refer or transfer any patient to the other for care, itemns
or services.

E. Anti-Fraud and Abuse. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an
offer or payment by one party to the other party or any affiliate of the other
party of any remuneration, whether directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly,
intended 1o induce or encourage patient referrals or for recommending or
arranging the purchase, lease or order of any item or service.

F. Nondiscrimination. The parties agree that the transfer of a patient pursuant to
this Agreement shall not be predicated upon discrimination based on race,
religion, national origin, age, sex, physical condition or economic status. The
parties also agree that the transfer or receipt of patients shall not be based
upon a patient’s inability to pay for services rendered by the transferring or
receiving institution or a patient's source of payment.

G. HIPAA Compliance. Neither Receiving Facility nor Transferring Facility is
@ serving in the capacity of a “business associate” (as defined under 45 C.F.R.
Sec. 164.501) of the other party in the performance of services hereunder.
Nevertheless, both parties agree to comply with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as codified at 42 U.8.C. Sec.
1302d {*HIPAA") and any current and/or future reguiations promulgated
thereunder including, without limitation, the federal privacy regulations
contained In 45 C.F.R., Parts 160 and 164, the federal security standards
contained in 45 C.F.R, Part 142, and the federal standards for electronic
transactions contained in 45 C.F.R., Parts 180 and 162, all collectively
referred to herein as “HIPAA Requirements®). Each party agrees not to use
or disclose any protected health information (as defined in 456 C.F.R Sec.
160.103) other than as permitted by HIPAA Requirements.

H. Notices. All notices hereunder shali be in writing, and shall be delivered by
hand, sent by a courier service or mailed, postage prepaid, registered, or
certified mail receipt requested to the addresses set forth on the signature
lines hereto, which may be changed at any time by any party in accordance
with this notice provision. Any notice hereunder shall be deemed given five
(5) business days after malling, if given by mailing in the manner provided
above, or on the date delivered or transmitted if given by hand or courier
service,

@ . Assignment. The parties shall not assign or otherwise transfer any
ragponsibilities due under the Agreement without the express written consent

S
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of the other party.

J. Ethical and Refigious Directives. Transferming Facility agrees that its
performance under this Agreement shall be in accordance with the Ett)lcai and
Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, Fifth Edition, as
promulgated by the United States Conference of Catholic Bishops, as amended
from time to time, and as interpreted by the local bishop (the "Directives”). As of
the Effective Date, the Directives are available at the following websie:
hitp://www.usceb, org/about/doctrine/ethical-and-religious-directives/.  In the
event that Receiving Faciiity determines In good faith that Transferring Facility
has falled to comply with its your obligations under this Section, Transfeming
Facility shall be considered fo be in material breach of this Agreement.

K. Waiver. No walver by either party of any breach or default in performance by
the other party, and no failure, refusal or neglect to exercise any right, power
or remedy given to eithar party hereunder or to insist upon strict compliance
with or perfformance of all obligations under this Agreement, shall constitute a
waiver of the provisions of this Agreement with respect to any subsequent
breach or a waiver by such party of its right at any time thereafter to require
exact and strict compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

L. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particutar provision of
this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or
unenforceable provisions were omitted.

M. Constryction: Counterparts. The headings used herein are for convenience
only and the parties agree that such headings are not to be construed to be
party of this Agreement or to be used to determine the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in any
number of counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original and all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

N. Goveming Law; Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by,
and construed in accordance with, the laws of the jurisdiction of Receiving

Facility. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding on
Receiving Facility and Transfaerring Facility and their respective successors
and permitted assigns.

O. Legal Costs. in the event of judicial or other legal action(s) to enforce this
Agreement, the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to collect from
the other party all of the costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’
fees) of such action.

P. Entire Agre nt; ifications; Ch in . This Agreement
conslitutes the complete understanding of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all other agreements, either
oral or in writing between the parties hereto with respsct to the subject matter

6
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hereof, and no other agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement that is not contained herein shall be valid or binding.
Any amendments or modifications to this Agreement shall be of no force and
effect unless in writing and signed by both Transferring Facility and Receiving
Facility.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to the
executed, under seal, by their duly authorized officers as of the day and year first written
above.

RECEIVING FACILITY TRANSFERRING
FACILITY

By: 6?,.4 b~y — By: m

Gual bunoinpns /i‘c[{ﬂ%ﬁ'e%\uﬁ
Name Name  Mihgd Levint MO
i | wrptnst Wil &L Dircow

Title Title

(2 vl L1518
Date Date
Adda&_’»s' Address:

UM - St Joseph Medi od Carber &L5C
Teol Osler Drive, VAL oL
TJowson, MO 24204 Ag &\
Leaniis, M2 24042
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—~ 201 E. University Parkway
— Baktimore, MD 21218
. 410-554-2260 rronz
MedStar Union 410358265
e unionmemorial,arg

@ Memorial Hospital St 5.8, D

Vice President, Medical Affairs
Administration

February 11, 2015

Barbara Chandler, BSN, RN
1212 York Road, Suite B-101
Lutherville, MD 21093

Dear Barbara,

Attached please find one original fuily executed copy of the Patient Transfer Agreement between
MedStar Union Memorial Hospital and Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center, LLC.

if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 410-554-2260.
Sincerely,

@ Stuart 8. Bell, M.D.
Vice President, Medical Affairs

Knowledge and Compassion
Focused on You
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THIS PA TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement™), made and entered into this

19 day of Lrss8 38515 by st berreen de (“Hospital™)
and &M&Qamg‘&ﬂ#%_]z (“Facility”).
WITNESS

The Hospital is a nonprofit corporation that operates a hospital to provide access to patient
care for the residents of its service area.

The Hospital and Facility have determined that it would be in the best interest of patient care
and would promote the optimum use of both facilities to enter into a transfer agreement for the
transfer of patients for emergency medical services from the Facility to the Hospital.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this
Agreement, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
acknowledged, Hospital and Facility agree as follows:

@ I Term. This Agreement shall commence on the day and year first above written and shall

' continue for a period of onc year, and after that time it shall be renewed automatically for
successive period of one (1) year, unless sooner terminated as provided for in this
Agreement.

2, Purpose of Agrecment. The Facility agrees to transfer to the Hospital and, within its
capability, the Hospital agrees to receive from the Facility, patients in need of emergency
hospital care.

3 Patient Transfer. The need for transfer of a patient from the Facility to the Hospital shall be
determined by the patient’s attending physician, When a transfer determination has been
made, the Facility shall immediately notify the Hospital of the impending transfer. Prior to
moving the patient, the Facility must receive confirmation from the Hospital that it can
accept the patient.

Hospital agrees, within its capability, to admit al! emergency patients directed to its
emergency room by the State of Maryland’s medical emergency system and as otherwise
required by State of Maryland and federal laws. The Hospital agrees, within its capability, to
provide all necessary and available diagnostic and therapeutic services to the transferred
patient.

@
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The Facility agrees to accept the patient as a resident of the Facility after the patient is no

@ longer in need of acute care, as reasonably determined by the patient’s attending physician,
and in accordancg with Facilities reasonable bed-hold policies, an updated copy of which will
be provided to the Hospital. The Facility will notify the hospital of any behavioral or
payment problems prior to transfer of a patient and the parties will agree on a plan of care for
post-acute services. Facility will not refuse to readmit patients unless prior notice and
agreement has been arranged.

4, Erovision of Information. The Hospital shall provide the Facility with the names or
classifications of Hospital persons authorized to initiate, confirm and accept the transfer of

patients on behalf of the Hospital. The Hospital shall state specifically where transferring
patients are to be delivered at its premises.

5. Patient Records. The Facility agrees to adopt an appropriate and mutually acceptable
standard transfer form for medical and administrative information to accompany the patient
from the Facility to the Hospital. The transfer form shall include, when appropriate, the
following:

A Patient’s name, address, telephone numbser, if known, and age; and name, address and
telephone number of the next of kin;

Patient’s third party billing date;

History of the injury or treatment;

Condition on admission;

Vital signs pre-hospital and at the time of transfer;

Treatment provided to patient, including medications given and route of
administration;

Laboratory and X-ray findings, including films (if available);

Fluids given, by type and volume;

Name, address, and phone number of physician referring patient;

Name of physician in Hospital to whom patient is to be transferred; and

Name of physician of Hospital who has been contacted about patient.

@
TmoOm

RErTo

The Facility agrees to supplement this information as necessary for the maintenance of the
patient during transport and treatment upon arrival at the Hospital. The records described
above shall be placed in the custady of the person in charge of the transporter who shall sign
a receipt for the medical records and in turn shall obtain areceipt from the Hospital when it
receives the records. It is the Facility’s responsibility to assure that the patient’s medical
records are delivered to the Hospital with the transfarred patient,

6. Transfer Consent. The Facility agrees to obtain the patient’s informed consent and to make
any notification to the next of kin or others regarding the patient’s transfer under this
Agreement as required by Maryland laws.
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(2 Fayment for Services. The patient is primarily responsible for payment for carc received at
@ either the Facility or the Hospital. Each party shall be responsible only for collecting its own
payment for services rendered to the patient. This Agreement shall not be interpreted to
authorize cither party to look to the other party to pay for services rendered to a patient
transferred by virtue of this Agreement except for Medicare Part A (PPS) patients receiving
wound care treatment. Hospital will be reimbursed an amount equal to the facility fee (at
then-current Health Services Cost Review Commission rates) for wound care provided to
Medicare Part A (PPS) patients transferred from the Facility. Hospital shall submit to the
Facility an itemized invoice for past wound care services rendered. The invoices shall be dus
and payable not more than thirty (30) days after the date of such itemized invoice.

8. Trapsportation of Patient. The Facility shall have responsibility for arranging transportation
of the patient to the Hospital, including selection of the mode of transportation and providing

appropriaie health care provider(s) to accompany the patient, if necessary. The Hospital’s
responsibility for the patient's care shall begin when the paticnt is admitted to the Hospital.

9. P ion of Patient’s Val d . The Facility shall develop and follow
eppropriate policics and procedures to insure the security and accountability of a transferred
patient’s personal effects. A standard form shall be developed and approved by the parties
and used by the Facility to inventory and accompany a patient’s personal effects and
valuables. The valuables and personal effects along with a completed form shall be placed in
the custody of the person in charge of the transporter who shall sign a receipt for the patient’s

@ valuables and personal effects and in turn shail obtain g receipt from the Hospital when it
recejves the patient's valuables and personal effects. The Facility shall be responsible for the
personal effects until delivered to the Hospital and receives a receipt from the Hospital
acknowledging the delivery of the valuables and personal effects.

10.  Indcpendent Contractor Status. Both parties are independent contractors. Neither party is
authorized or permitted to act as an agent or employee of the other. Nothing in this

Agreement shall in any way alter the freedom enjoyed by either parties, nor shall it in any
way alter the control of the management, assets and affairs of the respective institutions.
Neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, assumes any liability for any debts or obligations
of either a financial or a legal nature incurred by the other party to this Agreement, Both
parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is not intended to induce referrals
between the parties.

[I.  Ligbility. Each party shall be responsible for its own acts and omissions and shall not be
responsible for the acts and omissions of the other party.

12 Nonexclusivity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the rights of either
party to affiliate or contract with any other hospital or organization while this Agreement is
in effect.

@
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@ 13.  Terminati

A, Voluntary Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for any
reason. by giving sixty (60) calendar days’ written notice of its intention to withdraw
from this Agreement, and by ensuring the continuity of care to patients who already
are involved in the transfer process.

B. Involuntary Termjnation. This Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon the
occurrence of any of the following:

1. Either party loses its license, accreditation or ability to operate in the State of
Maryland.

2. Either perty no longer is able to provide the service for which the Agreement
was sought,

3. Either party is in default under any of the terms of this Agreement.

4. Nonwaiver. No waiver of any term or condition of this Agreement by either party shall be
deemed a continuing or further waiver of the same term or condition or a waiver of any other
term or a condition of this Agreement,

@ 15.  Governing Law. This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Maryland. This
Agreement is subject to all applicable requirements of the State of Maryland and Federal law
and regulations, and where this Agreement is in conflict with the provisions of Jaws or
regulations, the laws and regulations shall govern.

16.  Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned in whole or in part by either party
without the express written consent of the other party.

17.  Invalid Provision. In the event that any portion of this Agreement shall be determined to be
invalid or uncnforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall be deemed to continue to be
binding upon the parties, in the same manner as if the invalid or unenforceable provision
were not a part of this Agreement.

18.  Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time by a written agreement signed by
the parties.

19.  Entire Agrcement. This Agresment constitutes the entirc agreement between the parties and
contains gll of the agreements between them with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement superscdes any and all other agreements, cither oral or in writing between the
parties with respect to the subjcct matter.

PAGE _22/24
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3

20.

21.

23,

24,

25.

26.

Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors or assigns of the
parties,

Advertising and Public Relations. Neither party shall use the name of the other party in any

promotional or advertising material,

Headings, The headings to the various sections of this Agreement have been inserted for
convenience only and shall not modify, define, limit or expand express provisions of this

Agreement.

Counterparty, This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Third-Party Beneficiary Rights, This Agreement shall not create any rights, including

without limitation, third-party beneficiary rights, in any patient or other person or entity not 2
party to this Agreement.

HIPAA. The parties agree to use protected health information (“PHI™) only in accordance
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), the privacy
regulations in 45 CFR Part 160 (the “HIPAA regulations”) and applicabie state law. In the
event that additional steps must be taken to comply with these laws and regulations, the
parties agree to negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement. In the absence of such
compromise, either party may terminate this Agreement immediately.

Insurance.

8) Facility shall obtain and maintain general liability, personal injury, property damage,
motor vehicle liability and workers compensation insurance covering Facility, Facility’s
Property and Facility personnel performing services under this Agrcement. Such
insurance’s shall be in at least the minimum amounts required by law or as set forth
below:

1. Statutory workers' compensation insurance;

2. Contractor or general liability insurance including:
¢ Bodily Injury - $! Million Each Person and $1 Million aggregate;

* Property Damage - $1 Million Each Occurrence and $i Million aggregate,;
* Products and Completed Operations - $1 Million aggregate to be maintained
for ] year following payment;

3. Automobile liability including owned, non-owned and hired vehicles covering
Bodily Injury - §1 Million Each Person and $1 Million aggregate and Property
Damage - $1 Million Each Occurrence and $1 Million aggregate; and

4. Contractual Liability including Bodily Injury - $1 Million Each Person and $1
Million aggregate and Property Damage - $1 Million Each Occurrence and $1
Million aggregate; and

- 5%
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@ 5. Umbrella Excess Liability Insurance in the amount of $3 Miilion over primary
insurance coverage,

b) Facility will have Hospital named as an insured with respect to the above referenced
policies, if possible. Facility shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospite! and all affiliates
thereof against any and all claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (including
rcasonable attorney's fees) arising ot resulting from Facility negligence, fault or
wrongdoing.

c) The obligations under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Apreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Hospital and Facility have caused this Agreement to be

executed as by law provided, the day and year first above written.
2l
WITNESS: /W&MA  (Hospital)
Shar+Bedl M)
Measry Unips Manunet Vs i

201 £ Unyers ~\-~’ Pr_ev.w% .
By: Pounwmuve, MO 2121y

Title:

@ _&_fgag\e.(ﬁﬁ.m,ﬂ_ sMe,  (Facility)
(entes
1211 Np Rd Pdg-3-\ol

2P ST
By:

Rithaig Lovine. WD Title: Medvzel D\fcci?)f

Gi\Templates\Patient Transfcr Agmts! PatientTransferAgmiWithHIPPAAndMedicares-19-08B1k doc
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SECTION 2
General Clinical
Greater Chesapeake 2 General Clinical
Surgery Center 2.13 Hospital Transfer
Hospital Transfer Issued: 9/98 Number: 2.13
Revised: 3/15
Reviewed: 10/15
I. Policy

IIII

If a patient experiences an unexpected situation that is beyond the scope of care at Greater
Chesapeake Surgery Center as defined by the aticnding surgeon or anesthesiologist, the patient
along with his/her medical recards, and if applicable, a copy of the patient’s Advance
Directive, will be transferred to the nearest receiving hospital.

The Center has transfer agreements with St. Joseph Hospital, and Union Memorial Hospital.

Any patient transferred to an acute care facility will be followed with a phone contact from the
Center at 24 hours or the next business day.

Purpose
See Procedure below.

Procedure

A. Responsibility
See Process below.

B. Process

1. Critical Transfer - Any patient who undergoes cardiac arrest, a malignant hyperthermia
episode, or anaphylactic shock will be immediately transferred to an acute care facility.
Transfer from the surgery center to an acute care facility Is accommaodated as efficiently
as possible.

a. After initiating CPR, staff will call 911 and request paramedic transport to & nearby
acute care facility.

b. The Surgery Center staff will copy patient’s medical record which will be copied to
the ER of the facility where the patient will be transported.

c. Physician will inform family/significant persons attending the patient of the
patient’s condition and impending transfer.

d. Physician will inform receiving facility of patient admission.

€. Physician and nursing staff will give report to paramedics.

f. Physician and nursing staff will complete the unusual occurrence report form which
will be filed in designated file.

2. Non-Critical Transfer — In the event that patient needs exceed resources provided by the
Surgery Center, the patient will be ransferred to an appropriate medical facility of
his/her choice by transport vehicles determined to be appropriate for his/her specific
necds.

Haspital Tranafer 1
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With physician approval, a stable patient may be transported in a personal vehicle with
family or significant others.

Chart will be faxed or copied and sent to receiving facility.

As a designated outpatient facility, the surgery center is unable to provide prolonged
nursing care, maximal medical diagnostic regimen and extensive treatment. Patients
requiring monitoring for neurological or cardiovascular incidents, prolonged post-
anesthesia care, or unanticipated surgical intervention are to be in an acute care facility.

a.

b.

c.

Physician orders transfer and arranges admission to acute care facility.

Physician informs spouse/family or patient’s condition and impending patient

transfer.

RN remains with the patient until transfer and:

1) Monitors and records patient's vital signs

2) Administers medication and treatment as ordered

3) Requests the surgery center staff to copy medical record

4) Completes transfer form.

RN facilitates transfer by:

J) Contacting receiving nursing steff and giving verbal telephone report

2) Contacting appropriate transport agency (e.g. ambulance, medi-van)

3) Instructing transport agency to enter surgical suite through the side entrance

4) Assisting transport personnel to transfer the patient to stretcher or wheelchair

5) Completing patient record and unusual occurrence form

6) Copies form to center administrator and Q.A. representative.

Non-professional staff assiat in transfer by:

1) Assisting RN as directed

2) Assembling paticnt belongings in plastic bags, tagging belongings with
identification

3) Directing transport personnel upon their armrival

4) Assisting transport personnel to transfer the patient to stretcher or wheelchair,

IV. Related Policies/Forms

n/a

V. References

nfa

Hospital Transfor 2

09/24



12/99/2815 9:16 418-821-8148 GCSC PAGE 10/24

Reviewed and Approved by:

/) | /78775

Board of Maﬁagjs Prefident Datc

=T _Jotedrs

Medical Director

/.9 11
Director of Anesthésnologyy Date
——
o Mﬂ« o 141
Administrator Date

—@Z@J 5~
Director of Clinicgl Servic

H:\Share On Geoe-SutgeryiShare On Geoa-Surgery'New Policies FoldenGiencral Clinical Policies\Hospitol Transfer Doc10/1$

Hospital Transfer 3
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GCSC Patient Origin by Zip Code, FY 2015

Cumulative
Zip Code Patients Percentage
21015 48 3.7%
21014 45 7.1%
21093 40 10.2%
21030 32 12.6%
21050 30 14.9%
21234 30 17.2%
21236 30 19.5%
21212 26 21.5%
21218 25 23.4%
21009 23 25.1%
21047 23 26.9%
21117 23 28.6%
21220 23 30.4%
21078 22 32.1%
21208 22 33.7%
21286 21 35.3%
21043 20 36.9%
21084 19 38.3%
21085 19 39.8%
21042 17 41.1%
21206 17 42.4%
21224 17 43.7%
21001 16 44.9%
21209 16 46.1%
21040 15 47.3%
21136 15 48.9%
21228 15 49.5%
21131 14 50.6%
21211 14 51.7%
21237 14 52.7%
21204 13 53.7%
21210 12 54.7%
21239 12 55.6%
21122 11 56.4%
21128 11 57.3%
21222 11 58.1%
21230 11 58.9%
21044 10 59.7%
21087 9 60.4%
21157 9 61.1%
21217 g 61.8%
21229 9 62.4%
21244 9 63.1%
21771 5 63.8%

Cumulative

Zip Code Patients Percentage

21048
21074
21154
21207
21221
21005
21213
21231
21013
21017
21028
21057
21114
21120
21146
21215
21784
20723
21061
21111
21113
21132
21161
21216
21601
21742
21037
21045
21046
21090
21158
21227
20759
20878
21029
21034
21075
21102
21104
21160
21162
21403
21613
21620

WiwwwwwwwwwwwwedbobdddddoOuuuouomouynvouwoumoooaooammao O O ~ ~ ~ 0o 00 0 00 Ca

64.4%
65.0%
65.6%
66.3%
66.9%
67.4%
67.9%
68.5%
68.9%
69.4%
69.8%
70.3%
70.8%
71.2%
71.7%
72.1%
72.6%
73.0%
73.4%
73.7%
74.1%
74.5%
74.9%
75.3%
75.6%
76.0%
76.3%
76.6%
76.9%
77.3%
77.6%
77.9%
78.1%
78.3%
78.5%
78.8%
79.0%
79.2%
79.5%
79.7%
79.9%
80.2%
80.4%
80.6%

Cumulative
Zip Code Patients Percentage

21666 3 80.8%
21701 3 81.1%
21702 3 81.3%
21737 3 81.5%
21740 3 81.8%
21774 3 82.0%
21776 3 82.2%
21793 3 82.4%
21921 3 B82.7%
7042 2 82.8%
7305 2 83.0%
17225 2 83.1%
17314 2 83.3%
17331 2 83.4%
17349 2 83.6%
17603 2 83.7%
20619 2 83.9%
20685 2 84.0%
20744 2 84.2%
20794 2 84.4%
20851 2 84.5%
21035 2 84.7%
21076 2 84.8%
21108 2 85.0%
All Other 197  100.0%
TOTAL 1,310 100.0%
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Demographics
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! MedStar Union Memorial Hospital
MedStar Orthopaedics 535 Noth Caer et
Johnston Professional Building
Suite 400

Baltimore, Maryland 21218

(410) 554-2865 PHONE
(410) 554-6423 FAX

Mr. Ben Steffen

Executive Director

Maryland Health Care Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21215-2299

January 8, 2016

Dear Mr. Steffen,

I am writing in my capacity as Chairman of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery at Union
Memorial Hospital, as well as Regional Medical Director for Orthopaedics for MedStar
Heaith to lend my full and complete support to the certificate of need request to expand the
ambulatory surgical facility for MedStar Orthopaedics in the Timonium, Maryland location.
We currently operate a two room certificate of need based facility in the Lutherville corridor
and have done so for the past fifteen years. Qur annualized volumes at the center have
approached almost 2,000 cases, all of which have been orthopaedic surgery.

MedStar Health has finalized the plans to obtain a long-term lease in a freestanding building
in the Timonium area where all of MedStar Health’s orthopaedic services for the area will be
consolidated. As part of this integrated effort, we are requesting an expansion to four
operating rooms for use for orthopaedic surgery and related specialties. Currently, there are a
large number of ambulatory surgery volumes in orthopaedics being performed in higher cost
settings at various MedStar regional hospitals, including MedStar Union Memorial, MedStar
Good Samaritan, MedStar Franklin Square, and MedStar Harbor Hospital. We anticipate
consolidating a significant percentage of the future outpatient volume to an expanded
ambulatory surgery footprint in this Timonium facility. This projection includes a
combination of relocating existing ambulatory surgery from regulated hospital settings to a
lower cost non-regulated ambulatory facility, but also anticipates growth in a number of
orthopaedic areas within the next three years.

The factors influencing growth in the ambulatory facility will include advances in technology,
making historical inpatient surgical procedures more safely amendable to outpatient surgical
venues, the patient demand for increasing outpatient surgical treatments, as well as organic
growth within our orthopaedic surgical services.

The new Timonium facility will also include a broad spectrum of musculoskeletal services to
treat our patients in a more streamlined and consolidated manner. Services such as x-ray and
MRI imaging, physical therapy, pain management rehabilitation and intervention, as well as
ambulatory clinic space for multiple orthopaedic subspecialties including spine, total joints,



foot & ankle, sports medicine, shoulder & elbow and hand surgery will be included in this
facility.

Our physicians and entire care team look forward to a continued focus on high quality and
compassionate care within the communities we have proudly served for many decades.

Sincerely,

(X

Leslie S, Matthews, M.D., M.B.A
Chairman Department of Orthgp@edics, MedStar Union Memorial Hospital
Regional Medical Director,¥edStar Orthopaedics




Leslie S. Matthews, MD, MBA

I

MedStar Orthopaedics

Chair, Department of Orthopaedic Surgery

Sports Medicine

Disorders of the Spine

Paul L. Asdourian, MD
Michael R, Murray, MD
P. Justin Tortelani, MD

Joint Replacement
Henry R. Boucher, MD
Frank R. Ebert, MD
Robert P. McKinstry, MD

Foot & Ankle

Gregory P. Guyton, MD
Stuart D. Miller, MD
Lew C. Schon, MD
Jacob M. Wisbeck, MD

Sports Medicine

James C. Dreese, MD
Jason W. Hammond, MD
Richard Y. Hinton, MD
Richard G. Levine, MD
John B. O'Donnell, MD
Sean M. Curtin, MD
Kenneth B. Tepper, MD

Shoulder & Elbow
Anand M. Murthi, MD
Jason A. Stein, MD

Trauma
Robert J. Brumback, MD

Physical Medicine & Rehab
Abraham T, Rasul, Jr., MD
Walter J. Roche, MD
Morvarid Yousefi, MD

Pediatric Sports Medicine
Lindsay W. Jones, MD

Family Medicine Sports Medicine

Matthew D. Sedgley, MD
Andrew M. Tucker, MD

Ben Steffen

Executive Director

Maryland Healthcare Commission
4160 Patterson Ave

Baltimore MD, 21215-2299

Dear Mr. Steifen:

I would like to write to you as a member of the MedStar Union Memorial
Orthopedic Department and as a frequent user of the Greater Chesapeake
Surgery Center to express support for the construction of a new MedStar
multispecialty outpatient surgery center in Timonium, Maryland to replace and
expand our current facilities in the area.

MedStar Union Memorial Hospital has been a major presence in Baltimore
City for well over 150 years. The hospital in general, and our orthopedic
group in particular, has made a major commitment to serving patients in the
Lutherville-Timonium area with convenient and timely outpatient care. Our
current surgery center has been a major presence on the lower York Road
corridor for 16 years and our outpatient volumes continue to steadily grow.

In recent years, there has been an increasing shift of emphasis away from
inpatient procedures to the outpatient setting. This has placed steady and
increasing demand on the outpatient facilities such as the Greater Chesapeake
Surgery Center. As part of a strategic vision for the future, MedStar Union
Memorial Hospital, in combination with its sister hospitals (MedStar Harbor
Hospital, MedStar Franklin Square Hospital, and MedStar Good Samaritan
Hospital), project that a very substantial number of cases currently handled at
the home institutions would be suitable for a transfer to a new outpatient
facility in the Timonium area. The proposed expansion and upgrade of the
surgery center would facilitate newer state-of-the-art equipment and a
capability of hosling patients for 23-hour overnight stays. This

would significantly improve the availability of healthcare in the area both

by improving the equipment available to our speciality physicians and
allowing a wider range of more complex procedures to be performed in the
outpatient setting. This is a major component of our efforts to increase the
efficiency of the delivery of healthcare and moves a substantial amount of
burden away from the higher-cost inpatient hospital setting.

The Johnston Professional Building at the Union Memorial Hospital 3333 N. Calvert Street, Suite 400  Baltimore, MD 21218

410.554.2270 * Toll Free: 800.571.9820 ¢ Fax: 410.554.2853



I

MedStar Orthopaedics
Leslie 5. Matthews, MD, MBA
Chair, Department of Orthopaedic Surgery
Sports Medicine I feel strongly that the new proposed surgery center represents a long-term
solution to adapt to the changing healthcare environment while increasing
Disorders of the Spine patient satisfaction and the responsiveness of our healthcare delivery system.

Paul L. Asdourian, MD
Michacl R. Murray, MD

P. Justin Tortolani, MD Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Joint Replacement !
Henry R. Boucher, MD :
Frank R. Ebert, MI} \'//.d
Robert P. McKinstry, MD Gregory Guyton, MD
Foot & Ankle

Gregory P. Guyton, MD
Stuart D. Miller, MD
Lew C. Schon, MD
Jacob M. Wisbeck, MD

Sports Medicine

James C. Dreese, MD
Jason W. Hammand, MD
Richard Y. Hinton, MD
Richard G. Levine, MD
John B. O'Donnell, MD
Sean M. Curtin, MD
Kenneth B. Tepper, MD

Shoulder & Elbow
Anand M. Murthi, MD
Jason A. Stein, MD

Trauma
Robert J. Brumback, MD

Physical Medicine & Relal
Abraham T. Rasul, Jr., MD
Walter J. Roche, MD
Morvarid Yousefi, MD

Pediatric Sports Medicine
Lindsay W. Jones, MD

Family Medicine Sports Medicine
Matthew D. Sedgley, MD
Andrew M. Tucker, MD

The Johnston Professional Building at the Union Memorial Hospital 3333 N. Calvert Street, Suite 400  Baltimore, MD 21218
410.554.2270  Toll Free: 800.571.9820 e« Fax: 410.554.2853



MedStar Orthopaedics

Mr. Ben Steffen

Executive Director

Maryland Health Care Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21215-2299

January 26, 2016
Dear Mr. Steffen:

I am writing on behalf of the MedStar Union Memorial Orthopaedics department to express
our full support for the construction of a new MedStar Multi-Specialty Outpatient Surgery
Center in Timonium, Maryland.

MedStar Union Memorial Hospital has been serving the Baltimore area community since
1854. Our commitment remains steadfast, and our patient volume continues to surge. For the
past several years, outpatient cases have been consistently on the rise — a trend that is
consistent with the latest research supporting improved outcomes and lowered secondary risks
that have been attributed to outpatient facilities and procedures.

At the Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center (GCSC) in Lutherville, where 1 serve as Medical
Director, demand for surgical block time continues to increase annually. With the proposed
shift of outpatient procedures away from the hospital setting we will be unable to meet patient
demand in the current GCSC facility. MedStar Union Memorial Hospital in collaboration with
its sister Hospitals (MedStar Harbor Hospital, MedStar Franklin Square Hospital, and
MedStar Good Samaritan Hospital) project a substantial increase in surgical procedures
annually that would be eligible for transfer to the proposed Timonium MedStar ambulatory
surgery center. The creation of the proposed larger and state-of-the-art surgery center would
also allow MedStar Specialty Doctors to serve the community with increased efficiency and
health benefits while continuing to provide the highest level of quality care.

The creation of the proposed surgery center in Timonium is a future-minded solution. The
new, more centraily located center would absorb the current Greater Chesapeake Surgery
Center in Lutherville and allow our team of professionals a platform to grow from only two
operating rooms to four, which would help facilitate the shift of outpatient surgery from the
high-cost hospital environment to the low-cost, efficient ambulatory center setting. Finally,
the new center would substantially increase available hours of service and include 23 hour
patient stays, which would better meet the needs of our medically low-risk population in
undergoing traditional in-patient procedures in an outpatient setting.

In summary, the newly proposed surgery center is good for patient care, good for the
community, and good for local business. The new center in Timonium will allow MedStar



Union Memorial Hospital to continue to supply the Greater Baltimore community with high-
quality, low-cost healthcare, and to continue to serve a leader in the development and
implementation of ambulatory surgical services.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Richard G. Levine, M.D.

Medical Director, Greater Chesapeake Surgery Center

Medical Director, Sports Medicine Clinical Services MedStar Union Memorial Hospital
Department of Orthopaedics, MedStar Union Memorial Hospital
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MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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1 East Prati Sirest
Baltimore, MD 21202-1128

Independent Auditors® Report

The Board of Directors
MedStar Health, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MedStar Health, Inc.
(the Corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
cnded and the related notes to the consolidated financial statecments.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this responsibility includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consoclidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether duc to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control retevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting cstimates made by management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

KPMG LLF b a Delaware limitad liabdity partnership,
tha US. member firm of KPMG Infematlional Cooperative
{KPMG internatianal), a Swiss antity.



e

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material
respects, the financial position of MedStar Health, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMe LLP

October 6, 2014



Assets

Current asscts:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Asscts whose use is limited or restricted

Receivables:
From patient services (less allowances for uncollectible
accounts of $188.8 in 2014 and $204.3 in 2013)

Other

Inventories

Prepaids and other current assets

Investments

Assets whose use is limited or restricted

Total current asscits

Property and cquipment, net

Interest in net

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net

Other assets

assets of foundation

Total assets

MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

$

2014 2013
599.9 445.4
6l.4 61.6
61.3 64.7
558.0 546.3
69.6 51.2
627.6 597.5
56.3 57.0
31.8 38.4
1,438.3 1,264.6
869.5 733.6
548.9 483.9
1,152.9 1,137.1
64.9 54.8
226.5 202.0
146.8 135.8
4,447.8 4,011.8

(Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Liabilities and Net Assects

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrucd salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes
Amounts duc to third-party payors, net
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of self insurance liabilities
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilitics

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Self insurance liabilities, net of current portion
Pension liabilities

Other long-term liabilities, nct of current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets:
MedStar Health, inc.
Noncontrolling interests

Total unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013

419.6 3574
304.9 281.5
85.7 66.7
60.5 61.2
86.3 87.5
125.3 87.3
1,082.3 %941.6
1,192.6 1,207.2
3124 253.2
2343 304.9
137.6 140.0
2,959.2 2,846.9
1,322.2 1,017.4
3.2 9.4
1,327.4 1,026.8
121.8 99.0
39.4 39.1
1,488.6 1,164.9

4,447.8 4,011.8




MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

{Dollars in millions)

2014 2013
Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue:
Hospital inpatient services h 2,240.1 2,240.8
Hospital outpatient services 1,558.7 1,444.1
Physician services 315.1 290.5
Other patient service revenue 114.8 124.5
Total net paticnt service revenue 4,228.7 4,099.9
Provision for bad debis 193.2 214.5
Total net patient service revenue, net of provision for
bad debts 4,035.5 3.885.4
Premium revenue 3579 138.2
Other operating revenue 234.7 193.6
Net operating revenues 4,628.1 4,217.2
Operating expenses:
Personnel 2,455.3 2,310.7
Supplies 696.7 658.9
Purchased services 682.6 562.1
Other operating 426.3 393.9
Interest expense 50.1 45.7
Depreciation and amortization 181.4 167.1
Total operating cxpenses 4,492.4 4,138.4
Eamings from operations 135.7 78.8
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income 13.3 15.5
Net realized gains on investments 68.6 24.9
Unrealized gains on derivative instrument 14 6.7
Unrealized gains on investments, nct 9l1.6 64.0
Income tax (provision) benefit 3.9 1.9
Other nonoperating losscs 2.0) (6.1)
Total nonoperating gains 169.0 106.9
Excess of rcvenues over expenses b 304.7 185.7

5 (Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

2014 2013
Unrestricted net assets:
Excess of revenues over expenses 3 304.7 185.7
Change in funded status of defined benefit plans 2.1) 106.9
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (3.7) (6.3)
Net asscts released from restrictions used for purchase of
property and equipment and other 1.7 4.9
Increase in unrestricted net assets 300.6 2912
Temporarily restricted net asscts:
Contributions 17.1 17.4
Realized net gains on restricted investments 3.1 1.8
Change in unrealized gains on restricted investments 34 1.9
Increase in net assets of foundation 10.1 6.3
Net assets released from restrictions (10.9) (8.9)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 22.8 18.5
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions — 1.5
Realized net gains on marketable restricted investments 0.1 ¢.1
Change in unrealized gains on restricted investments 0.2 0.1
Increase in permanently restricted net
assets 0.3 1.7
Increase in net asscts 323.7 3114
Net assets, beginning of year 1,164.9 853.5
Net assets, end of year $ 1,488.6 1,164.9

Sece accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in milliens)

Cash flows from operating activitics;
Change in net asscts
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
opcrating activitics:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond financing costs, premiums and discounis
Loss {gain) on sale of property and equipment
Change in funded status of defined benefit plans
Realized net gains on marketable investments
Change in unrealized gains of marketable investments
[ncrease in net assets of foundation
Unrcalized gain on derivative instrument
Net settlement payment on derivative instrument
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Deferred income 1ax provision (benefit)
Provision for bad debts
Temporarily and permanently restricted coninbutions
Gain on sale of consolidated joint venture, nct of noncontrolling interests
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Amounts due to third-panty payors
Cther liabilitics

Net cash provided by operations

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds (purchases) of investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted, net
Purchases of aliernative investments
Proceeds from sales of alicrnative investmetits
Proceeds from sale of consolidated join venture
Net settlement payment on derivative instrument
Purchases of property and equipment, acquisition of Southern Maryland Hospital
Center and other

Net cash used in investing activitics

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Repayments of refinanced bonds and ather borrowings
Payment of deferred issuance costs
Temporarily and permanently restricted contributions and other
Distributions 10 noncontrolling interests

Net cash (used in} provided by financing activitics
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash Mow information:
interest paid

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Accounts payable for fixed asset purchases

Sec accompanying notes 1o censolidated financial statements,

2014 2013
3237 ina
181.4 167.1

(1.2) (0.3)
0.2 ©.1)
2.1 (106.9)

(71.8) (26.8)
{95.2) (66.1)
(10.1) (6.3)

(1.4) (6.7)

37 39

25

3.7 6.3
36 (1.8)

193.2 214.5
(17.1) (18.9)

1)

(224.3) (188.5)
(28.5) (44.5)
107.0 50.2

19.0 4.9)

25.0 {45.5)

411.8 238.6

81.5 (106.0)

(240.7) (77.0)
1288 2.8

54

(a7 3.9)

(221.3) (427.1)

(250.0) (611.2)

498.9
(20.5) (18.5)
(240.6)

(0.2) (3.0)

17.1 18.9

(3.7 (6.3)

{(1.3) 249.4

154.5 (123.2)

445.4 568.6

599.9 445.4
508 448
17.0 19.2



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

(1) Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Organization

MecdStar Health, Inc. (MedStar or the Corporation) is a tax-exempt, Maryland membership
corporation which, through its controlled entitics and other affiliates, provides and manages
healthcare services in the region encompassing Maryland, Washington D.C. and Northern Virginia.
The Corporation became operational on June 30, 1998 by the transfer of the membership interests of
Helix Health, Inc. (Helix — a not-for-profit Maryland Corporation) and Medlantic Healthcare Group,
Inc. (Medlantic — a not-for-profit Delaware Corporation) in exchange for the guarantee of the debt of
both Helix and Medlantic by the Corporation. The trade names of the principal tax-exempt and
taxable cntitics of the Corporation are:

Tax-Exempt

° MedStar Ambulatory Services (formerly known as Bay Development Corporation)
. MedStar Franklin Square Medical Center

. MedStar Georgetown University Hospital

. MedStar Good Samaritan Hospital

. MedStar Harbor Hospital

° MedStar Health Rescarch Institute

) MedStar Health Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.

. MedStar Medical Group, LLC

° MedStar Monigomery Medical Center

. MedStar National Rehabilitation Network

. MedStar Southern Maryland Hospital Center

. MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital

. MedStar Surgery Center, Inc.

. MedStar Union Memorial Hospital

° MedStar Washington Hospital Center

° Church Home and Hospital of the City of Baltimore, Inc.
° HH MedStar Health, Inc,

Taxable

. Greenspring Financial Insurance, LTD.

. MedStar Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dotlars in millions)

° MedStar Family Choice, Inc.
® MedStar Physician Partners, Inc.

e Parkway Ventures, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Acquisition of Seuthern Maryland Hospital, Inc.

On December 10, 2012, the Corporation and Southern Maryland Hospital, Inc. (the Hospital) closed
on an assct purchase agreement, whereby the Corporation purchased substantially all of the assets
and assumed certain obligations of the Hospital. The Hospital is a 263-bed acuie carc hospital
located in Clinton, Maryland in Prince George's County. As a result of the transaction, the
Corporation recognized approximatcly $80.0 of property, plant and equipment, approximately
$150.0 of goodwill and other intangible asscts, and working capital amounts. In December 2012, the
Corporation entered into a $180.0 bridge loan, that was replaced by permanent financing in
May 2013 (see note 6), and used the proceeds to fund the acquisition. The asset purchase agreement
provided for certain adjustments to the purchase price and net working capital calculations, which
were settled and recorded during fiscal 2014. The consolidated financial statements include the
operations of the Hospital since the closing date.

Due to significant changes in the legal, organizational and reporting structure of the Hospital
subsequent to the purchase, the Corporation determined that the presentation of supplemental pro
forma results for the year ended June 30, 2013 was impracticable. The net operating revenues and
total operating expenses of the Hospital are less than 3% of consolidated operating revenues and
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2013, which are not considered significant to the Corporation’s
operations for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). All majority owned subsidiaries,
direct member entities and controlled affiliates are consolidated. All entities where the Corporation
exercises significant influence but for which it does not have control are accounted for under the
equity method. All other entities are accounted for under the cost method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant changes to estimates resulting from
the above referenced scttlement associated with the purchase of the Hospital and amounts related to
settled, or tentatively settled, prior year third party cost reports (see note 9) resulted in gains of
approximately $20.0 and $16.0 during the years ended Junce 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Future
results could differ from those estimates.
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Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with a maturity date of threc months or less when purchased arc
considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments and Assets whose use is Limited or Restricted

The Corporation’s investment portfolio is considered trading, with the exception of the alternative
investments, and is classified as current or noncurrent assets based on management’s intention as to
use. All sccuritics arc reported at fair value principally based on quoted market prices in the
consolidated balance sheets. The Corporation has clected to use the fair value option to account for
its alternative investments. The fair value of alternative investments is determined based on the Net
Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in each investment company or parmership. Purchases and sales of
securities are recorded on a trade-date basis.

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates arc accounted for under the cost or equity method of
accounting, as appropriate, and are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. The
Corporation utilizes the equity method of accounting for its investments in entitics over which it
exercises significant influence. The Corporation’s equity income or loss is recognized in other
operating revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include asscts held by trustees under bond indenture,
sclf-insurance trust arrangements, assets restricted by donor, and assets designated by the Board of
Directors for future capital improvements and other purposes over which it retains control and may,
at its discretion, use for other purposes. Amounts from these funds required to meet current liabilitics
have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as current assets.

Investment income (interest and dividends) and realized gains and losses on investment sales are
reported as nonoperating gains and losses in the excess of revenucs over expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets unless the income or
loss is restricted by the donor or law. Investment income and realized gains and losses on funds held
in trust for self-insurance purposes is included in other operating revenue. Investment income and net
gains and losses that are restricted by the donor are recorded as a component of changes in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, in accordance with donor imposed restrictions.
Realized gains and losses are determined based on the specific security’s original purchase price or
adjusted cost if the investment was previously determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired.
Unrealized gains and losses are included in nonoperating gains and losses within the excess of
revenue over expenscs.

Inventories

Inventorics, which primarily consist of medical supplies and pharmaceuticals at many of the
operating entities, are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined primarily
under the average cost or first-in, first-out methods.
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Property and Equipment

Property and cquipment acquisitions are recorded at cost and are depreciated or amortized over the
estimated uscful lives of the asscts. Estimated useful lives range from three to forty years.
Amortization of asscts held under capital leases is computed using the shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life of the leased asset and is included in depreciation and amortization cxpense.
Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis. Major classes and estimated uscful lives of property and equipment arc as
follows:

Leasehold improvements Lease term
Buildings and improvements 1040 years
Equipment 3-20 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support,
and arc cxcluded from the excess of revenues over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that
specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire
long-lived assets arc reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long
those long-lived assets must be maintained, cxpirations of donor restrictions are reported when the
donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Management routincly evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived asscts for impairment. No
impairment charges were recorded against the carrying value of the Corporation’s long-lived assets
during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Interest in Net Assets of Foundation

The Corporation recognizes its rights to assets held by a recipient organization, which accepts cash
or other financial assets from a donor and agrees to use those assets on behalf of or transfer those
assets, the rcturn on investment of those assets, or both, to the Corporation. Changes in the
Corporation’s economic interests in the financially interrelated organization are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as a component of changes in
temporarily restricted net assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is an assct representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a
business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized. As of June 30,
2014 and 2013, the Corporation had onc reporting unit, which included all subsidiaries of the
Corporation and held goodwill, net on its balance sheet of $190.2 and $163.8, respectively. Goodwill
is evaluated for impairment annually using a qualitative assessment to determine whether there are
events or circumstances that indicate it is more likely than not that the reporting unit’s fair value is
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

less than its carrying amount. Based on this qualitative assessment, the Corporation determined that
there was no goodwill impairment for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,

Other intangible assets recorded at fair value and amortized over their estimated uscful lives. Other
intangible asscts were $42.4 and $41.9 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and related
accumulated amortization was $6.1 and $3.7, respectively. The Corporation recognized amortization
cxpense of $2.4 and $2.0 for the years cnded June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, related to
identifiable intangible asscts.

Internal-Use Software

The Corporation capitalizes the direct costs, including internal personnel costs, associated with the
implementation of new information systems for internal use. The Corporation capitalized $0.9 and
$4.6 during the ycars ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Capitalized amounts are
amortized over the estimated lives of the sofiware, which is gencrally three to five years.

Financing Costs

Financing costs incurred in issuing bonds have been capitalized and are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheets. These costs are being amortized over the estimated duration of the
related debt using the effective interest method. Accumulated amortization totaled $5.6 and $4.7 as
of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Estimated Professional Liability Costs

The provision for estimated sclf-insured professional liability claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. These estimates are
based on actuarial analysis of historical trends, claims asserted and reported incidents. The
receivables related to such claims are recorded at their net realizable value.

Leases

Lease arrangements, including assets under construction, are capitalized when such leases convey
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership. Capital leases are amortized over
cither the lease term or the life of the related assets, depending upon available purchase options and
lease renewal features. Amortization related to capital leases is included in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets within depreciation and amortization expense.

Derivative

The Corporation utilizes a derivative financial instrument to manage its interest rate risks associated
with tax-cxempt debt. The Corporation does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The derivative instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at its fair
value. The Corporation’s current derivative investment does not qualify for hedge accounting;
thercfore, the changes in fair value have been recognized in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets as mark-to-market adjustments in nonoperating
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gains (losses). The fair market value of the derivative instrument is included in other long-term
liabilitics in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Net Patient Service Revenue and Net Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including cstimated retroactive adjustments due
to future audits, reviews and investigations. The differences between the estimated and actual
amounts are recorded as part of net patient service revenue in future periods as the amounts become
known, or as years ar¢ no longer subject to audit, review or investigation, Payment arrangements
include prospectively determined rates per discharge, fee-for-service, discounted charges, and per
diem payments. Hospital inpatient services, hospital outpaticnt services, the physician component of
physician/managed care networks, and other paticnt service revenues arc recognized when the
services are rendered based on billable charges. Other patient service revenue primarily consists of
home care, long-term care and other non-hospital patient services.

The Corporation’s policy is to write-off all patient receivables which are identified as uncollectible.
Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts to reserve for
accounts which are expected to become uncollectible in future years. In evaluating the collectability
of accounts receivable, the Corporation analyzes historical collections and write-offs and identifies
trends for each of its major payor sources of revenue and amounts duc from patients to estimate the
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts and provision for bad debts.

Premium revenue consists of amounts received from the State of Maryland and the District of
Columbia by thc Corporation’s managed care organization for providing medical services to
subscribing participants, regardless of services actually performed. The managed care organization
provides services primarily to enrolled Medicaid beneficiaries. This revenue is recognized ratably
over the contractual period for the provision of services. Medical expenses of the managed care
organization include a provision for incurred but unreported claims and are included in purchased
services on the consolidated statements of operations.

Charity Care

The Corporation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policies
without charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Corporation does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Grants

Federal grants are accounted for as cither an exchange transaction or as a contribution based on
terms and conditions of the grant. If the grant is accounted for as an exchange transaction, revenue is
recognized as other operating revenue when carned. If the grant is accounted for as a contribution,
the revenues are recognized as cither other operating revenue, or as temporarily restricted
contributions depending on the restrictions within the grant.
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(Dollars in millions)

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is reccived. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give
arc reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily
or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net asscts are reclassified as unrestricted
nct assets and reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets rcleased from restrictions in other operating revenue. Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted net assets and
reported within other operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Meaningful Use Incentives

Under certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), federal
incentive payments arc available to hospitals, physicians and certain other professionals (Providers)
when they adopt, implement or upgrade certified electronic health record (EHR) technology and
become “meaningful users,” as defined under ARRA, of EHR technology in ways that demonstrate
improved quality, safety and effectiveness of care. Incentive payments will be paid out over varying
transitional schedules depending on the type of incentive (Medicare and Medicaid) and recipient
(hospital or cligible provider). Eligible hospitals can attest for both Medicare and Medicaid
incentives, while physicians must select to attest for either Medicare or Medicaid incentives. For
Medicare incentives, cligible hospitals receive payments over four years while eligible physicians
reccive payments over five years. For Medicaid incentives, eligible hospitals receive payments based
on the relevant State adopted payment structure and physicians receive payments over six years.

The Corporation recognizes EHR incentives when it is reasonably assured that the Corporation will
successfully demonstrate compliance with the meaningful use criteria. During the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, certain hospitals and physicians satisfied the meaningful use criteria. As a
result, the Corporation recognized $23.4 and $16.6 of EHR incentives during fiscal year 2014 and
2013, respectively, in other operating revenue.

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include a performance indicator,
which is the excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets that are excluded
from excess of revenues over expenses, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions that by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring
such assets), contributions from and distributions to noncontrolling interests, and defined benefit
obligations in excess of recognized pension cost, among others.

Income Taxes

Income taxes arc accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
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financial statement carrying amounts of cxisting assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and Habilities of
a change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Any changes to the
valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset are reflected in the year of the change. The Corporation
accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740, Income Taxes.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets arc thosec whose use by the Corporation or individual operating
units has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net
asscts have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Corporation or individual operating
units in perpetuity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other current assets, other assets, current liabilities and
long-term liabilities: The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for each of
these assets and liabilitics approximates their fair value.

The fair value of investments, assets whose usc is limited or restricted and the interest rate swap is
discussed in note 3. The fair value of long term debt is discussed in note 6.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU cstablishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statcments about the nature, amount,
timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.
Particularly, that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
cxchange for those poods or services. ASU 2014-09 is effective for fiscal year 2018. The
Corporation expects to record a decrease in net patient service revenue and a corresponding decrease
in bad debt expense upon adoption of the standard.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current period presentation, the
effect of which is not material.
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{2) Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, at fair value consist

of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents $
Fixed income securities and funds
Equity securitics
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds
Inflation hedging equity, commodity, fixed income fund
Hedge fund of funds and private equity

Total investments and assets whose use is
limited or restricted

Less short-term investments and asscts whase use is
limited or restricted

Long-term investments and assets whose
use is limited or restricted $

2014 2013
82.8 98.5
356.2 393.1
559.3 509.8
194.2 103.3
724 62.6
276.2 176.5
1,541.1 1,343.8
(122.7) (126.3)
1,418.4 1,217.5

Assets whose use is limited or restricted as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, included in the table above, consist

of the following:

Funds held by trustecs $
Self-insurance funds
Funds restricted by donors for specific purposes
and endowment
Funds designated by board and management

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted

Less assets required for current obligations

Long-term assets whosc use limited or restricted  §

2014 2013
60.5 71.1
256.6 216.8
86.1 69.7
207.0 191.0
610.2 548.6
(61.3) (64.7)
548.9 483.9

{Continued)
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Investment income and realized and unrealized gains for assets whose usc is limited, cash cquivalents and

investments are comprised of the following for the years ended Junc 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Other operating revenue:
Investment income and realized gains 5 85 49
Nonoperating gains:
Investment income 13.3 15.5
Net realized gains on investments 68.6 249
Unrealized gains on investments 91.6 64.0
173.5 104.4
Other changes in net assets:
Realized net gains on temporarily and permanently
restricted net assets 3.2 1.9
Change in unrealized gains on temporarily and
permanently restricted net assets 3.6 2.0
Total investment return 5 188.8 113.2

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Corporation follows the guidance within FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (4SC 820),
which defines fair value and establishes methods used to measure fair value. The fair value hicrarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). A financial instrument’s categorization within the
valuation hicrarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are described below:

. Level | — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

. Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset, either directly or indirectly
observable, that reflect assumptions market participants would use to price the asset based on market

data obtained from sources independent of the Corporation.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect the Corporations own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use to pricc an asset based on the best information available in the

circumstances.

The Corporation has incorporated an Investment Policy Statement (IPS} into the investment program. The
IPS, which has been formally adopted by the Corporation’s Board of Dircctors, contains numerous
standards designed to ensure adequate diversification by asset class and geography. The IPS also limits all
investments by manager and position size, and limits fixed income position size based on credit ratings,
which serves to further mitigate the risks associated with the investment program. At June 30, 2014 and
2013, management believes that all investments were being managed in a manner consistent with the IPS.
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The following table illustrates the actual allocations of the investment portfolio as of June 30:

MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Publicly traded equities — domestic

Publicly traded equities — international

Fixed income securities
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds

June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Inflation hedging equity, commodity, fixed income fund

Hedge funds
Private equitics
Cash

Total

Actual Actual

allocation allocation
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
26% 29%

14 14

16 22

12 9

9 9

20 13

1 2

2 2
100% 100%

The table below presents the Corporation’s investable assets and liabilitics as of June 30, 2014, aggregated

by the three level valuation hicrarchy:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Treasury bonds
U.S. agency mortgage
backed securities
Corporate bonds
Fixed income mutual funds
All other fixed income
securities
Equity mutual funds & ETF’s
Common stocks
Altermative investments:
Commingled equity funds
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund
Private equity
Hedge funds

Total assets
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap
Total liabilities

S

o

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

682.7 — —- 682.7
71.1 — — 71.1
92.8 — 92.8
- 32.1 — 82.1
0.8 76.9 - 77.7
54 27.1 32.5
121.8 — 121.8
437.5 ~ — 437.5
—_ 194.2 194.2
— 72.4 72.4
- - 17.0 17.0
— - 2592 259.2
1,412.1 452.7 __276.2 2,141.0
— 15.0 — 15.0
— 15.0 o 15.0
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The table below presents the Corporation’s investable assets and liabilitics as of June 30, 2013, aggregated
by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 543.9 - — 5439
U.S. Trcasury bonds 60.6 — — 60.6
U.S. agency mortgage
backed securities 124.2 - — 1242
Corporate bonds — 90.7 - 90.7
Fixed income mutual funds 0.7 78.2 — 78.9
All other fixed income
securitics 4.3 339 - 38.7
Equity mutual funds & ETF’s 101.8 — e 101.8
Common stocks 408.0 — — 408.0
Allernative investments:
Commingled equity funds - 103.3 — 103.3
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund — 62.6 — 62.6
Private equity — — 16.4 16.4
Hedge funds — — 160.1 160.1
Total assets S 1,244.0 368.7 176.5 1,789.2
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap 8 — 16.4 — 16.4

Total liabilitics S — 16.4 — 16.4

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, there were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.
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Changes to the fair values based on the Level 3 inputs are summarized as follows:

Private Hedge

equity funds Total
Balance as of June 30, 2012 b 19.4 117.6 137.0
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 0.9 26.7 27.6
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales (2.8) — (2.8)
Net change in value (1.1) 15.8 14.7
Balance as of June 30, 2013 16.4 160.1 176.5
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 1.4 204.3 205.7
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales (3.4) (125.4) (128.8)
Net change in value 2.6 20.2 22.8
Balance as of June 30, 2014 Y 170 259.2 276.2

The following summarizes redemption terms for the hedge fund-of-funds vehicles held as of June 30,
2014;

Fund t Fund 2 Fund 3 Fund 4

Redemption timing:

Redemption frequency Quarterly 95% within | year " Quarterly Quarterly
5% in | year or longer

Required notice 70 days up to 90 days 90 days 65 days

Audit reserve;
Percentage held back
for audit reserve 10% up to 10% 10% 10%

Gates:
Potential gate holdback — up to 7.5% — —
Potential gate release timeframe — — _

(1) One-third of this fund is redeemable within 90 days and the remainder of the investment is redeemable within one year.

Investments in hedge fund-of-funds arc typically carricd at estimated fair value. Fair value is based on the
Net Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in cach investment company or partnership. Such investment
companies or partnerships mark-to-market or mark-to-fair value the underlying assets and liabilitics in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Realized and unrealized gains and losses of the investment companies and

20 {Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

partnerships are included in their respective operations in the current year. Changes in unrealized gains or
losses on investments, including those for which partial liquidations were effected in the course of the year,
are calculated as the difference between the NAV of the investment at year-end less the NAV of the
investment at the beginning of the ycar, as adjusted for contributions and redemptions made during the
year and certain lock-up provisions. Generally, no dividends or other distributions are paid.

The following summarizes the status of contributions to the private equity fund-of-funds vehicles held as
of June 30, 2014:

Percentage of Percentage of
Total commitment commitment
commitment contributed remaining_
Fund | $ 11.0 92.7% 7.3%
Fund 2 7.1 95.0 5.0
Fund 3 7.1 81.5 18.5
Fund 4 10.0 6.3 93.7

Total $ 35.2

Investments in private equity funds, typically structurcd as limited partnership interests, are carried at fair
value using NAV or equivalent as determined by the General Partner in the absence of readily
ascertainable market values. Distributions under this investment structure are made to investors through the
liquidation of the underlying assets. It is expected to take up to ten years to fully distribute the proceeds of
those asscts. The fair value of limited partnership interests is generally based on fair value capital balances
reported by the underlying partnerships, subject to management review and adjustment. Sccurity values of
companies traded on exchanges, or quoted on NASDAQ, are based upon the last reported sales price on the
valuation date. Security values of companics traded over the counter, but not quoted on NASDAQ, and
securitics for which no sale occurred on the valuation date are based upon the last quoted bid price. The
value of any security for which a market quotation is not readily available may be its cost, provided
however, that the General Partner adjusts such cost value to reflect any bona fide third party transactions in
such a security between knowledgeable investors, of which the General Partner has knowledge. In the
abscnce of any such third party transactions, the General Partner may use other information to develop a
good faith determination of value. Examples include, but are not limited to, discounted cash flow models,
absolute value models, and price multiple models. Inputs for these models may include, but are not limited
to, financial statement information, discount rates, and salvage value assumptions.

The valuation of both marketable and nonmarketable securities may include discounts to reflect a lack of
liquidity or extraordinary risks, which may be associated with the investment. Determination of fair value
is performed on a quarterly basis by the General Partner. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
the determined values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for those investments existed.
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Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013
Land 3 83.8 70.4
Buildings and improvements 1,281.9 1,249.4
Equipment 1,746.4 1,646.3
3,112.1 2,966.1
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {2,025.6) {1,914.1)
1,086.5 1,052.0
Construction-in-progress 66.4 85.1
$ 1,152.9= 1,137.1

Construction-in-progress includes a variety of ongoing capital projects at the Corporation as of June 30,
2014 and 2013. Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment amounted to

$178.5 and $165.1 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Other Assets
Other assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following:

2014 2013
Deferred financing costs, net $ 13.1 13.8
Investments in unconsolidated entities 15.2 15.0
Reinsurance receivables 473 44.6
Deferred tax asset 26.3 284
Other assets 44.9 34.0
h 146.8 135.8

The Corporation has investments in other healthcare related organizations that are accounted for under the
equity method which total $15.2 and $15.0 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Under the equity
method, original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted by the Corporation’s sharc of the
undistributed camings or losses of these organizations. The related ownership interest in these
organizations ranges from 8% to 50%. The Corporation’s share of carnings in these organizations was $3.1
and $4.2 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are recognized in other operating
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Certain other

nonconsolidated cntities are recorded under the cost method.
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Maryland Health and Higher Educational Facilities:
Authority revenuc bonds:

5.25% Term bonds (Scries 1998A, due 2038)
5.25% Term bonds (Scrics 1998B, duc 2038)
4.25% — 5.75% Serial bonds (Scrics 2004, duc
2009 - 2025)
5.375% Term bonds (Series 2004, duc 2024)
5.50% Term bonds (Series 2004, due 2033)
4.75% Term bonds (Series 2007, duc 2042)
5.25% Term bonds (Scries 2007, duc 2046)
2.00% — 5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2011, due
2012 - 2023)
5.00% Term bonds (Scries 2011, due 2031)
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2011, duc 2041)
2.19% Direct Purchase (Scries 2012, due 2017 - 2022)
3.00% - 5.00% Serial bonds {Series 2013A, due
2016 - 2028)
5.00% Term bonds (Series 20E3A, due 2038)
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2013 A, due 2041)
4.00% Term bonds (Series 2013 A, due 2041)
3.00% — 5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2013B, duc
2025 - 2033)
4.00% Term bonds (Scrics 2013B, due 2038)
5.00% Term bonds (Serics 2013B, due 2038)
Plus unamortized nel premium

District of Columbia Hospital Revenue Bonds:
Multimodal revenuc bonds:

0.03% — 0.08% at June 30, 2014 Serial bonds (Series

1998A duc 2008-2038) (and 0.04% - 0.12% at
June 30, 2013)

2.75% — 5.00% Serial bonds (Series 1998B, due
2008 - 2019)

5.00% Term bonds (Serics 1998B, due 2028)

5.00% Term bonds (Serics 1998B, due 2038)

2.75% — 5.00% Scrial bonds (Series 1998C, duc
2008 — 2019)

23

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Corporation’s outstanding borrowings include the following:

2014 2013
32.0 82.0
57.0 57.0
21.6 25.8
49.7 49.7
80.1 80.1
56.0 56.0
89.0 89.0
44.7 51.8

5.6 5.6
354 354
38.6 38.6
60.9 60.9
17.3 17.3
25.0 25.0
14.6 14.6
60.8 60.8
45.0 45.0
44.0 44.0
28.0 30.0

855.3 868.6
125.9 128.9

9.6 11.0
20.2 20.2
33.9 339

9.7 11.0
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2014 2013
5.50% Term bonds (Series 1998C, due 2028) $ 20.1 20.1
5.00% Term bonds (Scries 1998C, due 2038) 340 34.0
Less unamortized ncet discount (1.3) (1.2)
252.1 257.9
Other:
Notes payable to financial institutions or state agencies
under mortgages (floating rates ranging between
0.9% — 6.2%) and other 15.9 12.1
Line of credit due August 2016 (0.18% - 0.80% at
June 30, 2014 and 0.25% — 0.90% at Junc 30, 2013) 129.8 129.8
145.7 141.9
Total debt 1,253.1 1,268.4
Less current portion of long-term debt (60.5) (61.2)
Long-term debt, net 3 1,192.6 1,207.2

Scheduled maturities on borrowings, for the next five fiscal years and thereafier are as follows:

2015 $ 60.5
2016 19.3
2017 151.1
2018 22.3
2019 234
Thereafter 949 8

b 1,226.4

The fair value of outstanding tax excmpt bonds is estimated to be $1,145.4 and $1,122.4 as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The fair value of other long-term debt approximates its carrying value.

In December 1998, the Maryland Health and Higher Education Facilities Authority (MHHEFA) and the
District of Columbia (District) issued bonds (Serics 1998 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. Bond
proceeds of approximately $588.6 were loaned to the Corporation under separate loan agreements with
MHHEFA and the District upon exccution of obligations pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The
District issued $300.0 of Muitimodal Revenue Bonds, including $150.0 Serics 1998A ($27.2 repaid
through August 2014), $75.0 Secrics 1998B ($12.7 repaid through August 2014), and $75.0 Series 1998C

($12.7 repaid through August 2014).

The District Scrics 1998A bonds, which consist of three tranches totaling $122.9 at August 2014, trade as
uninsured Variable Rate Demand Obligations backed by bank letters of credit. The Series 1998A Tranche |
bonds which remained outstanding in August 2014 consisted of approximately $41.0 bonds trading in a
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daily mode backed by a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (formerly
Wachovia Bank, National Association) and remarketed by J.P. Morgan Securitics Inc. The letter of credit
expires in March 2017. In the event of a failed remarketing, the Tranche 1 bonds would be tendered to the
bank and repaid over a four-year period, beginning 367 days following the date of the failed remarketing.
The Series 1998A Tranche II bonds totaled $41.0 in August 2014. These bonds trade in 2 weekly mode and
are remarketed by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. The letter of credit backing these bonds was issued by
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and expires in May 2015 and accordingly is included in the current portion of
long-term debt. In the cvent of a failed remarketing, the Tranche 11 bonds would be tendered to the bank
and repaid over a four-year period, beginning 367 days following the failed remarketing. The Series 1998A
Tranche 111 bonds totaled $41.0 in August 2014, These bonds trade in a weekly mode and are remarketed
by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. The letter of credit backing these bonds was issued by PNC Bank,
National Association. The term of the letter of credit is five years, and expires in May 2017. In the event of
a failed remarketing, the Tranche 111 bonds would be tendered to the bank and repaid over a four-year
period, beginning 367 days following the failed remarketing. No portion of the Series 1998A bonds has
been put at Junc 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The $62.3 Series 1998B and $62.3 Serics 1998C bonds
(as of August 2014) arc at a fixed rate, insured by Assured Guaranty, Ltd. (Assured; formerly Financial
Security Assurance, Inc.). The reimbursement obligation with respect to the letters of credit are evidenced
and secured by obligations issucd by the Corporation under the Master Trust Indenture.

MHHEFA issued $283.5 of Revenue Bonds, including the $166.6 Serics 1998A ($82.0 outstanding after
August 2014) and $116.9 Serics 1998B ($57.0 outstanding after August 2014). All Series 1998 MHHEFA
bonds were issued at fixed rates. Principal and interest under the Series 1998 MHHEFA bonds are insured
under municipal insurance policics with Assured and Ambac. Of the original Serics 1998 MHHEFA
bonds, $51.7 was refinanced in March 2013 in conjunction with the MHHEFA Series 2013A financing
described below.

Related to the District borrowings, the Corporation entered into an interest rate swap with Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association in a notional amount totaling $150.0 (reduced to $97.5 at August 2014). The
swap agreement expires in fiscal year 2027. The interest rate swap is part of a comprehensive and
long-term capital structure strategy. The purpose of the swap is to mitigate the effect of potential interest
rate volatility and minimize the variability of the Corporation’s average cost of capital. Under the terms of
the swap, the Corporation pays a fixed rate and receives a variable rate. Collateral is only required to be
posted under the swap in the cvent that the Corporation’s credit ratings arc downgraded by two mating
agencies below the BBB ~ or Baa2 - level. To date, no collateral postings have been required. As of
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the variable interest rate under these agreements was 0.10% and 0.13%,
respectively. The fixed rate was 3.6875% as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. The variable rates arc capped at
14.0%. The change in fair value of the swap is reported in nonoperating gains (losses) in the statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

In February 2004, MHHEFA issued $170.3 in bonds (Series 2004 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation.
The proceeds of the Series 2004 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with
MHHEFA upon exccution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2004 Bonds
were issued as $40.5 serial bonds maturing 2009 through 2025 ($23.3 repaid through August 2014), $49.7
term bonds maturing 2024, and $80.1 term bonds maturing 2033. Such bonds were issued at fixed rates.

25 {Continucd)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Scries 2004 Bonds maturing on or after August 2015 are subject to redemption or purchase at the option of
the Corporation. '

in January 2007, MHHEFA issued $145.0 in bonds (Series 2007 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The
Series 2007 Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $148.6. The proceeds of the
Series 2007 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agrcement with MMHEFA upon
exccution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued as
$56.0 term bonds maturing 2042 and $89.0 term bonds maturing 2046. Such bonds were issued at fixed
rates. Series 2007 Bonds maturing on or after May 2042 are subject to redemption or purchase at the option
of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2016.

In November 2011, MHHEFA issued $94.9 in bonds (Series 2011 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation.
The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with
MHHEFA upon execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Serics 2011 Bonds
were issued as $53.9 serial bonds maturing 2012 through 2023 ($16.5 repaid through August 2014), $5.6
term bonds maturing 2031, and $35.4 term bonds maturing 2041. The Series 2011 Bonds maturing on or
after August 2022 are subject to redemption or purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity
beginning in 2021. The Series 2011 Bonds were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction
were used to refund $20.2 of the Series 1998 A&B bonds, to refund debt outstanding on the Corporation’s
Revolving Credit Facility, and to refund certain debt associated with MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital.

In June 2012, the Corporation entered into a $38.6 MHHEFA Direct Purchase financing transaction with
JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (the Series 2012 Bond). The proceeds from the transaction were uscd to
redecem certain outstanding MHHEFA Series 1998A bonds that were due to mature in 2018 as well as a
portion of the outstanding MHHEFA Scries 1998 A&B bonds due to maturc in 2028, The repayment of the
Scries 2012 Bond is evidenced by an obligation issucd under the Master Trust Indenture. The term of the
Serics 2012 Bond is ten years and the repayment terms approximate the previous repayment terms of the
Series 1998 bonds that were refunded. Covenants, conditions, and security for the Series 2012 Bond is
similar to the revolving credit agreement.

In March 2013, MHHEFA issued $117.8 in bonds (Series 2013A Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The
Scrics 2013A Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $128.7. The proceeds of the
Series 2013A Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with MHHEFA upon
cxecution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2013A Bonds were issued as
$60.9 scrial bonds maturing 2016 through 2028, $17.3 term bonds maturing 2038, $25.0 term bonds due
2041, and $14.6 term bonds maturing 2041. The Serics 2013A Bonds maturing on or after August 2024 are
subject to redemption or purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2023. The
Series 2013A Bonds were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction were used to refund
$51.7 of the Series 1998 A&B bonds, to fund various capital projects and capitalized interest on those
projects.

In May 2013, MHHEFA issued $149.8 in bonds (Series 2013B Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The
Series 2013B Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $159.4. The proceeds of the
Series 2013B Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with MHHEFA upon
execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Serics 2013B Bonds were issued as
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$60.8 scrial bonds maturing 2025 through 2033, $45.0 term bonds maturing 2038, and $44.0 term bonds
maturing 2038. The Series 2013B Bonds maturing on or after August 2024 are subject to redemption or
purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2023. The Series 2013B Bonds
were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction were used to refinance a portion of the bridge
loan put in place when MedStar acquired the assets of Southern Maryland Hospital Center in
December 2012.

The Corporation, which is currently the sole member of an “obligated group™ as defined in the Master
Trust Indenture, is bound by the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture for payment of any outstanding
obligations under existing loan agreements. All of the hospitals and certain other affiliates (the guarantors)
of the Corporation are partics to a guaranty agreement pursuant to which they jointly and severally
guaranty the payment and performance of the obligations under the Master Trust Indenture. The
obligations of the guarantors under the Guaranty Agreement are collateralized by deeds of trust granted by
the hospitals. Under the Master Trust Indenture and the deeds of trust, as coliateral for the payments due
thereunder, the Corporation and its hospital affiliates, have granted a security interest in their revenues
subject to permitted encumbrances.

Under the Master Trust Indenture, the Corporation is required to maintain, among other covenants, a
maximum annual debt service coverage ratio of not less than 1.10. Under the loan agreements relating to
the Scries 1998 Bonds, the Corporation is required to maintain a historical debt service coverage ratio of
not less than 2.0 and to maintain at least 65 days cash on hand. In the event the Corporation does not meet
cither of these requirements, it is required to fund a trustee-held debt service reserve fund securing the
Secries 1998 Bonds. The amount to be deposited shall equal the lesser of: 10% of the principal amount of
such outstanding bonds, or the largest annual debt service with respect to such bonds in any future year, or
125% of the average annual debt service of future years. As of Junc 30, 2014 and 2013, there were no
funds required to be held in the debt service reserve fund for the Series 1998 Bonds.

The Corporation maintains a $250.0 revolving credit agreement provided by a group of banks. The facility
has a three-year term expiring in August 2016. The facility is evidenced by an obligation issued under the
Master Trust Indenture. The outstanding balance on the facility was $129.8 at June 30, 2014 and 2013. The
facility includes certain covenants, including a requirement to maintain Days Cash on Hand of 70 days,
measured semi-annually at cach June 30 and December 31, and a Debt Service Coverage ratio of 1.25,
measured quarterly on a rolling four quarters basis. In addition, the Corporation is required to maintain a
minimum credit rating of Baa2 from Moody’s Investor’s Service, and BBB from Standard & Poor’s and
Fitch Ratings. In addition, the Corporation maintains a $30.0 letter of credit facility, provided by a single
lender, which is also evidenced by an obligation issued under the Master Trust Indenture. This facility is
principally used to securitize certain regulatory obligations under various insurance programs, and has
terms and conditions similar to the revolving credit agreement. The facility has a three-year term expiring
in August 2016. However, the standby letters of credit issued under the facility can be canceled at the
bank’s option cach year. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, standby letters of credit issued pursuant to the
facility were $18.2. No amounts have been drawn by the beneficiarics under the standby letters of credit.
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Retirement Plans

The Corporation has two qualified defined benefit pension plans (MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity
Plan (PEP) and MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan (CBRP)) covering substantially all
full-time employees hired before 2005. McdStar St. Mary’s Hospital also has a defined benefit plan that
substantially covers all employces of MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital. Participation in all plans has been
closed to new entrants and all plans are frozen to future benefit accruals.

Bencfits under the plans are substantially based on yecars of service and the employees’ carcer earnings.
The Corporation contributes to the plans based on actuarially determined amounts necessary to provide
assets sufficient to meet benefits to be paid to plan participants and to meet the minimum funding
requirements of the Employce Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended by the Pension
Protection Act of 2006, and Internal Revenue Service reguiations. Effective July 1, 2000, employees of the
Transferred Businesses (notc 17) became participants in onc of the Corporation’s pension plans and are
reflected in the pension information provided below,

The Corporation’s investment policies are cstablished by the MedStar Health, Inc.’s Investment
Committee, which is comprised of members of the Board of Dircctors, other community leaders, and
management. Among its responsibilitics, the Investment Committce is charged with establishing and
reviewing asset allocation strategies, monitoring investment manager performance, and making decisions
to retain and terminate investment managers. Assets of each of the Corporation’s pension plans are
managed in a similar fashion by the same group of investment managers. The Corporation has incorporated
an Investment Policy Statement (IPS) into the investment program. The IPS, which has been formally
adopted by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, contains numerous standards designed to ensure adequate
diversification by asset class and geography. The IPS also limits all investments by manager and position
size, and limits fixed income position size based on credit ratings, which serves to further mitigate the risks
associated with the investment program. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, management believes that all
investments were being managed in a manner consistent with the IPS.
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The following table illustrates the actual allocations as of June 30:

Actual Actual

allecation allocation

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Publicly traded equities — domestic 30% 34%
Publicly traded equitics — international 10 12
Fixed income securities 16 21

Altemative investments:

Commingled equity funds 14 9
Inflation hedging cquity, commodity, fixed income fund 5 5
Hedge funds 18 13
Private equitics 2 2
Cash 5 4

Total 100% 100%

The table below presents the Corporation’s pension plans’ investable assets as of June 30, 2014 aggregated

by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asscts:
Cash and cash cquivalents 3 50.1 — — 50.1
U.S. Treasury bonds 42.8 - — 42.8
LS. agency morlgage
backed securities 24.0 — — 24.0
Corporate bonds — 37.2 - 37.2
Fixed income mutual funds — 47.2 — 47.2
All other fixed income
securilies 1.2 13.2 —_ 14.4
Equity mutual funds and
ETF’s 74.5 — — 74.5
Common stocks 346.1 — — 346.1
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds — 145.2 - 145.2
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund — 55.4 —_— 554
Private equily — — 17.0 17.0
Hedge funds — — 193.0 193.0
Tolal assets 5 538.7 298.2 210.0 1,046.9
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The table below presents the Corporation’s pension plans’ investable assets as of June 30, 2013 aggregated
by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36.2 - — 36.2
U.S. Treasury bonds 343 — — 343
U.S. agency mortgage
backed securities 315 — — 31.5
Corporate bonds - 43.8 — 43.8
Fixed income mutual funds — 60.1 — 60.1
All other fixed income
securities 0.6 16.4 — 17.0
Equity mutual funds and
ETF’s 80.5 - — 80.5
Common stocks 326.1 - — 326.1
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds _ 75.2 —- 75.2
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund —_ 47.9 - 47.9
Private equity — — 17.0 17.0
Hedge funds — — 111.4 111.4
Total asscts 3 509.2 243.4 128.4 881.0

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, there were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.
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Changes to the fair values based on the Level 3 inputs are summarized as follows:

Private Hedge

equity funds Total
Balance as of June 30, 2012 $ 17.1 82.4 99.5
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 0.9 20.2 21.1
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales (2.6) (0.3) {2.9)
Net change in value 1.6 9.1 10.7
Balance as of June 30, 2013 17.0 1114 128.4
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 1.3 149.3 150.6
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales 3.4) (83.2) (86.6)
Net change in value 2.1 15.5 17.6

Balance as of June 30, 2014 h) 17.0 193.0 210.0

The following summarizes redemption terms for the hedge fund-of-funds vehicles held as of June 30,
2014:

Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund 3 Fund 4

Redemption timing:

Redemption frequency Quarterly 95% within 1 year " Quarterly Quarterly
5% in ! year or longer

Required notice 70 days up to 90 days 90 days 65 days

Audit reserve:
Percentage held back
for audit reserve 10% up to 10% 10% 10%

Gates:
Potential gate holdback - up to 7.5% - —
Potential gate release timeframe == =

(1) One-third of this fund is redeemable within 90 days and the remainder of the investment is redeemable within one year.

Investments in hedge fund-of-funds are typically carried at estimated fair value. Fair value is based on the
Net Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in each investment company or partnership. Such investment
companies or partnerships mark-to-market or mark-to-fair value the underlying assets and liabilities in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Realized and unrealized gains and losses of the investment companics and
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partnerships are included in their respective operations in the current year. Changes in unrealized gains or
losses on investments, including those for which partial liquidations were effected in the course of the year,
arc calculated as the difference between the NAV of the investment at year-end less the NAV of the
investment at the beginning of the year, as adjusted for contributions and redemptions made during the
year and certain lock-up provisions. Generally, no dividends or other distributions are paid.

The following summarizes the status of contributions to the private equity fund-of-funds vehicles held as
of June 30, 2014:

Percentage of Percentage of
Total commitment commitment
commitment contributed remaining_

Fund ] b 9.0 92.9% 7.1%
Fund 2 8.5 95.0 5.0
Fund 3 8.5 81.5 18.5
Fund 4 5.0 8.0 92.0
Fund 5 5.0 . 100.0

Total hY 36.0

Investments in private cquity funds, typically structured as limited partnership interests are carried at fair
value using NAV or equivalent as determined by the General Partner in the absence of readily
ascertainable market values. Distributions under this investment structure are made to investors through the
liquidation of the underlying assets. It is expected to take up to ten years to fully distribute the proceeds of
those assets. The fair value of limited partnership interests is generally based on fair value capital balances
reported by the underlying partnerships, subject to management review and adjustment. Security values of
companies traded on exchanges, or quoted on NASDAQ, are based upon the last reported sales price on the
valuation date. Security values of companies traded over the counter, but not quoted on NASDAQ, and
securities for which no sale occurred on the valuation date are based upon the last quoted bid price. The
value of any security for which a market quotation is not readily available may be its cost, provided
however, that the General Partner adjusts such cost value to reflect any bona fide third party transactions in
such a security between knowledgeable investors, of which the General Partner has knowledge. In the
absence of any such third party transactions, the General Partner may use other information to develop a
good faith determination of value. Examples include, but arc not limited to, discounted cash flow models,
absolute value models, and price multiple models. Inputs for these models may include, but are not limited
to, financial statement information, discount rates, and salvage value assumptions.

The valuation of both marketable and nonmarketable securities may include discounts to reflect a lack of
liquidity or extraordinary risks, which may be associated with the investment. Determination of fair value
is performed on a quarterly basis by the General Partner. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
the determined values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for those investments existed.
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The Corporation has established a long-term investment retumn target of 7.75% and 8.00% for both PEP
and CBRP in 2014 and 2013, respectively. These assumptions are based on historical returns achieved in
the investment portfolios over the last ten years and represent the return that can reasonably be expected to
be generated on a similarly structured portfolio in the future.

The Corporation recognizes the funded status of defined benefit pension plans in the consolidated balance
sheets and the recognition in unrestricted net assets of unrecognized gains or losses, prior service costs or
credits and transition asscts or obligations. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair
valuc of the plan’s asscts and the projected benefit obligation of the plan. The measurement date for the
plans is June 30.

By letter dated March 12, 2012, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) notified the plan administrator that it
had selected the plans for a routine examination. The examination initially covered the plan year ended
Deccember 31, 2010. During the examination, the IRS extended the examination to include additional years
for some of the plans. By letter dated October 31, 2013, the IRS notified the plan administrator that it had
completed the examination and had found that the plans were in compliance and that it had accepted all of
its returns as filed.

The following are deferred pension costs which have not yet been recognized in periodic pension expense
but instead are accrued in unrestricted net assets, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. Unrecognized actuarial
losses represent unexpected changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets over time, primarily
duc to changes in assumed discount rates and investment experience. Unrecognized prior service cost is the
impact of changes in plan benefits applicd retrospectively to employce service previously rendercd.
Deferred pension costs are amortized into annual pension expense over the expected future lifetime for
active employees with frozen benefits.

Amounts in Amounts Amounts
unrestricted recognized in recognized in
net assets to unrestricted unrestricted
be recognized net assets net assets
during the as of as of
next fiscal year June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Net actuarial loss 3 16.4 549.4 547.2
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The following tabic scts forth the plans’ funded status and amounts recognized in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year b 1,183.0 1,244.1
Interest cost 59.1 559
Acluarial loss (gain) 89.9 (74.2)
Benefits paid (53.2) (42.8)
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,278.8 1,183.0
Change in plan assets:
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year 881.0 773.8
Actual return on plan assets 143.2 81.4
Company contributions 75.9 68.6
Benefits paid (53.2) (42.8)
Plan assets at fair value at end of year 1,046.9 B81.0
Funded status/net amount recognized h (231.9) (302.0)

The amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements consist of the following as of June 30:

2014 2013
Pension assets (included in other assets) $ 24 29
Pension liabilitics (234.3) (304.9)

The Corporation has cstimated $55.7 for its defined benefit contributions for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2015. The accumulated benefit obligation is $1,278.8 and $1,183.0 at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Expected fiscal year benefit payments for all defined benefit plans is as follows:

2015 b 595
2016 58.0
2017 61.7
2018 65.9
2019 68.6
2020--2024 392.5

Total h 706.2
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Net periodic pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation b 59.1 559
Return on plan assets (69.6) (65.3)
Recognized actuarial loss 142 16.7
Net periodic pension expensc b 3.7 7.3

The assumptions used in determining net periodic pension expense and accrued pension costs shown above
are as follows:

2014 2013
Discount rates for obligations at year end:
MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity Plan 4.65% 5.20%
MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan 4.50 5.05
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital Pension Plan 425 5.00
Discount rates for pension cost:
MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity Plan — July 1 -
Junec 30 5.20% 4.60%
MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan -
July 1 - June 30 5.05 4.55
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital Pension Plan — July 1 -
June 30 5.00 4.35
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets —~ PEP and
CBRP 7.75% 8.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets — MedStar
St. Mary’s Hospital 7.50 7.50

The Corporation also has various contributory, tax deferred annuity and savings plans with participation
available to certain employces. The Corporation matches employee contributions up to 3.0% of
compensation in certain plans. The Corporation contributed approximately $27.3 and $26.1 during the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(8) Business and Credit Concentrations

The Corporation provides healthcare services through its inpatient and outpatient care facilities located in
the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia and Northern Virginia. The Corporation generally does not
requirc collateral or other security in extending credit; however it routinely obtains assignment of (or is
otherwise entitled to receive) patients’ benefits receivable under their health insurance programs, plans or
policies (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, Workers” Compensation, health maintenance organizations
(HMOs) and commercial insurance policies).
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The Corporation cstimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on the aging of accounts
reccivable, historical collection experience, payor mix and other relevant factors. A significant portion of
the allowance for uncollectible accounts relates to sclf-pay patients, as well as co-payments and
deductibles owed by patients with insurance. There are various factors that can impact collection trends,
such as changes in the economy, which in turn have an impact on unemployment rates and the number of
uninsured and underinsured patients. Other factors include the volume of patients through the emergency
departments and the increased level of co-payments and deductibles due from patients with insurance.
These factors continuously change and can have an impact on collection trends and the estimation process.

The activity in the allowance for uncollectible accounts is summarized as follows for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Beginning balance by 204.3 189.7
Provision for bad debts 193.2 214.5
Writc-offs, net of recoveries (208.7) (199.9)

Ending balance $ 188.8 204.3

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Corporation’s allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately
25.3% and 27.2%, respectively, as a percentage of patient service receivables. The Corporation’s provision
for bad debts represents 4.6% and 5.2% of net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

A summary of net patient service revenue by major category of payor for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013
Medicare and Medicare HMO 37% 36%
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO 11 10
Carefirst Blue Cross Blue Shield 19 19
Other commercial and managed care payors 24 26
Self-pay 9 9
100% 100%
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A summary of net paticnt receivables by major category of payor as of Junc 30, 2014 and 2013 is as
follows:

2014 2013
Medicare and Medicare HMO 28% 27%
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO 20 19
Carefirst Blue Cross Blue Shield 13 13
Other commercial and managed care payors 30 29
Self-pay 9 12

100% 100%

Certain Maryland-based hospital charges are subject to review and approval by the Health Services Cost
Review Commission {(HSCRC). The HSCRC has jurisdiction over hospital reimbursement in Maryland by
agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). This agreement is based on a
waiver from the Medicare Prospective Payment System rcimbursement principles granted under
Section 1814(b} of the Social Security Act.

Under the Maryland HSCRC rate methodology, amounts payable for services in 2014 and 2013 to
Maryland hospital patients under the Medicare and Medicaid insurance programs are computed at 94% of
regulated charges. This discount amount does not include MCO granted discounts for medical education.
Hospital patients under the Blue Cross and approved health maintenance organization insurance programs
are computed at 98% of regulated charges. Maryland accounts reccivable from these third-party payors
have been adjusted to reflect the difference between charges and the payable amounts.

In January 2014, CMS approved Maryland’s new waiver for a five-ycar period beginning January 1, 2014
for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The new waiver ties hospital per capita revenue growth to the
state’s cconomic growth of 3.58% and requires Medicare spending in Maryland to be 0.5% below the
national average. CMS can requirc the State to submit a corrective action plan if targets for a given
performance year are not met. The new waiver also imposes quality measures and encourages population
health management.

In connection with the new waiver, the HSCRC introduced new revenue arrangements, including the
Global Budget Revenue (GBR) model. This new model for Maryland Hospitals moves payment to
hospitals from cach individual service to a total revenue for each hospital or a combination of hospitals to
provide hospitals flexibility in the objectives of better care for individuals, higher levels of overall
population health, and improved health care affordability. It removes the financial incentive from
increasing volume and provides incentive to work with partners to provide care in the appropriate setting.
The Company entered into a GBR arrangement covering five of its seven Maryland hospitals during the
year ended June 30, 2014. In August 2014, the Company also cniered into GBR arrangements for its
remaining two Maryland hospitals. The GBR arrangement is expected to be in place at least three years,
but will be renewed annually unless terminated by either party with 180 days prior notice. The Company
recognized hospital inpaticnt and outpatient revenue under the new arrangement for the year ended
June 30, 2014. For the fiscal ycar ended Junc 30, 2013, the Company recognized hospital inpatient and
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outpatient revenue under its prcvious agreements with the HSCRC. Thesc agreements included
reimbursement on a charge per episode target, defining episode as inpatient care provided within 30 days.

The Budget Control Act of 2011 (the Budget Control Act) mandated significant reductions and spending
caps on the federal budget for fiscal ycars 2012 through 2021. As part of this legislation, a 2% reduction in
Medicare spending, known as Scquestration, was implemented beginning April I, 2013 and the
Corporation’s Medicarc payments subsequent to that date were reduced by the mandatory 2%. It is not
possible to determine how futurc congressional actions to reduce the federal deficit in order to end
Sequestration will impact the Corporation’s revenues.

Through its MedStar Family Choice, Inc. subsidiary, the Corporation enters into fee-for-service and
capitation agreements with independent health professionals and organizations to provide covered services
to eligible enrollces where such services cannot be provided by its employed physicians or controlled
entities. Medical and clinical expenses from these agreements include claim payments, capitation
payments, and estimates of outstanding claims liabilitics for services provided prior to the balance sheet
date. The estimates of outstanding claims liabilitics ($52.2 and $17.0 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively), are based on management’s analysis of historical claims paid reports and as well as review of
health services utilization during the period and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on
the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in these estimates are recorded in the period of change. Claims
payments and capitation payments are expensed in the period services are provided to eligible enrollees.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Corporation provides general healthcare services in the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia
and Northern Virginia. As a healthcare provider, the Corporation is subject to certain significant inherent
risks, including the following:

. Dependence on revenues derived from reimbursement by the federal Medicare and state Medicaid
programs;

. Regulation of hospital rates by the State of Maryland HSCRC;

. Government regulation, government budgetary constraints and proposed legislative and regulatory
changes, and;

. Lawsuits alleging malpractice or other claims.

Such inherent risks require the use of certain management estimates in the preparation of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements and it is reasonably possible that a change in such estimates may occur.

The Medicare and state Medicaid reimbursement programs represent a substantial portion of the
Corporation’s revenucs and the Corporation’s operations are subject to a varicety of other federal, state and
local regulatory requirements. In addition, changes in federal and state reimbursement funding mechanisms
and related government budgetary constraints could have a significant adverse effect on the Corporation.
Similarly, failure by the Corporation to maintain required regulatory approvals and licenses and/or changes
in related regulatory requirements could have a significant adverse effect.

38 {Continucd)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

{Dollars in millions)

Laws and regulations governing the Medicarc and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject
to interpretation. As a result, therc is at lcast a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by
a matcrial amount. Management periodically reviews recorded amounts receivable from or payable to
third-party payors and may adjust these balances as new information becomes available. In addition,
revenue received under certain third-party agreements is subject to audit. During 2014 and 2013, certain of
the Corporation’s prior year third-party cost reports were audited and settled, or tentatively scttled, by
third-party payors. Adjustments resulting from such audits and management reviews of unaudited years
and open claims are reflected as adjustments to revenue in the year that the adjustment becomes known.
Although certain other prior ycar cost reports submitted to third-party payors remain subject to audit and
retroactive adjustment, management does not expect any material adverse settlements.

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations from federal, state and local
governments, and the government has increased enforcement of Medicare and Medicaid anti-fraud and
abuse laws, as well as physician self referral laws (STARK laws and regulation). The Corporation’s
compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to periodic governmental review, which could result
in enforcement actions unknown or unasserted at this time. The Corporation is aware of certain asserted
and unassericd legal claims by the government, and has provided requested information. The final
outcomes of these government investigations cannot be determined at this time.

Recent federal initiatives have prompted a national review of federally funded healthcare programs. To this
end, the federal government, and many states, implemented programs to audit and recover potential
overpayments to providers from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Since June 2010, the Corporation’s
hospitals have received audit requests from the Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program.
These RAC audit requests have focused on medical necessity of inpatient admissions and hospital coding
practices. In addition, the hospitals have continued to receive routine audit requests from other Medicare
contractors and the Office of Inspector General. The Corporation’s hospitals have cooperated with cach of
these audit requests and implemented a program to track and manage their effect.

As a result of recently enacted and pending federal healthcare reform legislation, rules and regulations,
substantial changes are occurring in the United States healthcare system. These include numerous
provisions affecting the delivery of healthcare services, the financing of healthcare costs, reimbursement to
healthcare providers and the legal obligations of health insurers, providers and employers. These
provisions are currently slated to take cffect at specified times over the next decade. This federal healthcare
reform legislation did not significantly affect the 2014 or 2013 consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation, in the normal course of business, is a party to legal and regulatory proceedings. These
include a lawsuit filed in June 2011 by several MedStar Washington Hospital Center (MWHC) employees
alleging violations by the Corporation of wage-hour laws. The plaintiffs in this action are seeking
certification of a class that would include hourly employees at all of the Corporation’s hospitals. The
Corporaticn is opposing class certification and taking other steps to defend itself and the hospitals in this
litigation. The final outcome of this litigation cannot be determined at this time. In April 2014, another
lawsuit was filed in federal court alleging similar wage-hour violations as the 2011 action. This lawsuit
sceks to certify a class to include hourly employees at six of the Company’s hospitals. The Company will
oppose class certification and otherwise defend itsclf and the hospitals in this matter.
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In June 2014, MWHC agreed on a new collective bargaining agreement with the union that represents its
service employces, SEIU, Local 722. In September 2014, MWHC began negotiations with National Nurses
United, the union that represents the hospital’s nurses. The existing collective bargaining agreement will
expire on November 15, 2014,

The Corporation, in the normal course of business, is a party to a number of legal and regulatory
proceedings. Management does not expect that the results of these proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Corporation.

Sclf-Insurance Programs

The Corporation maintains self-insurance programs for professional and general liability risks, employee
health and workers® compensation. Estimated liabilities have been recorded based on actuarial estimation
of reported and incurrcd but not reported claims. The combined accrued liabilities for these programs at
June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
Professional and general liability 3 3454 285.9
Employee health 18.9 21.9
Workers' compensation 344 329
Total liabilitics 398.7 340.7
Less current portion (86.3) (87.5)
$ 3124 253.2

The Corporation’s self insurance program for professional and general liability is responsible for the
following exposures as of June 30, 2014:

(a)  For professional liability during the periods of July I, 2012 to June 30, 2013 and Jjuly 1, 2013 to
June 30, 2014, for all MedStar entities except MedStar Montgomery Medical Center (MMMC) and
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital (MSMH), the Corporation is responsible for the first $5.0 exposure for
each and every claim plus an additional exposure above the $5.0 self-insured retention referred to as
an “inner aggregate.”

For the period July I, 2011 to December 31, 2012, the applicable inner aggregate was an inner
aggregate that was in cffect for the 24 month period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012.
This inner aggregate exposes the Corporation to up to $2.5 per claim with an aggregate for the 24
month period of $5.0 above the $5.0 per claim self-insured retention for all claims incurred during
the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2012,

For the period January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013, the applicable inner aggregate was the inner
aggregate in cffect for the 12 month period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013. This inner
aggregate cxposes the Corporation to up to $3.0 per claim with an annual aggregate of $6.0 above
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the Corporation’s $5.0 per claim scif-insured retention for all claims incurred during the period
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013,

For the period January 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014, the applicable inner aggregate was in effect for the
12 month period of January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014. This inner aggregate exposes the
Corporation to up to $3.0 per claim with a $6.0 annual aggregate above the Corporation’s $5.0 per
claim self-insured retention for all claims incurred during the period January 1, 2014 to
December 31, 2014.

Effective December 10, 2012, Southern Maryland Hospital joined the Corporation as MedStar
Southern Maryland Hospital Center (MSMHC). MSMHC is covered for all professional liability
cxposure for activities on or after December 10, 2012 under the same program of coverage described
above. The Corporation did not assume responsibility for MSMHC exposure or any tail claims that
might arise in future ycars rclated to activities that occurred prior to the acquisition by the
Corporation.

For MMMC and MSMH, the Corporation is responsible for the first $2.0 exposure for each claim
(not subject to the inner aggregate structures noted above).

For general liability, the Corporation is responsible for the first $3.0 exposure for cach claim (for
MMMC and MSMH, the first $2.0 exposure for cach claim). General liability claims are not subject
to the inner aggregate excess retention as described above. MSMHC is covered for general liability
exposure for activities on or after December 10, 2012 under the Corporation’s general liability
program.

Commercial excess re-insurance has been purchased above the self-insured retentions described
above in multiple layers and in twin towers; one for professional and one for general liability. During
the period of July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2012, each tower has seven layers of excess re-insurance
coverage which provides coverage of up to $100.0 per claim and $100.0 in the annual aggregate.
Effective January 1, 2013, the Corporation purchased an additional layer of commercial excess
re-insurance. During the period of January 1, 2013 through Junc 30, 2014, cach tower has eight
layers of excess re-insurance which provides coverage of up to $125.0 per claim and $125.0 in the
annual aggregate. The Corporation maintains reinsurance contracts with various “A” rated
commercial insurance companies.

The professional and general liabilities as of Junc 30, 2014 and 2013 have been discounted at a rate of
1.75%. The workers' compensation liabilities as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 have been discounted at a rate
of 1.50%.

Assets available to fund thesc liabilities arc held in separate accounts (see note 2). Contributions required
to fund professional and general liability, employce health benefits and workers’ compensation programs
are determined by the plans’ administrators bascd on appropriate actuarial assumptions. The professional
and general liability programs are administered through an offshore wholly owned captive insurance
company, Greenspring Financial Insurance Limited (GFIL), which is domiciled in the Grand Cayman
Islands.
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(11) Unrestricted Net Assets

The Corporation accounts for and presents noncontrolling interests in a consolidated subsidiary as a
scparate component of the appropriate class of consolidated net assets. The income attributable to
noncontrolling interests is included within opcrating income on the consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets. The following table presents a reconciliation of the changes in consolidated
unrestricted net assects attributable to the Corporation’s controlling interest and noncontrolling interest,
including amounts such as the performance indicator and other changes in unrestricted net assets as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 201 3:

Total
MedStar Noncontrolling unrestricted
Health, Inc. interests net assets

Balance as of June 30, 2012 $ 726.9 8.7 735.6
Excess of revenues over expenses 180.6 5.1 185.7
Change in funded status of defined

benefit plans 106.9 — 106.9
Net assets released for property

and equipment and other 3.0 1.9 49
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — (6.3) (6.3)

Increase in unrestricted net
assets 290.5 0.7 291.2

Balance as of June 30, 2013 1,017.4 9.4 1,026.8
Excess of revenues over expenses 3024 23 304.7
Change in funded status of defined

benefit plans (2.1) - 2.1
Net assets released for property

and equipment and other 4.5 2.8) 1.7
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - (3.7 (3.7)

Increase (decreasc) in
unrestricted net assets 304.8 (4.2) 300.6

Balance as of June 30, 2014 $ 1,322.2 5.2 1,327.4
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Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily and permancntly restricted net assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are available for the
following purposes:

2014 2013

Temporary restrictions:
Interest in net assets of foundation $ 64.9 54.8
Other 56.9 44.2
h3 121.8 99.0

Permanent restrictions:

Investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from

which is available to support healthcare services S 394 39.1

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the purposes of purchasing property and equipment,
providing health education, research and other healthcare services.

Endowment Net Assets

The Corporation’s endowments consist of individual donor-restricted funds established for a varicty of
purposes. Net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

{a) Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Corporation has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA)
as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Corporation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (¢) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts
arc appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Corporation considers the
following factors in making a detcrmination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

(1)  The duration and preservation of the fund
(2)  The purposes of the Corporation and the donor-restricted endowment fund

(3) General economic conditions
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(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5}  The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6)  Other resources of the Corporation

(7)  The investment policies of the Corporation

Endowment Net Assets Consist of the Following as of June 30, 2014

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Donor-restricted
endowment funds S - 6.6 394 46.0

Total endowed
ncl asscls S —- 6.6 394 46.0

Endowment Net Assets Consist of the Following as of June 30, 2013

Temporarily Permancntly
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Donor-restricied
endowment funds S — 3.6 39.1 42,7

Total endowed
nel assels S —_ 3.6 39.1 42,7

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Corporation to retain as a fund
of perpetual duration. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, there were no deficiencies of this nature that
are reported in unrestricted net assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Investment Strategies

The Corporation has adopted policics for corporate investments, including endowment asscts, that
seck to maximize risk-adjusted returns with preservation of principal. Endowment asscts include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Corporation must hold in perpetuity or for a
donor-specified period(s). The endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to hold a
mix of investment assets designed to meet the objectives of the account. The Corporation expects its
endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of return that generates eamings to achicve
the endowment purpose.
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To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Corporation relics on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achicved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yicld (interest and dividends). The Corporation employs a diversified asset allocation
structure to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

The Corporation monitors the endowment funds returns and appropriates average returns for use. In
cstablishing this practice, the Corporation considered the long-term expected return on its
cndowment. This is consistent with the Corporation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of
the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real
growth through new gifts and investment return.

{(14) Income Taxes

(15)

The Corporation and the majority of its subsidiaries are not-for-profit corporations as defined in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code (the Code) and are exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(a) of the Code. The Corporation’s tax-cxempt businesses generate nominal amounts of
unrelated business income subject to income tax. For corporate income tax purposes, the Corporation has
two consolidated groups of for-profit, taxable entitics. The parent companics of these groups are Parkway
Ventures, Inc. and MedStar Enterprises, Inc.

The Corporation’s taxable subsidiaries have approximately $221.5 of net operating loss (NOL)
carryforwards as of June 30, 2014, which expire in varying periods through 2034, available to offsct future
taxable income. This NOL carryforward represents $84.2 of gross deferred tax assets. In assessing the
rcalizability of deferred tax asscts, management considers whether it is morc likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax asscts
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. During the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Corporation decreased and increased its net deferred tax assct by $3.6
and $1.8 respectively, which was recorded in nonoperating income. The remaining amount of the deferred
tax asset considered realizable, $27.9 as of June 30, 2014, could be reduced if estimates of future taxable
income during the carry forward period are reduced. The current tax provisions for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013 were immaterial,

Charity Care

The Corporation’s hospitals utilize a cost to charge ratio methodology to convert charity care to cost. The
estimated cost of scrvices provided is determined based on the relationship of total operating costs to gross
charges. Total operating costs for purposes of this ratio exclude bad debt expense as well as costs
associated with community benefit activitics. Total gross patient charges are then offsct with any related
reimbursements. The Corporation provided $45.5 and $51.5 of charity care at cost during the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, based on the cost to charge ratio.

In addition to charity care, the Corporation funds numerous programs designed to benefit the healthcare
interests of the communitics it serves, examples of which are: health education programs and services,
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health information and referral services, school-based clinics, public health screenings and home care. The
costs associated with these programs are recorded in the appropriate operating expense categorics.

Leases

The Corporation is obligated under various operating leases with initial terms of one year or more.
Apggrepate future minimum payments as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

2015 3 53.2
2016 44.9
2017 36.6
2018 28.2
2019 224
2020 and Thereafter 41.8
Total minimum lease
payments $ 227.1

Certain leases include provisions allowing the minimum rental payments to be adjusted annually for
increases in operating costs and, in some cases, real cstate taxes attributable to leased property. Total rental
expense for all operating leases amounted to approximately $65.9 and $56.0 during the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

In February 2000 and on June 30, 2000, the Corporation and Georgetown University (the University)
signed certain definitive agreements whereby the Corporation would receive through purchase or capital
lease substantially all of the assets (including working capital) owned by the University that constitutes the
MedStar Georgetown University Hospital, the Community Practice Network, the Faculty Practice Group
and certain office buildings and a parking lot on the campus (collectively referred to as the Transferred
Businesses). These agreements became effective July [, 2000 and transferred control of the identified
physical plant and other real property asscts of the Transferred Businesses to the Corporation for use as an
academic medical center for a minimum of ninety-eight years. At the end of the one hundred and fifty year
leasc term (including a fifty-two year renewal), the University shall convey all leased assets, excluding the
underlying land, to the Corporation for a nominal amount and enter into a rent-free ground lease for the
Corporation’s use. This transaction was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting effective
July 1, 2000,

In recognition of the value of the transaction, the Corporation shall annually pay the University 50% of the
amount by which the combined operating carnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA), as defined in the asset purchase agreement, of certain cntitics of the Corporation in the
Washington D.C. area (collectively referred to as the Washington Clinical Enterprises) exceeds $60.0,
subject to certain adjustments. These additional payments expire when cumulative payments reach $70.0.
The Corporation has paid $36.7 to the University as of June 30, 2014.
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The Corporation also entered into an Academic Affiliation and Operations Agreement (Affiliation
Agreement) with the University. The purposc of this agreement is to make available to the University the
facilities of the Transferred Businesses and provide the Corporation with a first-class University medical
center. The University shall make payments to the Corporation determined by multiplying the University
School of Medicine’s total undergraduate tuition revenuc by 36% for providing teaching services. The
Corporation recognized $12.3 and $12.8 of tuition revenue during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. In support of academic programs at the University, for each fiscal year following the
termination of the additional payment terms in the asset purchase agrcement described above, the
Corporation shall pay to the University 17.5% of the operating EBITDA of the Washington Clinical
Enterprises in excess of $60.0, subject to certain adjustments. No amounts have been paid under this
Affiliation Agreement through June 30, 2014.

The Corporation and the University also entered into a Research Agreement to sustain and advance a
program of health-related University research at the Transferred Business facilities. Under this agreement
the University is required to reimburse the Corporation for certain costs incurred by the Corporation in
support of University sponsored rescarch. Amounts reimbursed to the Corporation were $2.7 and $3.1 for
the years ended June 30, 2614 and 2013, respectively.

MedStar Georgetown University Hospital and the University are parties to a fixed fee shared services
agreement. Georgetown University provided to MedStar Georgetown University Hospital the following
services: utilitics, telephone/IT scrvices, transportation services and library services. Expenses charged for
such services were $13.6 and $12.2 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The MedStar Washington Hospital Center campus is subject to the licn of a Permitted Encumbrance in the
amount of $21.5 to the United States government. This encumbrance was created in the deed of the
hospital property from the United States government to MedStar Washington Hospital Center in
February 1960. There is no repayment date for this lien stated in the deed. Under cnabling legislation,
repayment could be required after a determination that the property is no longer required for hospital
services or the property is disposed of, in which event all or a portion of the lien may be payable to the
government. This lien is subordinated to the Deed of Trust on the MedStar Washington Hospital Center
campus.
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(18) Functional Expenses

The Corporation considers integrated health scrvices, rescarch and management and general o be its
primary functional categories for purposes of expense classification. Management and general include
information systems, general corporate management, advertising and marketing. Functional categories of
expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Integrated health services 3 35324 3,3199
Management and general 924.7 7829
Research 304 31.0
Fundraising 4.9 4.6
$ 4,492 4 4,138.4

(19) Subsecquent Events

Management evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after June 30, 2614 and through October 6,
2014. The Corporation did not have any events that were required to be recognized or disclosed.

48



Attachment 16

Audited Financials - FY 2015
MedStar Health



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.

Table of Contents

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page



1 East Prati Strest
Ballimore, MD 21202-1128

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
MedStar Health, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MedStar Health, Inc.
(the Corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectivencss of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

KPMG LLF ia a Delaware limlied Habilly parinership,
the US. member (irm of KPMG Intemational Cooperative
(HKPMG Ivernational). a Swiss antity



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material
respects, the financial position of MedStar Health, Inc. as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMe P

October 2, 2015



Current assets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalenis
Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted

Receivables:
From patient services (less allowances for uncollectible
accounts of $207.0 in 2015 and $188.8 in 2014)

Other

Inventories

Prepaids and other current assets

Investments

Assets whose use is limited or restricted

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Interest in net

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net

Other assets

assets of foundation

Total assets

MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

3

2015 2014
572.3 599.9
74.9 61.4
61.3 61.3
584.1 558.0
93.0 69.6
677.1 627.6
60.4 56.3
33.1 31.8
1,479.1 1,438.3
1,0602.2 869.5
554.7 5489
1,197.4 1,152.9
63.0 64.9
258.2 226.5
136.3 146.8
4,690.9 4,447.8

(Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{Dollars in millions)

Liabilitics and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5
Accrued salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes
Amounts due to third-party payors, net
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of self insurance liabilities
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilitics

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Self insurance liabilities, net of current portion
Pension liabilities

Other long-term liabilities, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets:
MedStar Health, Inc.
Noncontrolling interests

Total unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets b3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014

433.8 419.6
348.2 304.9
83.5 85.7
19.5 60.5
88.4 86.3
147.9 125.3
1,121.3 1,082.3
1,323.0 1,192.6
310.6 3124
293.0 2343
137.3 137.6
3,185.2 2,959.2
1,319.0 1,322.2
15.3 5.2
1,334.3 1,327.4
131.9 121.8
39.5 39.4
1,505.7 1,488.6

4,690.9 4,447.8



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

2015 2014
Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue:
Hospital inpatient services 3 2,130.3 2,088.8
Hospital outpatient services 1,427.9 1,362.9
Physician services 756.1 662.2
Other patient service revenue 123.3 114.8
Total net patient service revenue 4,437.6 4,228.7
Provision for bad debts 206.7 193.2
Total net patient service revenue, net of provision for
bad debts 4,230.9 4,035.5
Premium revenue 561.3 3579
Other operating revenue 235.0 234.7
Net operating revenues 5,027.2 4,628.1
Operating expenses:
Personnel 2,591.5 2,455.3
Supplies 741.5 696.7
Purchased services 844.0 682.6
Other operating 452.6 426.3
Interest expense 479 50.1
Depreciation and amortization 188.9 181.4
Total operating expenses 4,866.4 4,492.4
Earnings from operations 160.8 135.7
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income 16.1 133
Net realized gains on investments 43.2 68.6
Unrealized gains on derivative instrument 1.1 1.4
Unrealized (losses) gains on investments, net (75.9) 91.6
Loss on extinguishment of debt (25.2) —
Income tax provision (8.2) {3.9)
Other nonoperating losses (0.6} (2.0)
Total nonoperating (losses) gains (49.5) 169.0
Excess of revenues over expenses § 111.3 __ 3047

5 {Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

Unrestricted net assets:
Excess of revenues over expenses
Acquired noncontrolling interests
Change in funded status of defined benefit plans
Distributions to noncontrelling interests
Net assets released from restrictions used for purchase of
property and equipment and other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Realized net gains on restricted investments
Change in unrealized (losses) gains on restricted investments
(Decrease) increase in net assets of foundation
Net assets released from resirictions

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets:
Realized net gains on marketable restricted investments
Change in unrealized (losses) gains on restricted investments

Increase in permanently restricted net assets
Increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

2015 2014

111.3 304.7
10.8 2
(118.5) 2.1)
(2.9) (3.7)
6.2 1.7

6.9 300.6
25.6 17.1
2.0 3.1
(2.4) 34
(1.9) 10.1
(13.2) (10.9)
10.1 22.8
03 0.1
(0.2) 0.2
0.1 0.3
17.1 323.7
1,488.6 1,164.9
1,505.7 1,488.6



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2015 ond 2014

(Dollars in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assels g
Adjusimenis 1o reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond financing costs, premiums and discounts
(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipment
Change in funded statws of defined benefit plans
Realized net gains on markeiable investments
Change in unreatized losses (gains) of marketable investments
Decrease (increase) in net assets ol foundation
Unrealized gain on derivative insirument
Net settlement payment on derivative instrument
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Distributions to noncontrolling interesls
Dieferred income 1ax provision
Provision for bad debts
Temporarily and permanently restricted contributions
Acquired noncontrolling interests
Gain on sale of conselidated joint venture, net of noncontrolling interests
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories and other assels
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Amounts due to third-party payors
Onher liabilities

Net cash provided by operations

Cash flows from investing activities:
(Purchases) proceeds of investments and nssets whose use is limited of restricied, net
Purchases ol allernative investments
Proceeds from sales ol alternative invesiments
Proceeds [rom sale of consolidated joint venture
Net settlement payment on derivative instrument
Purchases of property and equipment, and other

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash MNows from financing activilies:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Repayments of refinanced bonds and other borrowings
Payment of deferred issuance costs
Temporarily and permanently restricted contributions
Distributions 1o noncontrolling interests

Net cash provided by (used in) linancing activities
{Decrease) incrense in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents o1 beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5

Supplemental disclosure of cash fow information:
Interest paid &

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Accounts payable for fixed asset purchases S

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014
17.1 3237
188.9 181.4
(2.5) (1.2)
(0.1) 0.2
118.5 21
{45.5) (71.8)
785 (95.2)
1.9 (t0.1)
(1.1} {1.4)
36 3.7
25.2
29 37
6.1 36
206.7 193.2
(25.6) (17.1)
{10.8)
(L
{255.9) {224.3)
(7.8) (28.5)
7.8 107.0
(2.2 19.0
{44.8) 25.0
324.9 411.8
(111.2) 8.5
(109.6) (240.7)
359 128.8
54
(3.6) {3.7)
(252.4) (221.3)
(440.9) (250.0)
5116
(21.9) (20.5)
(420.2)
(3.8) (0.)
25.6 17.1
(2.9) (3.7)
88.4 (7.3)
(27.6) 154.5
399.9 445.4
372.3 599.9
508 50.8
19.5 17.0



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

(1) Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Organization

MedStar Health, Inc. (MedStar or the Corporation) is a tax-exempt, Maryland membership
corporation which, through its controlled entities and other affiliates, provides and manages
healthcare services in the region encompassing Maryland, Washington D.C. and Northern Virginia,
The Corporation became operational on June 30, 1998 by the transfer of the membership interests of
Helix Health, Inc. (Helix — a not-for-profit Maryland Corporation) and Medlantic Healthcare Group,
Inc. (Medlantic — a not-for-profit Delaware Corporation) in exchange for the guarantee of the debt of
both Helix and Medlantic by the Corporation. The trade names of the principal tax-exempt and
taxable entities of the Corporation are:

Tax-Exempt
®»  MedStar Ambulatory Services (formerly known as Bay Development Corporation)
° MedStar Franklin Square Medical Center
° MedStar Georgetown University Hospital
e MedStar Good Samaritan Hospital
e MedStar Harbor Hospital
e MedStar Health Research Institute
o  MedStar Health Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.
. MedStar Medical Group, LLC
. MedStar Montgomery Medical Center
. MedStar National Rehabilitation Network
e MedStar Southern Maryland Hospital Center
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital
® MedStar Surgery Center, Inc.
e MedStar Union Memorial Hospital
e  MedStar Washington Hospital Center
e  Church Home and Hospital of the City of Baltimore, Inc.
. HH MedStar Health, Inc.

¢  Greenspring Financial Insurance, LTD.
® MedStar Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
8 (Continued)
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(c)

(d)

(e

MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

. MedStar Family Choice, Inc.
. MedStar Physician Partners, Inc.
. Parkway Ventures, Inc. and Subsidiaries

. RadAmerica I, LLC
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). All majority owned subsidiaries,
direct member entities and controlled affiliates are consolidated. All entities where the Corporation
exercises significant influence but for which it does not have control are accounted for under the
equity method. All other entities are accounted for under the cost method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant changes to estimates resulting from
amounts settled, or tentatively settled, related to prior year third party cost reports (see note 9)
resulted in gains of approximately $22.1 during the year ended June 30, 2015. Significant changes to
estimates resulting from amounts settled, or tentatively settled, related to prior year third party cost
reports and amounts settled associated with the purchase of MedStar Southern Maryland Hospital
Center resulted in gains of approximately $20.0 during the year ended June 30, 2014. Future results
could differ from current estimates.

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less when purchased are
considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

The Corporation’s investment portfolio is considered trading, with the exception of the altemative
investments, and is classified as current or noncurrent assets based on management’s intention as to
use. All securities are reported at fair value principally based on quoted market prices in the
consolidated balance sheets. The Corporation has elected to use the fair value option to account for
its alternative investments. The fair value of alternative investments is determined based on the Net
Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in each investment company or partnership. Purchases and sales of
securities are recorded on a trade-date basis.

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates are accounted for under the cost or equity method of
accounting, as appropriate, and are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. The
Corporation utilizes the equity method of accounting for its investments in entities over which it

9 (Continued)
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MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{Dollars in millions)

exercises significant influence. The Corporation’s equity income or loss is recognized in other
operating revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under bond indenture,
self-insurance trust arrangements, assets restricted by donor, and assets designated by the Board of
Directors for future capital improvements and other purposes over which it retains control and may,
at its discretion, use for other purposes. Amounts from these funds required to meet current liabilities
have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as current assets.

Investment income (interest and dividends), realized gains and losses on investment sales, and
unrealized gains and losses are reported as nonoperating gains and losses in the excess of revenues
over expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
unless the income or loss is restricted by the donor or law. Investment income and realized gains and
losses on funds held in trust for self-insurance purposes is included in other operating revenue.
Investment income and net gains and losses that are restricted by the donor are recorded as a
component of changes in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, in accordance with donor
imposed restrictions. Realized gains and losses are determined based on the specific security’s
original purchase price or adjusted cost if the investment was previously determined to be
other-than-temporarily impaired.

Inventories

Inventories, which primarily consist of medical supplies and pharmaceuticals at many of the
operating entities, are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined primarily
under the average cost or first-in, first-out methods.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost and are depreciated or amortized over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives range from three to forty years.
Amortization of assets held under capital leases is computed using the shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life of the leased asset and is included in depreciation and amortization expense.
Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis. Major classes and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements Lease term
Buildings and improvements 1040 years
Equipment 3-20 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support,
and are excluded from the excess of revenues over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifis of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that
specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire

10 {Continued)



)

(i)

o)

k)

MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30,2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long
those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the
donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Management routinely evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for impairment. No
significant impairment charges were recorded against the carrying value of the Corporation’s
long-lived assets during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

Interest in Net Assets of Foundation

The Corporation recognizes its rights to assets held by a recipient organization, which accepts cash
or other financial assets from a donor and agrees to use those assets on behalf of or transfer those
assets, the return on investment of those assets, or both, to the Corporation. Changes in the
Corporation’s economic interests in the financially interrelated organization are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as a component of changes in
temporarily restricted net assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a
business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized. As of June 30,
2015 and 2014, the Corporation had one reporting unit, which included all subsidiaries of the
Corporation and held goodwill, net on its balance sheet of $219.2 and $190.2, respectively. Goodwill
is evaluated for impairment annually using a qualitative assessment to determine whether there are
cvents or circumstances that indicate it is more likely than not that the reporting unit’s fair value is
less than its carrying amount. Based on this qualitative assessment, the Corporation determined that
there was no goodwill impairment for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,

Other intangible assets are recorded at fair value and amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Other intangible assets were $48.2 and $42.4 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and related
accumulated amortization was $9.2 and $6.1, respectively. The Corporation recognized amortization
expense of $3.1 and $2.4 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, related to
identifiable intangible assets.

Internal-Use Software

The Corporation capitalizes the direct costs, including internal personnel costs, associated with the
implementation of new information systems for intemmal use. The Corporation capitalized internal
costs of $3.4 and $0.9 during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Capitalized
amounts are amortized over the estimated lives of the software, which is generally three to
five years.

Financing Costs

Financing costs incurred in issuing bonds have been capitalized and are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheets. These costs are being amortized over the estimated duration of the

11 (Continued)
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MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

related debt using the effective interest method. Accumulated amortization totaled $4.0 and $5.6 as
of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Estimated Professional Liability Costs

The provision for estimated self-insured professional liability claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. These estimates are
based on actuarial analysis of historical trends, claims asserted and reported incidents. The
receivables related to such claims are recorded at their net realizable value.

Leases

Lease arrangements, including assets under construction, are capitalized when such leases convey
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership. Capital leases are amortized over
cither the lease term or the life of the related assets, depending upon available purchase options and
lease renewal features. Amortization related to capital leases is included in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets within depreciation and amortization expense.

Derivative

The Corporation utilizes a derivative financial instrument to manage its interest rate risks associated
with tax-exempt debt. The Corporation does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The derivative instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at its fair
value. The Corporation’s current derivative investment does not qualify for hedge accounting;
therefore, the changes in fair value have been recognized in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets as mark-to-market adjustments in nonoperating
gains (losses). The fair market value of the derivative instrument is included in other long-term
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Net Patient Service Revenue and Net Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments due
to future audits, reviews and investigations, The differences between the estimated and actual
amounts are recorded as part of net patient service revenue in future periods as the amounts become
known, or as years are no longer subject to audit, review or investigation. Payment arrangements
include prospectively determined rates per discharge, fee-for-service, discounted charges, and per
diem payments. Hospital inpatient services, hospital outpatient services, physician services, and
other patient service revenues are recognized when the services are rendered based on billable
charges. Other patient service revenue primarily consists of home care, long-term care and other
non-hospital patient services.

The Corporation’s policy is to write-off all patient receivables which are identified as uncollectible.
Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts to reserve for
accounts which are expected to become uncollectible in future years. In evaluating the collectability
of accounts receivable, the Corporation analyzes historical collections and write-offs and identifies
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MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{Dollars in millions)

trends for each of its major payor sources of revenue and amounts due from patients to estimate the
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts and provision for bad debts.

Charity Care

The Corporation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policies
without charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Corporation does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Premium Revenue

Premium revenue consists of amounts received from the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia
and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) by the Corporation’s managed care
organization for providing medical services to subscribing participants, regardless of services
actually performed. The managed care organization provides services primarily to enrolled Medicaid
and Medicare beneficiaries. This revenue is recognized ratably over the contractual period for the
provision of services. Medical expenses of the managed care organization include actuarially
determined estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but
unreported and are included in purchased services on the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

Grants

Federal grants are accounted for as either an exchange transaction or as a contribution based on
terms and conditions of the grant. If the grant is accounted for as an exchange transaction, revenue is
recognized as other operating revenue when carned. If the grant is accounted for as a contribution,
the revenues arc recognized as either other operating revenue, or as temporarily restricted
contributions depending on the restrictions within the grant.

Coneributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are reported at fair value at the date
the condition is met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from
restrictions in other operating revenue. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met
within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted net assets and reported within other
operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Meaningful Use Incentives

Under certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), federal
incentive payments are available to hospitals, physicians and certain other professionals (Providers)
when they adopt, implement or upgrade certified electronic health record (EHR) technology and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30,2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long
those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the
donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Management routinely evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for impairment. No
significant impairment charges were recorded against the carrying value of the Corporation’s
long-lived assets during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

Interest in Net Assets of Foundation

The Corporation recognizes its rights to assets held by a recipient organization, which accepts cash
or other financial assets from a donor and agrees to use those assets on behalf of or transfer those
assets, the return on investment of those assets, or both, to the Corporation. Changes in the
Corporation’s economic interests in the financially interrelated organization are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as a component of changes in
temporarily restricted net assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a
business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized. As of June 30,
2015 and 2014, the Corporation had one reporting unit, which included all subsidiaries of the
Corporation and held goodwill, net on its balance sheet of $219.2 and $190.2, respectively. Goodwill
is evaluated for impairment annually using a qualitative assessment to determine whether there are
cvents or circumstances that indicate it is more likely than not that the reporting unit’s fair value is
less than its carrying amount. Based on this qualitative assessment, the Corporation determined that
there was no goodwill impairment for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,

Other intangible assets are recorded at fair value and amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Other intangible assets were $48.2 and $42.4 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and related
accumulated amortization was $9.2 and $6.1, respectively. The Corporation recognized amortization
expense of $3.1 and $2.4 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, related to
identifiable intangible assets.

Internal-Use Software

The Corporation capitalizes the direct costs, including internal personnel costs, associated with the
implementation of new information systems for intemmal use. The Corporation capitalized internal
costs of $3.4 and $0.9 during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Capitalized
amounts are amortized over the estimated lives of the software, which is generally three to
five years.

Financing Costs

Financing costs incurred in issuing bonds have been capitalized and are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheets. These costs are being amortized over the estimated duration of the
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related debt using the effective interest method. Accumulated amortization totaled $4.0 and $5.6 as
of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Estimated Professional Liability Costs

The provision for estimated self-insured professional liability claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. These estimates are
based on actuarial analysis of historical trends, claims asserted and reported incidents. The
receivables related to such claims are recorded at their net realizable value.

Leases

Lease arrangements, including assets under construction, are capitalized when such leases convey
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership. Capital leases are amortized over
cither the lease term or the life of the related assets, depending upon available purchase options and
lease renewal features. Amortization related to capital leases is included in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets within depreciation and amortization expense.

Derivative

The Corporation utilizes a derivative financial instrument to manage its interest rate risks associated
with tax-exempt debt. The Corporation does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The derivative instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at its fair
value. The Corporation’s current derivative investment does not qualify for hedge accounting;
therefore, the changes in fair value have been recognized in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets as mark-to-market adjustments in nonoperating
gains (losses). The fair market value of the derivative instrument is included in other long-term
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Net Patient Service Revenue and Net Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments due
to future audits, reviews and investigations, The differences between the estimated and actual
amounts are recorded as part of net patient service revenue in future periods as the amounts become
known, or as years are no longer subject to audit, review or investigation. Payment arrangements
include prospectively determined rates per discharge, fee-for-service, discounted charges, and per
diem payments. Hospital inpatient services, hospital outpatient services, physician services, and
other patient service revenues are recognized when the services are rendered based on billable
charges. Other patient service revenue primarily consists of home care, long-term care and other
non-hospital patient services.

The Corporation’s policy is to write-off all patient receivables which are identified as uncollectible.
Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts to reserve for
accounts which are expected to become uncollectible in future years. In evaluating the collectability
of accounts receivable, the Corporation analyzes historical collections and write-offs and identifies
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trends for each of its major payor sources of revenue and amounts due from patients to estimate the
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts and provision for bad debts.

Charity Care

The Corporation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policies
without charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Corporation does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Premium Revenue

Premium revenue consists of amounts received from the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia
and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) by the Corporation’s managed care
organization for providing medical services to subscribing participants, regardless of services
actually performed. The managed care organization provides services primarily to enrolled Medicaid
and Medicare beneficiaries. This revenue is recognized ratably over the contractual period for the
provision of services. Medical expenses of the managed care organization include actuarially
determined estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but
unreported and are included in purchased services on the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

Grants

Federal grants are accounted for as either an exchange transaction or as a contribution based on
terms and conditions of the grant. If the grant is accounted for as an exchange transaction, revenue is
recognized as other operating revenue when carned. If the grant is accounted for as a contribution,
the revenues arc recognized as either other operating revenue, or as temporarily restricted
contributions depending on the restrictions within the grant.

Coneributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are reported at fair value at the date
the condition is met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from
restrictions in other operating revenue. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met
within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted net assets and reported within other
operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Meaningful Use Incentives

Under certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), federal
incentive payments are available to hospitals, physicians and certain other professionals (Providers)
when they adopt, implement or upgrade certified electronic health record (EHR) technology and
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become “meaningful users,” as defined under ARRA, of EHR technology in ways that demonstrate
improved quality, safety and effectiveness of care. Incentive payments are paid out over varying
transitional schedules depending on the type of incentive (Medicare and Medicaid) and recipient
(hospital or eligible provider). Eligible hospitals can attest for both Medicare and Medicaid
incentives, while physicians must select to attest for either Medicare or Medicaid incentives. For
Medicare incentives, eligible hospitals receive payments over four years while eligible physicians
receive payments over five years. For Medicaid incentives, eligible hospitals receive payments based
on the relevant State adopted payment structure and physicians receive payments over six years.

The Corporation recognizes EHR incentives when it is reasonably assured that the Corporation will
successfully demonstrate compliance with the meaningful use criteria. During the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, certain hospitals and physicians satisfied the meaningful use criteria. As a
result, the Corporation recognized $28.1 and $23.4 of EHR incentives during the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, in other operating revenue.

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include a performance indicator,
which is the excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets that are excluded
from excess of revenues over expenses, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions that by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring
such assets), contributions from and acquisitions of and distributions to noncontrolling interests, and
defined benefit obligations in excess of recognized pension cost, among others.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or setiled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of
a change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Any changes to the
valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset are reflected in the year of the change. The Corporation
accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740, fncome Taxes.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Corporation or individual operating
units has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Corporation or individual operating
units in perpetuity.
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(x}  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

)
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other current assets, other assets, curremt liabilities and
long-term liabilities: The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for each of
these assets and liabilitics approximates their fair value.

The fair value of investments, assets whose use is limited or restricted and the interest rate swap is
discussed in note 3. The fair value of long term debt is discussed in note 6.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)issued Accounting Standards
update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.
Particularly, that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
cxchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 is effective for fiscal year 2019. The
Corporation expects to record a decrease in net patient service revenue and a corresponding decrease
in bad debt expense upon adoption of the standard.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current period presentation, the
cffect of which is not material.
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, at fair value consist

of the following:
2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 5 87.6 82.8
Fixed income securities and funds 393.1 356.2
Equity securities 604.1 559.3
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds 243.6 194.2
Inflation hedging equity, commodity, fixed income fund 58.8 72.4
Hedge fund of funds and private equity 305.9 276.2
Total investments and assets whose use is
limited or restricted 1,693.1 1,541.1
Less short-term investments and assets whose use is
limited or restricted (136.2) (122.7)
Long-term investments and assets whose use is
limited or restricted 5 1,556.9 1418.4

Assets whose use is limited or restricted as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, included in the table above, consist

of the following:
2015 2014
Funds held by trustees 3 30.7 60.5
Self-insurance funds 2934 256.6
Funds restricted by donors for specific purposes and
endowment 80.5 86.1
Funds designated by board 2114 207.0
Total assels whose use is limited or restricted 616.0 610.2
Less assets required for current obligations (61.3} (61.3)
Long-term assels whose use limited or restricted  § 554.7 548.9
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Investment income and realized and unrealized gains (losses) for assets whose use is limited, cash
equivalents and investments are comprised of the following for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Other operating revenue:
Investment income and realized gains b 18.5 8.5
Nonoperating gains:
Investment income 16.1 13.3
Net realized gains on investments 43.2 68.6
Unrealized (losses) gains on investments (75.9) 91.6
(16.6) 173.5
Other changes in net assets:
Realized net gains on temporarily and permanently
restricted net assets 23 3.2
Change in unrealized (losses) gains on temporarily and
permancntly restricted net assets (2.6) 3.6
Total investment return 3 1.6 188.8

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Corporation follows the guidance within FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (ASC 820),
which defines fair value and establishes methods used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). A financial instrument’s categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement,
The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are described below:

» Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

* Level2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset, either directly or indirectly
observable, that reflect assumptions market participants would use to price the asset based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Corporation.

¢ Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect the Corporations own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use to price an asset based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The Corporation has incorporated an Investment Policy Statement (IPS) into the investment program. The
IPS, which has been formally adopted by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, contains numerous
standards designed to ensurc adequate diversification by asset class and geography. The IPS also limits all
invesiments by manager and position size, and limits fixed income position size based on credit ratings,
which serves to further mitigate the risks associated with the investment program. As of June 30, 2015 and
2014, management believes that all investments were being managed in a manner consistent with the IPS.
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The following table illustrates the actual allocations of the Corporation’s primary long-term investment
portfolio as of June 30:

Actual Actual

allocation allocation

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Publicly traded equities — domestic 29% 26%
Publicly traded equities - international 14 14
Fixed income securities 14 16

Alternative investments:

Commingled equity funds 13 12
Inflation hedging equity, commodity, fixed income fund 5 9
Hedge funds 21 20
Private equities 1 1
Cash 3 2

Total 100% 100%

The table below presents the Corporation’s investable assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2015, aggregated
by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents b 659.9 — — 659.9
U.S. Treasury bonds 75.6 - — 75.6
U.S. agency mortgage
backed securities 151.8 - — 151.8
Corporate bonds — 132.8 — 132.8
Fixed income mutual funds 04 — — 04
All other fixed income
securities 3.2 29.3 — 325
Equity mutual funds & ETF's 147.4 — — 147.4
Common stocks 456.7 — — 456.7
Alternative investments:
Commingled funds — 243.6 — 243.6
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund - 58.8 — 58.8
Private equity — — 16.6 16.6
Hedge funds:
Custom hedge fund — — 59.7 59.7
Other hedge funds — — 229.6 229.6
Total assets b 1,495.0 464.5 305.9 22654
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap 3 -— 13.9 —- 13.9
Total liabilities $ — 13.9 — 139

The table below presents the Corporation’s investable assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2014, aggregated
by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 682.7 — — 682.7
U.S. Treasury bonds 71.1 — — 71.1
U.S. agency mortgage
backed securities 92.8 — — 92.8
Corporate bonds — 82.1 — 82.1
Fixed income mutual funds 0.8 76.9 — 77.7
All other fixed income
securitics 54 27.1 — 325
Equity mutual funds & ETF’s 121.8 — — 121.8
Common stocks 437.5 — — 4317.5
Alternative investments;
Commingled equity funds - 194.2 — 194.2
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed
income fund — 724 — 72.4
Private equity — e 17.0 17.0
Hedge funds:
Custom hedge fund —- e 58.8 58.8
Other hedge funds —- — 200.4 200.4
Total assets $ 1,412.1 452.7 276.2 2,141.0
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap — 15.0 — 15.0
Total liabilities 15.0 -— 15.0

Y =

For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.
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Changes to the fair values based on the Level 3 inputs are summarized as follows:

Balance as of June 30, 2013

Additions:
Contributions/purchases

Disbursements:
Withdrawals/sales

Net change in value

Balance as of June 30, 2014

Additions:
Contributions/purchases

Disbursements:
Withdrawals/sales

Net change in value

Balance as of June 30, 2015

Private Hedge
equity funds Total
3 16.4 160.1 176.5
1.4 204.3 205.7
34) (125.4) (128.8)
2.6 20.2 22.8
17.0 259.2 276.2
29 21.6 245
(4.8) — (4.8)
1.5 8.5 10.0
5 16.6 289.3 305.9

The following summarizes redemption terms for the hedge fund-of-funds vehicles held as of June 30,

2015:

Redemption timing:
Redemption frequency

Required notice
Audit reserve:
Percentage held back
for audit reserve
Gates:
Potential gatc holdback
Potential gate releasc
timeframe

Custom Hedge Fund
Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund 3 Fund 4
Quarterly 68% monthly - quarterly Quarterly Quarterly
32% quarterly — annually
70 days within 90 days 90 days 65 days
10% up to 10% 10% 10%
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The hedge funds include three hedge funds-of-funds and one custom hedge fund. The custom fund is
structured as a multi-strategy hedge fund with the Corporation as the sole investor. The investment
objective and strategics used by the hedge funds-of-funds and custom hedge fund are similar. The
investment objective is to achieve positive absolute returns with low volatility, achieved through
investments with multiple underlying managers who are investing across various strategies. Strategies
utilized within these hedge funds include, but are not limited to:

»  Credit/Distressed includes investment companies that focus mainly on opportunities in corporate fixed
income securities of companies that are in financial distress, or perceived financial distress, or going
through a restructuring or re-organization.

o Event Driven includes investment companies that focus on identifying securities that would benefit
from the occurrence of a major corporate event,

®  Global Macro includes investment companies that employ broad mandates to invest globally across all
asset classes, including interest rates, currencies, commodities, and equities, in order to benefit from
market movements within various countries.

e Equity Long/Short includes investment companies that maintain long and short positions in publicly
traded equities in order to capture opportunities driven by their perception of securities or industries being
overvalued or undervalued.

® Relative Value includes investment companies that seck to identify valuation discrepancies between
related securities, utilizing fundamental and quantitative techniques to establish equities, fixed income, and
derivative positions.

Investments in hedge funds are typically carried at estimated fair value. Fair value is based on the Net
Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in each investment company or partnership. Such investment companies
or partnerships mark-to-market or mark-to-fair value the underlying assets and liabilities in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. Realized and unrealized gains and losses of the investment companies and partnerships
are included in their respective operations in the current year. Changes in unrealized gains or losses on
investments, including those for which partial liquidations were effected in the course of the year, are
calculated as the difference between the NAV of the investment at year-end less the NAV of the
investment at the beginning of the year, as adjusted for contributions and redemptions made during the
year and certain lock-up provisions. Generally, no dividends or other distributions are paid.
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The following summarizes the status of contributions to the private equity fund-of-funds vehicles held as
of June 30, 2015:

Percentage of Percentage of
Total commitment commitment
commitment contributed remaining

Fund 1 3 11.0 95.0% 5.0%
Fund 2 7.1 95.3 4.7
Fund 3 7.1 90.0 10.0
Fund 4 10.0 14.3 85.7
Fund 5 5.0 23.5 76.5

Total 3 40.2

Investments in private equity funds, typically structured as limited partnership interests, are carried at fair
value using NAV or equivalent as determined by the General Partner in the absence of readily
ascertainable market values. Distributions under this investment structure are made to investors through the
liquidation of the underlying assets. It is expected to take up to ten years to fully distribute the proceeds of
those assets. The fair value of limited partnership interests is generally based on fair value capital balances
reported by the underlying partnerships, subject to management review and adjustment. Security values of
companies traded on exchanges, or quoted on NASDAQ, are based upon the last reported sales price on the
valuation date. Security values of companies traded over the counter, but not quoted on NASDAQ, and
securities for which no sale occurred on the valuation date arc based upon the last quoted bid price. The
value of any security for which a market quotation is not readily available may be its cost, provided
however, that the General Partner adjusts such cost value to reflect any bona fide third-party transactions in
such a security between knowledgeable investors, of which the General Partner has knowledge. In the
absence of any such third-party transactions, the General Partner may use other information to develop a
good faith determination of value. Examples include, but are not limited to, discounted cash flow models,
absolute value models, and price multiple models. Inputs for these models may include, but are not limited
to, financial statement information, discount rates, and salvage value assumptions.

The valuation of both marketable and nonmarketable securities may include discounts to reflect a lack of
liquidity or extraordinary risks, which may be associated with the investment. Determination of fair value
is performed on a quarterly basis by the General Partner. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
the determined values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for those investments existed.
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Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014

Land $ 84.1 83.8
Buildings and improvements 1,346.9 1,281.9
Equipment 1,801.2 1,746.4
3,232.2 3,112.1
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,139.2) (2,025.6)
1,093.0 1,086.5

Construction-in-progress 104.4 66.4
3 1,197.4 1,152.9

Construction-in-progress includes a variety of ongoing capital projects at the Corporation as of June 30,
2015 and 2014. Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment amounted to
$185.7 and $178.5 for the ycars ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

On April 1, 2015, the Corporation and Shah Associates, M.D, P.A. (Shah Associates or the Practice) closed
on an asset purchase agreement, whercby the Corporation purchased substantially all of the assets and
assumed certain obligations of the Practice and invested in certain real estate and management services
joint ventures with Shah Associates. The Practice is a multispecialty medical group serving Southern
Maryland and has joined the Corporation under the name MedStar Shah Medical Group (included within
MedStar Medical Group, LLC). Through this agreement, the Corporation added more than 85 providers in
17 medical specialties with offices throughout Southern Maryland. As a result of the transaction, the
Corporation recognized approximately $28.0 of goodwill and other intangible assets, approximately $25.0
of property, plant and equipment and approximately $8.0 of other liabilities. The consolidated financial
statements include the operations of the Practice since the closing date.

23 (Continued)



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Dollars in millions)

(5) Other Assets
Other assets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following:

2015 2014
Deferred financing costs, net 3 10.8 13.1
Investments in unconsolidated entities 14.9 15.2
Reinsurance receivables 33.1 47.3
Deferred tax asset 21.7 263
Other assets 55.8 449
$ 136.3 146.8

The Corporation has investments in other healthcare related organizations that are accounted for under the
equity method which total $14.9 and $15.2 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Under the equity
method, original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted by the Corporation’s share of the
undistributed camings or losses of these organizations. The related ownership interest in these
organizations ranges from 8% to 50%. The Corporation’s share of carnings in these organizations was $2.6
and $3.1 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are recognized in other operating
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Certain other
nonconsolidated entities are recorded under the cost method.
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(6) Dcbt
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Corporation’s outstanding borrowings include the following:
2015 2014
Maryland Health and Higher Educational Facilities:
Authority revenue bonds:
5.25% Term bonds (Series 1998A, due 2038) $ 82.0 82.0
5.25% Term bonds (Series 1998B, due 2038) 57.0 57.0
4.25%—5.75% Serial bonds (Series 2004, due
2009-2025) 4.6 21.6
5.375% Term bonds (Series 2004, due 2024) - 49.7
5.50% Term bonds (Series 2004, due 2033) - 80.1
4.75% Term bonds (Series 2007, due 2042) — 56.0
5.25% Term bonds (Series 2007, due 2046) — 89.0
2.00%-5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2011, due
2012-2023) 374 44.7
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2011, due 2031) 5.6 5.6
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2011, due 2041) 354 354
2.19% Direct Purchase (Series 2012, due 2017-2022) 38.6 38.6
3.00%—5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2013A, due
2016-2028) 60.9 60.9
5.00% Term bonds (Secries 2013A, duc 2038) 17.3 17.3
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2013A, due 2041) 25.0 25.0
4.00% Term bonds (Series 2013 A, due 2041) 14.6 14.6
3.00%-5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2013B, due
2025-2033) 60.8 60.8
4.00% Term bonds (Series 2013B, due 2038) 45.0 450
5.00% Term bonds (Series 20138, due 2038) 44.0 44.0
2.00%-5.00% Serial bonds (Series 2015, due
2016-2033) 180.4 —-
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2015, due 2038) 35.2 —
5.00% Term bonds (Series 2015, due 2042) 75.2 —
4.00% Term bonds (Series 2015, due 2045) 66.4 —
Plus unamortized net premium 75.8 28.0
961.2 855.3
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District of Columbia Hospital Revenue Bonds:
Multimodal revenue bonds:

0.02%-0.11% at June 30, 2015 Serial bonds (Series
1998A due 2008-2038) (0.03%-0.08% at
June 30, 2014

2.75%—5.00% Serial bonds (Series 1998B, due
2008-2019)

5.00% Term bonds (Series 1998B, due 2028)

5.00% Term bonds (Series 1998B, due 2038)

2.75%~5.00% Serial bonds (Series 1998C, due
2008-2019)

5.50% Term bonds (Series 1998C, duc 2028)

5.00% Term bonds (Series 1998C, due 2038)

Less unamortized net discount

MedStar Health, Inc. Taxable Revenue Bonds:
0.80%-3.70% Serial bonds (Series 2015, due
2016-2031)
Other:

Notes payable to financial institutions or state agencies
under mortgages (floating rates ranging between
1.1%-6.2%) and other

Line of credit due August 2016 (0.18%-0.84% at
June 30, 2015 and 0.18%-0.80% at June 30, 2014)

Total debt
Less current portion of long-term debt

Long-term debt, net

Scheduled maturities on borrowings, for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
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2015 2014
122.9 125.9
6.4 9.6
— 20.2
— 339
6.4 9.7
—_ 20.1
— 34.0
= (1.3)
135.7 252.1
100.9 —
14.9 15.9
129.8 129.8
144.7 145.7
1,342.5 1,253.1
(15.5) {60.5)
1,323.0 1,192.6

19.5
155.6
26.7
27.5
28.4
1,009.0

1,266.7
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The fair value of outstanding tax exempt bonds is estimated to be $1,109.3 and $1,145.4 as of June 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value of other long-term debt approximates its carrying value,

In December 1998, the Maryland Health and Higher Education Facilities Authority (MHHEFA) and the
District of Columbia (District) issued bonds (Series 1998 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. Bond
proceeds of approximately $588.6 were loaned to the Corporation under separate loan agreements with
MHHEFA and the District upon execution of obligations pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The
District issued $300.0 of Multimodal Revenue Bonds, including $150.0 Series 1998A ($30.3 repaid
through August 2015), $75.0 Series 1998B ($14.2 repaid through August 2015 and $55.9 advance
refunded in conjunction with the MHHEFA Series 2015 financing described below), and $75.0
Series 1998C ($14.2 repaid through August 2015 and $55.9 advance refunded in conjunction with the
MHHEFA Series 2015 financing described below).

The District Series 1998A bonds, which consist of three tranches totaling $119.7 at August 2015, trade as
uninsured Variable Rate Demand Obligations backed by bank letters of credit. The Series 1998A Tranche 1
bonds which remained outstanding in August 2015 consisted of approximately $39.9 bonds trading in a
daily mode backed by a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (formerly
Wachovia Bank, National Association) and remarketed by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. The letter of credit
expires in March 2017. In the event of a failed remarketing, the Tranche 1 boends would be tendered to the
bank and repaid over a four-year period, beginning 367 days following the date of the failed remarketing.
The Series 1998A Tranche II bonds totaled $39.9 in August 2015. These bonds trade in a weekly mode and
are remarketed by TD Securities. The letter of credit backing these bonds was issued by TD Bank, National
Association and expires in April 2018. In the event of a failed remarketing, the Tranche II bonds would be
tendered to the bank and repaid over a five-year period, beginning 367 days following the failed
remarketing. The Series 1998A Tranche HII bonds totaled $39.9 in August 2015. These bonds trade in a
weekly mode and are remarketed by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. The letter of credit backing these bonds
was issued by PNC Bank, National Association. The term of the letter of credit is five years, and expires in
May 2017. In the event of a failed remarketing, the Tranche III bonds would be tendered to the bank and
repaid over a four-year period, beginning 367 days following the failed remarketing. No portion of the
Series 1998A bonds has been put at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The $4.9 Series 1998B and $4.9
Series 1998C bonds (as of August 2015) are at a fixed rate, insured by Assured Guaranty, Ltd. (Assured;
formerly Financial Security Assurance, Inc.). The reimbursement obligation with respect to the letters of
credit are evidenced and secured by obligations issued by the Corporation under the Master Trust
Indenture.

MHHEFA issued $283.5 of Revenue Bonds, including the $166.6 Series 1998A ($82.0 outstanding afier
August 2015) and $116.9 Series 1998B ($57.0 outstanding after August 2015). All Series 1998 MHHEFA
bonds were issued at fixed rates. Principal and interest under the Series 1998 MHHEFA bonds are insured
under municipal insurance policies with Assured and Ambac. Of the original Series 1998 MHHEFA
bonds, $51.7 was refinanced in March 2013 in conjunction with the MHHEFA Series 2013A financing
described below.

Related to the District borrowings, the Corporation entered into an interest rate swap with Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association in a notional amount totaling $150.0 (reduced to $91.3 at August 2015). The
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swap agreement expires in fiscal year 2027. The interest rate swap is part of a comprehensive and
long-term capital structure strategy. The purpose of the swap is to mitigate the effect of potential interest
rate volatility and minimize the variability of the Corporation’s average cost of capital. Under the terms of
the swap, the Corporation pays a fixed rate and receives a variable rate. Collateral is only required to be
posted under the swap in the event that the Corporation’s credit ratings are downgraded by two rating
agencies below the BBB — or Baa2 — level. To date, no collateral postings have been required. As of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, the variable interest rate under these agreements was 0.12% and 0.10%,
respectively. The fixed rate was 3.6875% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. The variable rates are capped at
14.0%. The change in fair value of the swap is reported in nonoperating gains (losses) in the statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

In February 2004, MHHEFA issued $170.3 in fixed rate bonds (Series 2004 Bonds) on behalf of the
Corporation. The proceeds of the Series 2004 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan
agreement with MHHEFA upon execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. $142.5
of the Series 2004 Bonds were refunded in conjunction with the MHHEFA Series 2015 financing
described below, and the remaining bonds were fully repaid as of August 2015.

In January 2007, MHHEFA issued $145.0 in fixed rate bonds (Series 2007 Bonds) on behalf of the
Corporation. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $148.6. The
proceeds of the Series 2007 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with
MHHEFA upon execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2007 bonds
were advance refunded in conjunction with the MHHEFA Series 2015 financing described below.

In November 2011, MHHEFA issued $94.9 in bonds (Series 2011 Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation.
The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with
MHHEFA upon execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2011 Bonds
were issued as $53.9 serial bonds maturing 2012 through 2023 ($24.0 repaid through August 2015), $5.6
term bonds maturing 2031, and $35.4 term bonds maturing 2041. The Series 2011 Bonds maturing on or
after August 2022 are subject to redemption or purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity
beginning in 2021. The Series 2011 Bonds were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from this transaction
were used to refund $20.2 of the MHHEFA Series 1998 A&B bonds, to refund debt outstanding on the
Corporation’s Revolving Credit Facility, and to refund certain debt associated with MedStar St. Mary’s
Hospital.

In June 2012, the Corporation entered into a $38.6 MHHEFA Direct Purchase financing transaction with
JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (the Series 2012 Bond). The proceeds from the transaction were used to
redeem certain outstanding MHHEFA Series 1998A bonds that were due to mature in 2018 as well as a
portion of the outstanding MHHEFA Series 1998 A&B bonds due to mature in 2028. The repayment of the
Series 2012 Bond is evidenced by an obligation issued under the Master Trust Indenture. The term of the
Series 2012 Bond is ten years and the repayment terms approximate the previous repayment terms of the
Series 1998 bonds that were refunded. Covenants, conditions, and security for the Series 2012 Bond is
similar to the revolving credit agreement.

In March 2013, MHHEFA issued $117.8 in bonds (Series 2013A Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The
Series 2013A Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $128.7. The proceeds of the

28 (Continued}



MEDSTAR HEALTH, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{Dollars in millions)

Series 2013A Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with MHHEFA upon
execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2013A Bonds were issued as
$60.9 serial bonds maturing 2016 through 2028, $17.3 term bonds maturing 2038, $25.0 term bonds due
2041, and $14.6 term bonds maturing 2041. The Series 2013A Bonds maturing on or afier August 2024 are
subject to redemption or purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2023. The
Series 2013A Bonds were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction were used to refund
$51.7 of the MHHEFA Series 1998 A&B bonds, to fund various capital projects and capitalized interest on
those projects.

In May 2013, MHHEFA issued $149.8 in bonds (Series 2013B Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The
Series 2013B Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of $159.4. The proceeds of the
Series 2013B Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement with MHHEFA upon
execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2013B Bonds were issued as
$60.8 serial bonds maturing 2025 through 2033, $45.0 term bonds maturing 2038, and $44.0 term bonds
maturing 2038. The Series 2013B Bonds maturing on or after August 2024 are subject to redemption or
purchase at the option of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2023. The Series 2013B Bonds
were issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction were used to refinance a portion of the bridge
loan pwt in place when MedStar acquired the assets of Southern Maryland Hospital Center in
December 2012.

In February 2015, MHHEFA issued $357.2 in bonds {Series 2015 MHHEFA Bonds) on behalf of the
Corporation. The Scries 2015 MHHEFA Bonds were issued at a premium, resulting in total proceeds of
$410.8. The proceeds of the Series 2015 MHHEFA Bonds were loaned to the Corporation pursuant to a
loan agreement with MHHEFA upon execution of an obligation pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture.
The Series 2015 MHHEFA Bonds were issued as $180.4 serial bonds maturing 2016 through 2033, $35.2
term bonds maturing 2038, $75.2 term bonds maturing 2042, and $66.4 term bonds maturing 2045. The
Scries 2015 MHHEFA Bonds maturing on or after August 2025 are subject to redemption or purchase at
the option of the Corporation prior to maturity beginning in 2025. The Series 2015 MHHEFA Bonds were
issued at fixed rates. The proceeds from the transaction were used to advance refund the MHHEFA Secrics
2007 bonds, refund a portion of the MHHEFA Series 2004 bonds, and advance refund a portion of the
District 1998B and 1998C bonds.

In February 2015, MedStar Health, Inc. issued $100.9 in fixed rate bonds, issued at par, in the taxable
market (Series 2015 Taxable Bonds) on behalf of the Corporation. The Series 2015 Taxable Bonds were
issued as parity bonds under the Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2015 Taxable Bonds were issued as
serial bonds maturing 2016 through 2031, and are subject to optional redemption prior to their respective
maturities at a make-whole redemption price, together with accrued interest thercon to the redemption date.
The proceeds from the transaction were used to finance and refinance the acquisition and renovation of
ambulatory care facilitics.

The Corporation, which is currently the sole member of an “obligated group” as defined in the Master
Trust Indenture, is bound by the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture for payment of any outstanding
obligations under existing loan agreements. All of the hospitals and certain other affiliates (the guarantors)
of the Corporation are parties to a guaranty agreement pursuant to which they jointly and severally
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guaranty the payment and performance of the obligations under the Master Trust Indenture. The
obligations of the guarantors under the Guaranty Agreement are collateralized by deeds of trust granted by
the hospitals. Under the Master Trust Indenture and the deeds of trust, as collateral for the payments due
thereunder, the Corporation and its hospital affiliates, have granted a security interest in their revenues
subject to permitied encumbrances.

Under the Master Trust Indenture, the Corporation is required to maintain, among other covenants, a
maximum annual debt service coverage ratio of not less than 1.10. Under the loan agreements relating to
the Series 1998 Bonds, the Corporation is required to maintain a historical debt service coverage ratio of
not less than 2.0 and to maintain at least 65 days cash on hand. In the event the Corporation does not meet
cither of these requirements, it is required to fund a trustec-held debt service reserve fund securing the
Series 1998 Bonds. The amount to be deposited shall equal the lesser of: 10% of the principal amount of
such outstanding bonds, or the largest annual debt service with respect to such bonds in any future year, or
125% of the average annual debt service of future years. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no
funds required to be held in the debt service reserve fund for the Series 1998 Bonds.

The Corporation maintains a $250.0 revolving credit agreement provided by a group of banks. The facility
has a three-year term expiring in August 2016. The facility is evidenced by an obligation issued under the
Master Trust Indenture. The outstanding balance on the facility was $129.8 at June 30, 2015 and 2014. The
facility includes certain covenants, including a requirement to maintain Days Cash on Hand of 70 days,
measured semi-annually at each June 30 and December 31, and a Debt Service Coverage ratio of 1.25,
measured quarterly on a rolling four quarters basis. In addition, the Corporation is required to maintain a
minimum credit rating of Baa2 or its equivalent from at least two of Moody’s Investor’s Service, Standard
& Poor’s, and Fitch Ratings. In addition, the Corporation maintains a $30.0 letter of credit facility,
provided by a single lender, which is also evidenced by an obligation issued under the Master Trust
Indenture. This facility is principally used to securitize certain regulatory obligations under various
insurance programs, and has terms and conditions similar to the revolving credit agreement. The facility
has a three-year term expiring in August 2016. However, the standby letters of credit issued under the
facility can be canceled at the bank’s option each year. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, standby letters of
credit issued pursuant to the facility were $21.2 and $18.2, respectively. No amounts have been drawn by
the beneficiaries under the standby letters of credit.

Retirement Plans

The Corporation has two qualified defined benefit pension plans (MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity
Plan (PEP) and MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan (CBRP)) covering substantially all
full-time employees hired before 2005. MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital also has a defined benefit plan that
substantially covers all employees of MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital. Participation in all plans has been
closed to new entrants and all plans are frozen to future benefit accruals.

Benefits under the plans are substantially based on years of service and the employees’ career eamnings.
The Corporation contributes to the plans based on actuarially determined amounts necessary to provide
assets sufficient to meet benefits to be paid to plan participants and to meet the minimum funding
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended by the Pension
Protection Act of 2006, and Internal Revenue Service regulations. Effective July 1, 2000, employees of the
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Transferred Businesses (note 17) became participants in one of the Corporation’s pension plans and are
reflected in the pension information provided below.

The Corporation’s investment policies are established by the MedStar Health, Inc.’s Investment
Committee, which is comprised of members of the Board of Directors, other community leaders, and
management. Among its responsibilities, the Investment Committee is charged with establishing and
reviewing assct allocation strategies, monitoring investment manager performance, and making decisions
to retain and terminate investment managers. Assets of each of the Corporation’s pension plans are
managed in a similar fashion by the same group of investment managers. The Corporation has incorporated
an Investment Policy Statement (IPS) into the investment program. The IPS, which has been formally
adopted by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, contains numerous standards designed to ensure adequate
diversification by asset class and geography. The IPS also limits all investments by manager and position
size, and limits fixed income position size based on credit ratings, which serves to further mitigate the risks
associated with the investment program. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, management believes that all
investments were being managed in a manner consistent with the IPS.

The following table illustrates the actual allocations of the Corporation’s pension plans’ investment
portfolio as of June 30:

Actual Actual
allocation allacation
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
Publicly traded equities — domestic 29% 30%
Publicly traded equities — international 11 10
Fixed income securities 15 16
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds 15 14
Inflation hedging equity, commeodity, fixed income fund 4 5
Hedge funds 20 18
Private equities 2 2
Cash 4 5
Total 100% 100%
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The table below presents the Corporation’s pension plans’ investable assets as of June 30, 2015 aggregated

by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Treasury bonds
U.S. agency morigage
backed securitics
Corporate bonds
All other fixed income securities
Equity mutual funds and ETF's
Common stocks
Altemnative investments:
Commingled funds
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed income fund
Private equity
Hedge funds:
Custom hedge fund
Other hedge funds

Total assets

3

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
471 — — 47.1
50.5 —_ — 50.5
247 — - 24.7

— 67.0 - 67.0

1.0 14.2 - 15.2

73.8 — —— 73.8

344.5 — - 344.5

— 155.2 s 155.2

— 433 - 433

- — 18.5 18.5

— — 47.6 47.6

— — 156.4 156.4

541.6 279.7 222.5 1,043.8
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The table below presents the Corporation’s pension plans’ investable assets as of June 30, 2014 aggregated
by the three level valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 50.1 - - 50.1
U.S. Treasury bonds 428 - - 42.8
U.S. agency morigage backed
securities 24.0 — - 240
Corporate bonds e 37.2 — 37.2
Fixed income mutual funds — 47.2 — 47.2
All other fixed income securities 1.2 13.2 — 144
Equity mutual funds and ETF’s 74.5 — - 74.5
Common stocks 346.1 — -— 346.1
Alternative investments:
Commingled equity funds — 145.2 — 145.2
Inflation hedging equity,
commodity, fixed income lund — 554 —_ 554
Private equity - — 17.0 17.0
Hedge funds:
Custom hedge fund - — 48.1 48.1
Other hedge funds — — 144.9 144.9
Tolal assets $ 538.7 208.2 210.0 1,046.9

For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.
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Changes to the fair values based on the Level 3 inputs are summarized as follows:

Private Hedge

equity funds Total
Balance as of June 30, 2013 3 17.0 111.4 128.4
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 1.3 149.3 150.6
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales (3.4) (83.2) (86.6)
Net change in value 2.1 15.5 17.6
Balance as of June 30, 2014 17.0 193.0 210.0
Additions:

Contributions/purchases 4.2 6.0 10.2
Disbursements:

Withdrawals/sales 4.9) — 4.9)
Net change in value 2.2 5.0 7.2
Balance as of June 30, 2015 5 18.5 204.0 2225

The following summarizes redemption terms for the hedge fund-of-funds vehicles held as of June 30,

2015:
Custom Hedge Fund
Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund 3 Fund 4

Redemption timing:

Redemption frequency Quarterly 68% monthly — quarterly Quarterly Quarterly

32% quarterly - annually

Required notice 70 days within 90 days 90 days 65 days
Audit reserve:

Percentage held back

for audit reserve 10% up to 10% 10% 10%

Gates:

Potential gate holdback — — -
Potential gate release
timeframe — _ -
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The hedge funds include threc hedge funds-of-funds and one custom hedge fund. The custom fund is
structured as a multi-strategy hedge fund with the Corporation as the sole investor. The investment
objective and strategies used by the hedge funds-of-funds and custom hedge fund are similar. The
investment objective is to achieve positive absolute returns with low volatility, achieved through
investments with multiple underlying managers who arc investing across various strategies, Strategies
utilized within these hedge funds include, but are not limited to:

o Credit/Distressed includes investment companies that focus mainly on opportunitics in corporate fixed
income securities of companies that are in financial distress, or perceived financial distress, or going
through a restructuring or re-organization.

e Event Driven includes investment companies that focus on identifying securities that would benefit
from the occurrence of a major corporate event.

¢ Global Macro includes investment companies that employ broad mandates to invest globally across all
asset classes, including interest rates, currencies, commodities, and equities, in order to benefit from
market movements within various countries.

e Egquity Long/Short includes investment companies that maintain long and short positions in publicly
traded equities in order to capture opportunities driven by their perception of securities or industries being
overvalued or undervalued.

* Relative Value includes investment companies that seck to identify valuation discrepancies between
related securities, utilizing fundamental and quantitative techniques to establish equities, fixed income, and
derivative positions.

Investments in hedge funds are typically carried at estimated fair value. Fair value is based on the Net
Asset Value (NAV) of the shares in each investment company or partnership. Such investment companies
or partnerships mark-to-market or mark-to-fair value the underlying assets and liabilities in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. Realized and unrealized gains and losses of the investment companies and partnerships
are included in their respective operations in the current year. Changes in unrealized gains or losses on
investments, including those for which partial liquidations were effected in the course of the year, are
calculated as the difference between the NAV of the investment at year-end less the NAV of the
investment at the beginning of the year, as adjusted for contributions and redemptions made during the
year and certain lock-up provisions. Generally, no dividends or other distributions are paid.
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The following summarizes the status of contributions to the private equity fund-of-funds vehicles held as
of June 30, 2015:

Percentage of Percentage of
Total commitment commitment
commitment contributed remaining_

Fund 1 $ 9.0 05.0% 5.0%
Fund 2 8.5 95.3 4.7
Fund 3 8.5 90.0 10.0
Fund 4 5.0 11.5 88.6
Fund 5 5.0 23.5 76.5
Fund 6 5.0 38.0 62.0

Total b 41.0

Investments in private equity funds, typically structured as limited partnership interests are carried at fair
value using NAV or equivalent as determined by the General Partmer in the absence of readily
ascertainable market values. Distributions under this investment structure are made to investors through the
liquidation of the underlying assets. It is expected to take up to ten years to fully distribute the proceeds of
those assets. The fair value of limited partnership interests is generally based on fair value capital balances
reported by the underlying partnerships, subject to management review and adjustment. Security values of
companies traded on exchanges, or quoted on NASDAQ, are based upon the last reported sales price on
the valuation date. Sccurity values of companies traded over the counter, but not quoted on NASDAQ, and
securities for which no sale occurred on the valuation date are based upon the last quoted bid price. The
value of any security for which a market quotation is not readily available may be its cost, provided
however, that the General Partner adjusts such cost value to reflect any bona fide third party transactions in
such a security between knowledgeable investors, of which the General Partner has knowledge. In the
absence of any such third party transactions, the General Partner may use other information to develop a
good faith determination of value. Examples include, but are not limited to, discounted cash flow models,
absolute value models, and price multiple models. Inputs for these models may include, but are not limited
to, financial statement information, discount rates, and salvage value assumptions.

The valuation of both marketable and nonmarketable securities may include discounts to reflect a lack of
liquidity or extraordinary risks, which may be associated with the investment. Determination of fair value
is performed on a quarterly basis by the General Partner. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
the determined values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for those investments existed.

The Corporation has established a long-term investment return target of 7.75% for both the PEP and CBRP
in 2015 and 2014, respectively. These assumptions are based on historical returns achieved in the
investment portfolios and represent the return that can rcasonably be expected to be genecrated on a
similarly structured portfolio in the future.
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The Corporation recognizes the funded status of defined benefit pension plans in the consolidated balance
sheets and the recognition in unrestricted net assets of unrecognized gains or losses, prior service costs or
credits and transition assets or obligations. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair
value of the plan’s assets and the projected benefit obligation of the plan. The measurement date for the
plans is June 30.

The following are deferred pension costs which have not yet been recognized in periodic pension expense
but instead are accrued in unrestricted net assets, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. Unrecognized actuarial
losses represent unexpected changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets over time, primarily
due to changes in assumed discount rates and investment experience. Unrecognized prior service cost is the
impact of changes in plan benefits applied retrospectively to employee service previously rendered.
Deferred pension costs are amortized into annual pension expense over the expected future lifetime for
active employees with frozen benefits.

Amounts in Amounts Amounts
unrestricted recognized in recognized in
net assets to unrestricted unrestricted
be recognized net assets net assets
during the as of as of
next fiscal year June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Net actuarial loss $ 17.4 667.9 549.4

The following table sets forth the plans’ funded status and amounts recognized in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year b 1,278.8 1,183.0
Interest cost 57.0 59.1
Actuarial loss 53.7 89.9
Benefits paid (55.1) (53.2)
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,334.4 1,278.8
Change in plan assets:
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year 1,046.9 831.0
Actual return on plan assets 3.7 143.2
Company contributions 55.7 759
Bencfits paid (55.1}) (53.2)
Plan assets at fair value at end of year 1,043.8 1,046.9
Funded status/net amount recognized $ (290.6) (231.9)
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The amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements consist of the following as of June 30:

2015 2014
Pension assets {(included in other assets) 3 24 24
Pension liabilities (293.0) {234.3)

The Corporation has estimated $77.0 for its defined benefit contributions for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2015. The accumulated benefit obligation is $1,334.4 and $1,278.8 at June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Expected fiscal year benefit payments for all defined benefit plans is as follows:

2016 5 60.5
2017 62.6
2018 66.7
2019 69.7
2020 74.6
2021-2025 409.0

3 743.1

Net periodic pension (income) expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 5 57.0 59.1
Return on plan assets (77.7) (69.6)
Recognized actuarial loss 16.4 14.2
Net periodic pension (income) expense b (4.3) 3.7
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The assumptions used in determining net periodic pension expense and accrued pension costs shown above
are as follows:

2015 2014
Discount rates for obligations at year end:
MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity Plan 4.70% 4.65%
MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan 4.50 4,50
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital Pension Plan 435 4.25
Discount rates for pension cost:
MedStar Health, Inc. Pension Equity Plan — July 1 -
June 30 4.65% 5.20%
MedStar Health, Inc. Cash Balance Retirement Plan —
July 1 = June 30 4.50 5.05
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospita! Pension Plan - July 1 -
June 30 4.25 5.00
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets — PEP and
CBRP 7.75% 7.75%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets — MedStar
St. Mary’s Hospital 7.50 7.50

In 2015, the mortality assumption for the plans was updated to reflect recently published general industry
mortality tables. Those tables were adjusted to reflect a slightly lower level of long-term improvement in
life expectancy.

The Corporation also has various contributory, tax deferred annuity and savings plans with participation
available to certain employees. The Corporation matches employee contributions up to 3.0% of
compensation in certain plans. The Corporation contributed approximately $29.1 and $27.3 during the
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Business and Credit Concentrations

The Corporation provides healthcare services through its inpatient and outpatient care facilities located in
the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia and Northern Virginia. The Corporation generally does not
require collateral or other security in extending credit; however it routinely obtains assignment of (or is
otherwise entitled to receive) patients’ benefits receivable under their health insurance programs, plans or
policies (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, Workers® Compensation, health maintenance organizations
(HMOs) and commercial insurance policies).
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The Corporation estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on the aging of accounts
receivable, historical collection experience, payor mix and other relevant factors. A significant portion of
the allowance for uncollectible accounts relates to self-pay patients, as well as co-payments and
deductibles owed by patients with insurance. There are various factors that can impact collection trends,
such as changes in the economy, which in turn have an impact on unemployment rates and the number of
uninsured and underinsured patients. Other factors include the volume of patients through the emergency
departments and the increased level of co-payments and deductibles due from patients with insurance.
These factors continuously change and can have an impact on collection trends and the estimation process.

The activity in the allowance for uncollectible accounts is summarized as follows for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Beginning balance $ 188.8 204.3
Provision for bad debts 206.7 193.2
Write-offs, net of recoveries (188.5) (208.7)
Ending balance $ 207.0 188.8

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Corporation’s allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately
26.2% and 25.3%, respectively, as a percentage of patient service receivables. The Corporation’s provision
for bad debts represents 4.7% and 4.6% of net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively.

A summary of net patient service revenue by major category of payor for the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Medicare and Medicare HMO $ 34% 37%
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO 13 11
Carefirst Blue Cross Blue Shield 23 19
Other commercial and managed care payors 23 24
Self-pay 7 9
b 100% 100%
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A summary of net patient receivables by major category of payor as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

2015 2014
Medicare and Medicare HMO 5 27% 27%
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO 19 18
Carefirst Blue Cross Blue Shield 15 14
Other commercial and managed care payors 33 33
Self-pay 6 8
% 100% 100%

Certain Maryland-based hospital charges are subject to review and approval by the Health Services Cost
Review Commission (HSCRC). The HSCRC has jurisdiction over hospital reimbursement in Maryland by
agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). This agreement is based on a
waiver from the Medicare Prospective Payment System reimbursement principles granted under
Section 1814(b) of the Social Security Act.

Under the Maryland HSCRC rate methodology, amounts payable for services in 2015 and 2014 to
Maryland hospital patients under the Medicare and Medicaid insurance programs are computed at 94% of
regulated charges. This discount amount does not include MCO granted discounts for medical education.
Hospital patients under the Blue Cross and approved health maintenance organization insurance programs
are computed at 98% of regulated charges. Maryland accounts receivable from these third-party payors
have been adjusted to reflect the difference between charges and the payable amounts.

In January 2014, CMS approved Maryland’s new waiver for a five-year period beginning January 1, 2014
for inpatient and outpaticnt hospital services. The new waiver ties hospital per capita revenue growth to the
state’s economic growth of 3.58% and will require growth in Medicare spending per beneficiary in
Maryland to be 0.5% below the national average. CMS can require the State to submit a corrective action
plan if targets for a given performance year are not met. The new waiver also imposes quality measures
and encourages population health management.

In connection with the new waiver, the HSCRC introduced new revenue arrangements, including the
Global Budget Revenue (GBR) model. This new model for Maryland Hospitals moves payment to
hospitals from each individual service to a total revenue for cach hospital or a combination of hospitals to
provide hospitals flexibility in the objectives of better care for individuals, higher levels of overall
population health, and improved health care affordability. It removes the financial incentive from
increasing volume and provides incentive to work with partners to provide care in the appropriate setting,
The Corporation entered into a GBR arrangement covering five of its seven Maryland hospitals during the
year ended June 30, 2014. In August 2014, the Corporation also entered into GBR arrangements for its
remaining two Maryland hospitals. The GBR arrangement is expected to be in place at least three years,
but will be rencwed annually uniess terminated by either party with 180 days prior notice. The Corporation
recognized hospital inpatient and outpatient regulated revenue under the new arrangement for the hospitals
covered under the arrangement for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.
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The Budget Control Act of 2011 (the Budget Control Act) mandated significant reductions and spending
caps on the federal budget for fiscal years 2012 through 2021. As part of this legislation, a 2% reduction in
Medicare spending, known as Sequestration, was implemented beginning April 1, 2013 and the
Corporation’s Medicare payments subsequent to that date were reduced by the mandatory 2%. It is not
possible to determine how future congressional actions to reduce the federal deficit in order to end
Sequestration will impact the Corporation’s revenues.

Through its MedStar Family Choice, Inc. subsidiary, the Corporation enters into fee-for-service and
capitation agreements with independent health professionals and organizations to provide covered services
to eligible enrollees where such services cannot be provided by its employed physicians or controlled
entities. This subsidiary has contracts to provide Medicare and Medicaid services to those within Maryland
and the District of Columbia. Premium revenue primarily consists of the following:

2015 2014
Maryland Medicaid $ 309.5 204.2
District of Columbia Medicaid 2124 152.1
Total Medicaid $ 521.9 356.3
Maryland Medicare 3 36.4 0.0
District of Columbia Medicare 2.6 1.2
Total Medicare $ 39.0 1.2

Medical and clinical expenses from these agreements include claim payments, capitation payments, and
cstimates of outstanding claims liabilities for services provided prior to the balance sheet date. The
estimates of outstanding claims liabilities of $62.3 and $52.2 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
arc based on management’s analysis of historical claims paid reports and review of health services
utilization during the period and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in these estimates are recorded in the period of change. Claims
payments and capitation payments arc expensed in the period services are provided to eligible enrollees.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertaintics

The Corporation provides general healthcare services in the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia
and Northern Virginia. As a healthcare provider, the Corporation is subject to certain significant inherent
risks, including the following:

e Dependence on revenues derived from reimbursement by the federal Medicare and state Medicaid
programs;

» Regulation of hospital rates by the State of Maryland HSCRC;

» Government regulation, government budgetary constraints and proposed legislative and regulatory
changes, and,;

e Lawsuits alleging malpractice or other claims.
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Such inherent risks require the use of certain management estimates in the preparation of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements and it is reasonably possible that a change in such estimates may occur.

The Medicare and state Medicaid reimbursement programs represent a substantial portion of the
Corporation’s revenues and the Corporation’s operations are subject to a variety of other federal, state and
local regulatory requirements. In addition, changes in federal and state reimbursement funding mechanisms
and related government budgetary constraints could have a significant adverse effect on the Corporation.
Similarly, failure by the Corporation to maintain required regulatory approvals and licenses and/or changes
in related regulatory requirements could have a significant adverse effect.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject
to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by
a material amount. Management periodically reviews recorded amounts receivable from or payable to
third-party payors and may adjust these balances as new information becomes available. In addition,
revenue received under certain third-party agreements is subject to audit. During 2015 and 2014, certain of
the Corporation’s prior year third-party cost reports were audited and settled, or tentatively settled, by
third-party payors. Adjustments resulting from such audits and management reviews of unaudited years
and open claims are reflected as adjustments to revenue in the year that the adjustment becomes known.
Although certain other prior year cost reports submitted to third-party payors remain subject to audit and
retroactive adjustment, management does not expect any material adverse settlements.

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations from federal, state and local
governments, and the government has increased enforcement of Medicare and Medicaid anti-frand and
abuse laws, as well as physician self referral laws (Stark laws and regulation). The Corporation’s
compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to periodic governmental inquiries, and the
Corporation has responded appropriately to any such inquiries. The Corporation is aware of certain
asserted and unasserted legal claims by the government, and from time to time, the Corporation may agree
to resolve certain legal claims asserted by the government. The Corporation will continue to monitor all
government inquiries and respond appropriately. The final outcomes of these govermnment investigations
cannot be determined at this time.

Recent federal initiatives have prompted a national review of federally funded healthcare programs. To this
end, the federal government, and many states, implemented programs to audit and recover potential
overpayments to providers from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Since June 2010, the Corporation’s
hospitals have received audit requests from the Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program.
These RAC audit requests have focused on medical necessity of inpatient admissions and hospital coding
practices. In addition, the hospitals have continued to receive routine audit requests from other Medicare
and Medicaid contractors and the Office of Inspector General. The Corporation’s hospitals have
cooperated with each of these audit requests and implemented a program to track and manage their effect,
In October 2014, in response to a global scttlement offer made by the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS), the Corporation’s hospitals submitted requests to settle certain outstanding appeals of
claims denied by the RAC and other Medicare contractors on the basis of patient status. The hospitals
entered into settlements with CMS and have received initial settlement payments of approximately $11.0,
which have been reflected as adjustments to revenue in the current period.
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As a result of recently enacted and pending federal healthcare reform legislation, rules and regulations,
substantial changes are occurring in the United States healthcare system. These include numerous
provisions affecting the delivery of healthcare services, the financing of healthcare costs, reimbursement to
healthcare providers and the legal obligations of health insurers, providers and employers. These
provisions are currently slated to take effect at specified times over the next decade. This federal healthcare
reform legislation did not significantly affect the 2015 or 2014 consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation, in the normal course of business, is a party to legal and regulatory proceedings. These
include a lawsuit filed in June 2011 by several MedStar Washington Hospital Center (MWHC) employees
alleging violations by the Corporation of wage-hour laws. The plaintiffs in this action are seeking
certification of a class that would include hourly employees at all of the Corporation’s hospitals. The
Corporation is opposing class certification and taking other steps to defend itself and the hospitals in this
litigation. The final outcome of litigation cannot be determined at this time. In April 2014, another lawsuit
was filed in federal court alleging similar wage-hour violations as the 2011 action. This lawsuit seeks to
certify a class to include hourly employees at six of the Company’s hospitals; and in August 2015,
plaintiffs added a seventh MedStar hospital to this litigation. The Corporation will oppose class
certification and otherwise defend itself and the hospitals in this matter.

In June 2015, MWHC agreed on a new collective bargaining agreement with the union that represents its
nurses, National Nurses United. That agreement provides for a four-year term through May 31, 2019.

The Corporation, in the normal course of business, is a party to a number of legal and regulatory
proceedings. Management does not expect that the results of these proceedings will have a material
adverse cffect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Corporation.

Self-Insurance Programs

The Corporation maintains sclf-insurance programs for professional and general liability risks, employee
health and workers’ compensation. Estimated liabilities have been recorded based on actuarial estimation
of reported and incurred but not reported claims. The combined accrued liabilities for these programs at
June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Professional and general liability 3 344.6 3454
Employee health 20.2 18.9
Workers’ compensation 34.2 34.4
Total liabilities 399.0 308.7
Less current portion (88.4) (86.3)

5 310.6 3124
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The Corporation’s self insurance program for professional and general liability is responsible for the
following exposures as of June 30, 2015:

(a)

(b)

(c)

For professional liability during the periods of July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 and July 1, 2014 to
June 30, 2015, for all MedStar entities except MedStar Montgomery Medical Center (MMMC) and
MedStar St. Mary’s Hospital (MSMH), the Corporation is responsible for the first $5.0 exposure for
each and every claim plus an additional exposure above the first $5.0 self-insured retention referred
to as an “inner aggregate.”

For the period July 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the applicable inner aggregate was an inner
aggregate that was in cffect for the 12 month period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013.
This inner aggregate exposcs the Corporation to up to $3.0 per claim with an aggregate for the
12 month period of $6.0 above the $5.0 per claim self-insured retention for all claims incurred during
the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013,

For the period January 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014, the applicable inner aggregate was in effect for the
12 month period of January |, 2014 to December 31, 2014. This inner aggregate exposes the
Corporation to up to $3.0 per claim with a $6.0 annual aggregate above the Corporation’s $5.0 per
claim self-insured retention for all claims incurred during the period January I, 2014 to
December 31, 2014.

For the period January 1, 2015 to June 30, 2015, the applicable inner aggregate was in effect for the
12 month period of January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. This inner aggregate exposes the
Corporation to up to $3.0 per claim with a $6.0 annual aggregate above the Corporation’s $5.0 per
claim self-insured retention for all claims incurred during the period January 1, 2015 to
December 31, 2015.

Effective December 10, 2012, Southern Maryland Hospital joined the Corporation as MedStar
Southem Maryland Hospital Center (MSMHC). MSMHC is covered for all professional liability
exposure for activities on or after December 10, 2012 under the same program of coverage described
above. The Corporation did not assume responsibility for MSMHC exposure or any tail claims that
might arise in future years related to activities that occurred prior to the acquisition by the
Corporation.

For MMMC and MSMH, the Corporation is responsible for the first $2.0 exposure for each claim
(not subject to the inner aggregate structures noted above).

For general liability, the Corporation is responsible for the first $3.0 exposure for each claim (for
MMMC and MSMH, the first $2.0 exposure for each claim). General liability claims are not subject
to the inner aggregate excess retention as described above. MSMHC is covered for general liability
exposure for activities on or after December 10, 2012 under the Corporation’s general liability
program.

Commercial excess re-insurance has been purchased above the self-insured retentions described
above in multiple layers and in twin towers; one for professional and one for general liability.
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Effective January 1, 2013, the Corporation purchased an additional layer of commercial excess
re-insurance. During the period of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 20135, each tower has
eight layers of excess re-insurance which provides coverage of up to $125.0 per claim and $125.0 in
the annual aggregate. The Corporation maintains reinsurance contracts with various “A” rated
commercial insurance companies.

The professional and general liabilities as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 have been discounted at a rate of
1.75%. The workers’ compensation liabilities as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 have been discounted at a rate
of 1.50%.

Assets available to fund these liabilities are held in separate accounts (see note 2). Contributions required
to fund professional and general liability, employee health benefits and workers’ compensation programs
are determined by the plans’ administrators based on appropriate actuarial assumptions. The professional
and general liability programs are administered through an offshore wholly owned captive insurance
company, Greenspring Financial Insurance Limited (GFIL), which is domiciled in the Grand Cayman
Islands.

Unrestricted Net Assets

The Corporation accounts for and presents noncontrolling interests in a consolidated subsidiary as a
separate component of the appropriate class of consolidated net assets. The income attributable to
noncontrolling interests is included within operating income on the consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets. The following table presents a reconciliation of the changes in consolidated
unrestricted net assets attributable to the Corporation’s controlling interest and noncontrolling interest,
including amounts such as the performance indicator and other changes in unrestricted net assets as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Total
MedStar Noncontrolling unrestricted
Health, Inc, interests net assets
Balance as of June 30, 2013 $ 1,617.4 9.4 1,026.8
Excess of revenues over expenses 3024 2.3 304.7
Change in funded status of defined
benefit plans {2.1) — 2.1)
Net assets released for property
and equipment and other 4.5 (2.8) 1.7
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - (3.7) (3.7)
Increase (decrease) in
unrestricted net assets 304.8 (4.2) 300.6
Balance as of June 30, 2014 1,322.2 5.2 1,327.4
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Total
MedStar Noncontrolling unrestricted
Health, Inc. interests net assets
Excess of revenues over expenses b 109.1 2.2 111.3
Change in funded status of defined
benefit plans (118.5) — (118.5)
Net assets released for property
and equipment 6.2 — 6.2
Acquired noncontrolling interests — 10.8 10.8
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — (2.9) {2.9)
(Decrease) increase in
unrestricted net assets (3.2) 10.1 6.9
Balance as of June 30, 2015 b 1,319.0 15.3 1,334.3

(12) Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are available for the

following purposes:
2015 2014
Temporary restrictions:
Interest in net assets of foundation 5 63.0 64.9
Other 68.9 56.9
5 131.9 121.8
Permanent restrictions:
Investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from
which is available to support healthcare services 3 39.5 39.4

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the purposes of purchasing property and equipment,
providing health education, research and other healthcare services.
(13) Endowment Net Assets

The Corporation’s endowments consist of individual donor-restricted funds established for a variety of
purposes. Net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

(a) Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Corporation has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA)
as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
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this interpretation, the Corporation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts
are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Corporation considers the
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund

{2) The purposes of the Corporation and the donor-restricted endowment fund
(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6} Other resources of the Corporation

(7} The investment policies of the Corporation

{b) Endowment Net Assets Consist of the Following as of June 30, 2015

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment
funds $ — 52 39.5 44.7

Total endowed
net assets N — 52 39.5 44.7

{c) Endowment Net Asseis Consist of the Following as of June 306, 2014

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment
funds $ - 6.6 394 46.0

Total endowed
net assets $ — 6.6 394 46.0
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(d)  Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Corporation to retain as a fund
of perpetual duration. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, there were no deficiencies of this nature that
are reported in unrestricted net assets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.

(e) Investment Strategies

The Corporation has adopted policies for corporate investments, including endowment assets, that
seek to maximize risk-adjusted returns with preservation of principal. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Corporation must hold in perpetuity or for a
donor-specified pericd(s). The endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to hold a
mix of investment assets designed to meet the objectives of the account. The Corporation expects its
endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of return that generates earnings to achieve
the endowment purpose.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Corporation relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Corporation employs a diversified asset allocation
structure to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

The Corporation monitors the endowment funds returns and appropriates average returns for use. In
establishing this practice, the Corporation considered the long-term expected return on its
endowment. This is consistent with the Corporation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of
the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real
growth through new gifts and investment return.

(14) Income Taxes

The Corporation and the majority of its subsidiaries are not-for-profit corporations as defined in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and are exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 50i(a) of the Code. The Corporation’s tax-exempt businesses generate nominal amounts of
unrelated business income subject to income tax. For corporate income tax purposes, the Corporation has
two consolidated groups of for-profit, taxable entities. The parent companies of these groups are Parkway
Ventures, Inc. and MedStar Enterprises, Inc.

The Corporation’s taxable subsidiaries have approximately $218.5 of net operating loss (NOL)
carryforwards as of June 30, 2015, which expire in varying periods through 20335, available to offset future
taxable income. This NOL carryforward represents $83.0 of gross deferred tax assets. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is morc likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. During the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Corporation decreased its net deferred tax asset by $6.1 and $3.6,
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respectively, which was recorded in nonoperating income. The remaining amount of the deferred tax asset
considered realizable, $21.7 as of June 30, 2015, could be reduced if estimates of future taxable income
during the carry forward period are reduced. The current tax provisions for the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014 were immaterial.

Charity Care and Other Community Benefits

MedStar Health is committed to ensuring that patients within the communities it serves who lack financial
resources have access to necessary hospital services. MedStar Health and its healthcare facilities serve the
emergency health care needs of everyone who visits the facilities regardless of a patient's ability to pay for
care; and assist those patients who are admitted through the admissions process for non-urgent and urgent,
medically necessary care who cannot pay for the care they receive.

In meeting this commitment, MedStar Health’s facilities work with uninsured patients to gain an
understanding of each patient’s financial resources prior to admission (for scheduled services) or prior to
billing (for emergency services). Based on this information and patient eligibility, the Corporation’s
facilities assist uninsured and certain underinsured paticnts that meet medical hardship criteria who reside
within the communities served. This assistance is provided in one or more of the following ways:

e Assist with enrollment in publicly-funded entitlement programs (e.g. Medicaid and Medicare
programs).

»  Assist with consideration of funding that may be available from other charitable organizations.

e Provide charity care and financial assistance according to applicable guidelines, including
considerations for patients that may be underinsured and for those that may be suffering from a
medical hardship.

» Provide financial assistance for payment of facility charges using a sliding scale based on patient
family income and financial resources.

e Offer periodic payment plans to assist patients with financing their healthcare services.

Eligibility criteria for financial assistance consider patient’s household income in relation to the federal
poverty guidelines and the equity value of real property and/or other assets. By definition, free care is
available to uninsured patients in households between 0% and 200% of the federal poverty line. Reduced
cost-care is based on a sliding-scaled and is available to uninsured patients in houscholds between 200%
and 400% of the federal poverty line.

In addition to charity care, the Corporation also funds unpaid costs of services provided to persons covered
by publicly-funded programs and numerous programs designed to benefit the healthcare interests of the
communities it serves. Examples of these programs are health education programs and services, health
information and referral services, school-based clinics, public health screenings and home care. The costs
associated with these programs are recorded in the appropriate operating expense categories.

The Corporation’s hospitals utilize a cost to charge ratio methodology to convert charity care to cost. The
estimated cost of services provided is determined based on the relationship of total operating costs to gross
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charges. Total operating costs for purposes of this ratio exclude bad debt expense as well as costs
associated with community benefit activities. Total gross patient charges are then offset with any related
reimbursements. The Corporation provided $26.1 and $45.5 of charity care at cost during the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, based on the cost to charge ratio. The reduction in charity care is a
result of expanded coverage under the Affordable Care Act (ACA), contributing to a shift from self-pay to
Medicaid and Medicaid managed care. In addition, the ACA contains a number of provisions intended to
improve quality and reduce spending related to the Medicare program. The reduction in spending on the
Medicare program, which includes readmission penalties, a reduction in disproportionate share payments,
and reduction in payment rates, is intended to offset the cost of expanding coverage under the ACA.

Leases

The Corporation is obligated under various operating leases with initial terms of one year or more.
Agpregate future minimum payments as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

2016 b 64.5
2017 571
2018 49.9
2019 45.1
2020 36.8
2021 and Thereafter 182.7

5 436.1

Certain leases include provisions allowing the minimum rental payments to be adjusied annually for
increases in operating costs and, in some cases, rcal estate taxes attributable to leased property. Total rental
expense for all operating leases amounted to approximately $72.7 and $65.9 during the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

In February 2000 and on June 30, 2000, the Corporation and Georgetown University (the University)
signed certain definitive agreements whereby the Corporation would receive through purchase or capital
lease substantially all of the assets (including working capital) owned by the University that constitutes the
MedStar Georgetown University Hospital, the Community Practice Network, the Faculty Practice Group
and certain office buildings and a parking lot on the campus (collectively referred to as the Transferred
Businesses). These agreements became effective July 1, 2000 and transferred control of the identified
physical plant and other real property assets of the Transferred Businesses to the Corporation for use as an
academic medical center for a minimum of ninety-cight years. At the end of the one hundred and fifty year
lease term (including a fifty-two year renewal), the University shall convey all leased assets, excluding the
underlying land, to the Corporation for a nominal amount and enter into a rent-free ground lease for the
Corporation’s use. This transaction was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting effective
July 1, 2000,
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In recognition of the value of the transaction, the Corporation shall annually pay the University 50% of the
amount by which the combined operating camings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA), as defined in the asset purchase agreement, of certain entities of the Corporation in the
Washington D.C. arca (collectively referred to as the Washington Clinical Enterprises) exceeds $60.0,
subject to certain adjustments. These additional payments expire when cumulative payments reach $70.0.
The Corporation has paid $52.7 to the University as of June 30, 2015 and is expected to pay the remaining
$17.3 by June 30, 2016.

The Corporation also entered into an Academic Affiliation and Operations Agreement (Affiliation
Agreement) with the University. The purpose of this agreement is to make available to the University the
facilities of the Transferred Businesses and provide the Corporation with a firsi-class University medical
center. The University shall make payments to the Corporation determined by multiplying the University
School of Medicine’s total undergraduate tuition revenue by 36% for providing teaching services. The
Corporation recognized $12.9 and $12.3 of tuition revenue during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. In support of academic programs at the University, for each fiscal year following the
termination of the additional payment terms in the asset purchase agreement described above, the
Corporation shall pay to the University 17.5% of the operating EBITDA of the Washington Clinical
Enterprises in excess of $60.0, subject to certain adjustments. No amounts have been paid under this
Affiliation Agreement through June 30, 2015.

The Corporation and the University also entered into a Research Agreement to sustain and advance a
program of health-related University research at the Transferred Business facilities. Under this agreement
the University is required to reimburse the Corporation for certain costs incurred by the Corporation in
support of University sponsored research. Amounts reimbursed to the Corporation were $2.8 and $2.7 for
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

MedStar Georgetown University Hospital and the University are parties to a fixed fee shared services
agreement. Georgetown University provided to MedStar Georgetown University Hospital the following
services: utilities, telephone/IT services, transportation services and library services. Expenses charged for
such services were $14.3 and $13.6 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The MedStar Washington Hospital Center campus is subject to the lien of a Permitted Encumbrance in the
amount of $21.5 to the United States government. This encumbrance was created in the deed of the
hospital property from the United States government to MedStar Washington Hospital Center in
February 1960. There is no repayment date for this lien stated in the deed. Under enabling legislation,
repayment could be required after a determination that the property is no longer required for hospital
services or the property is disposed of, in which event all or a portion of the lien may be payable to the
government. This lien is subordinated to the Deed of Trust on the MedStar Washington Hospital Center
campus,
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(18) Functional Expenses

The Corporation considers integrated health services, research and management and general to be its
primary functional categories for purposes of expense classification. Management and general include
information systems, general corporate management, advertising and marketing. Functional categories of
expenses for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
Integrated health services 3 3,885.9 3,5324
Management and general 946.2 024.7
Research 30.0 304
Fundraising 4.3 4.9
$ 4,866.4 4,492.4

(19) Subscquent Events

Management evaluaied all events and transactions that occurred after June 30, 2015 and through October 2,
2015. The Corporation did not have any events that were required to be recognized or disclosed.
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Affirmation Statements



Affirmation Statement

| hereby deciare and affirm under the penailties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief.

ol

(signaturé)] =

MegHa KaocHalih AVP PHYSICIARD & AMBLULATORY PLAN NG
(print name and affiliation)

02 s | 16
(date) '




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this

application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,

(S|gnature)

LULANA BILYNSE Y AP Am Mwﬁ)ﬁy Q@uf
(print name and affiliation) /bl 2 0( S‘ A‘»’( e [ /Qw/ //[\

é?/;z//(a

(date)

information and belief.




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief.

ignature)

Andrew L. Solberg, A.L.S. Healthcare Consultant Services
(print name and affiliation)

2/3/186
(date)




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief.

N
(Si@T A

- \ -
(print name and aﬂ'llia%n) :

AV,
(date) v Y




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,

information and belief.

i

(signature)

Patricia Cameron, Senior Policy Analyst, MedStar Health

el 32006
(date)




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,

information and belief.

z

3
(print name and affiliation)

(sigaature)

oz /o3 /eo(4
(date) ©




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,

(S|gnature) \J

an X G,.me JP MedShre orfopasdics -

(print name and affiliation)

(Tb-éruu-f\ 3, 20l¢
(date) d




Affirmation Statement

I hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this

application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief

(signature)

Magin MiTenes b, VTD (A TED 551,-?4/%;& ?4%7’/\/5??5

(print name and affiliation) :

2/3 /¢

(date)




Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief.

Wad Vhopr,
(signature) 0
MAk . MEGIviIS TReMURERL,

(print name and affiliation)

T

(date)



Affirmation Statement

| hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this
application and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief.

4 LUib.

(si@nature)

L}P N ({/ UL\H(.I son |, Ve E'\S\CN \%C\H’h

(print name and affiliation}

o 1 Q\ \
(date)
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